
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Commission Packet 
 
 

Commission Meeting 
April 26, 2018 

 
 

Hilton Anaheim 
777 W Convention Way 

Anaheim, CA 92802 
 

 
Call-in Number: 1-866-817-6550 
Participant Passcode: 3190377 

 



 

1 | P a g e      

                       
 

John Boyd, Psy.D. 1325 J Street, Suite 1700 
Chair                                                         Sacramento, California 95814 
Khatera Aslami-Tamplen 
Vice Chair  
 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
 

April 26, 2018 
9:00 AM – 4:00 PM 

 
Hilton Anaheim 

777 W Convention Way 
Anaheim, CA 92802 

 
Call-in Number: 866-817-6550; Code: 3190377 

 
 

Public Notice 

The public is requested to fill out a “Public Comment Card” to address the Commission 
on any agenda item before the Commission takes an action on an item. Comments from 
the public will be heard during discussion of specific agenda items and during the General 
Public Comment periods. Generally an individual speaker will be allowed three minutes, 
unless the Chair of the Commission decides a different time allotment is needed. Only 
public comments made in person at the meeting will be reflected in the meeting minutes; 
however, the MHSOAC will also accept public comments via email, and US Mail. The 
agenda is posted for public review on the MHSOAC website http://www.mhsoac.ca.gov 
10 days prior to the meeting. Materials related to an agenda item will be available for 
review at http://www.mhsoac.ca.gov. 

All meeting times are approximate and subject to change. Agenda items are subject to 
action by the MHSOAC and may be taken out of order to accommodate speakers and to 
maintain a quorum.  

As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Commission 
does not discriminate on the basis of disability and upon request will provide reasonable 
accommodation to ensure equal access to its meetings. Sign language interpreters, 
assisted listening devices, or other auxiliary aids and/or services may be provided upon 
request. To ensure availability of services, please make your request at least three 
business days (72 hours) prior to the meeting by contacting Lester Robancho at 
(916) 445-8774 or email at mhsoac@mhsoac.ca.gov. 

   



 

2 | P a g e      

               
 

John Boyd, Psy.D. AGENDA Khatera Aslami-Tamplen
Chair April 26, 2018 Vice Chair
 

Approximate Times 
 

 

9:00 AM 
 

Convene and Welcome 
Chair John Boyd, Psy.D., will convene the Mental Health Services Oversight and 
Accountability Commission Meeting. Roll call will be taken. 
 

9:05 AM Consumer Engagement 
Elyn Saks will open the Commission meeting with her story of recovery and resilience. 
 

9:40 AM Action 
1: Approve March 22, 2018 MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
 
The Commission will consider approval of the minutes from the March 22, 2018 meeting.

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 

9:45 AM Action 
2: Los Angeles County Innovation Plans 
Presenters: 

 Jonathan Sherin, M.D., Ph.D., Los Angeles County Director 
 Debbie Innes-Gomberg, Ph.D., Los Angeles County Deputy Director 
 Marc Heiser, M.D., Los Angeles County Psychiatry Specialist 

 
The Commission will consider approval of $2,499,102 to support the Los Angeles 
Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Innovation Projects, and $9,874,886 for 
the Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership Innovation Project. 

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 

10:45 AM Action 
3: Orange County and Modoc County Innovation Plans 
Presenters: 

 Jeffrey A. Nagel, Ph.D., Orange County Director 
 Sharon Ishikawa, Ph.D., Orange County MHSA Coordinator 
 Flor Yousefian Tehrani, Psy.D., LMFT, Orange County Program Manager 
 Karen Stockton, Ph.D., Modoc County Director 
 Rhonda Bandy, Ph.D., Modoc County MHSA Program Manager 
 Guillermo Diaz, MBA, Modoc County Peer Specialist 
 Adelaida B. More, Executive Director, Sunray’s of Hope, Inc. 
 Ronald Gilbert, Operations Manager, Sunray’s of Hope, Inc. 
 Karin Kalk, MA, Director, California Institute for Behavioral Health Solutions 

 

The Commission will consider approval of $24,000,000 to support the Orange County 
Mental Health Technology Solutions Innovation Project, and $270,000 to support the 
Modoc County Mental Health Technology Suite Innovation Project. Both Innovation plans 
are part of the Technology Solutions Collaboration Project. 

 Public Comment 
 Vote 



 

3 | P a g e      

 
 
11:45 PM 

 
 
General Public Comment 
Members of the public may briefly address the Commission on matters not on the 
agenda. 
 

12:00 PM 
 

Lunch Break 
 

1:15 PM Information 
4: Executive Director Report Out 
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
 
Executive Director Ewing will report out on projects underway and other matters 
relating to the ongoing work of the Commission. 
 
Informational Documents Enclosed: 
(1) The Motions Summary from the March 22, 2018 Commission Meeting; 
(2) Evaluation Dashboard; (3) Calendar of Commission activities; (4) Innovation 
Review Outline; (5) Innovation Dashboard; and (6) Department of Health Care 
Services Revenue and Expenditure Reports status update 
 

1:30 PM Information 
5: California State Auditor’s February 2018 Report on the Mental Health Services Act
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
 
The Commission will be presented with details regarding the State Auditor’s 
February 2018 Report on the Mental Health Services Act.  

 Public Comment 
 

1:50 PM Action 
6: Award Senate Bill 82 Children’s Triage Program Grants 
Presenters: 

 Tom Orrock, Chief of Commission Operations and Grants 
 Kristal Antonicelli, Project Lead 

 
The Commission will consider the award of the Triage Program grants in response 
to the Request for Applicants released by the Commission in February 2018. 

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 
2:00 PM Action 

7: Evaluation Contracts Approval 
Presenter: Brian Sala, Ph.D., Deputy Director 
 
The Commission will consider approval of one or more contracts in an amount not to 
exceed $1.4 million to support statewide evaluation of Mental Health Services Act 
programs. 

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 | P a g e      

 
 
2:20 PM 

 
 
Action 
8: Approval of Innovation Funds for Community Planning of Innovation Projects 
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
 
The Commission will consider whether to approve use of Innovation funds to 
support counties’ community program planning for Innovation and San Diego 
County’s request to use $100,000 of Innovation funds to support a human-
centered design project for its community program planning for a future Innovation 
project.  

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 
2:50 PM Information 

9: Draft Business Plan for Innovation Incubator 
Presenters: 

 Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
 David Smith, Consultant, X-SECTOR LAB 

 
The Commission will be presented with a draft business plan for the creation of an 
Innovation Incubator and an overview of the Innovation Summit. 

 Public Comment 
 

3:30 PM Action 
10: Legislation  
Presenters: 

 Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
 Norma Pate, Deputy Director 

 
The Commission will consider whether to support legislation related to mental 
health services under the Mental Health Services Act. 

 Public Comment 
 Vote 

 
3:45 PM General Public Comment 

Members of the public may briefly address the Commission on matters not on the 
agenda. 
 

4:00 PM 
 

Adjourn 
 

 



 

 AGENDA ITEM 1 
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Approve March 22, 2018 MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 

 
Summary: The Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission 
will review the minutes from the March 22, 2018 meeting. Any edits to the 
minutes will be made and the minutes will be amended to reflect the changes 
and posted to the Commission Web site after the meeting. If an amendment 
is not necessary, the Commission will approve the minutes as presented. 

Presenter: None. 

Enclosures: (1) March 22, 2018 Commission Meeting Minutes. 

Handouts: None. 

Recommended Action: Approve March 22, 2018 Meeting Minutes. 

Proposed Motion: The Commission approves the March 22, 2018 Meeting 
Minutes. 



  
Mental Health Services 

Oversight and Accountability Commission 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

EDMUND G. BROWN 
Governor 

 

 
John Boyd, Psy.D. 

Chair 
Khatera Aslami-Tamplen 

Vice Chair 
Toby Ewing, Ph.D. 
Executive Director 

 

State of California 
 

MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
OVERSIGHT AND ACCOUNTABILITY COMMISSION 

 
Minutes of Meeting 

March 22, 2018 
 

MHSOAC 
Darrell Steinberg Conference Room 

1325 J Street, Suite 1700 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

 
866-817-6550; Code 3190377 

 
Members Participating: 

John Boyd, Psy.D., Chair 
Khatera Aslami-Tamplen, Vice Chair 
Mayra Alvarez 
Jim Beall 
Keyondria Bunch, Ph.D. 

Itai Danovitch, M.D. 
David Gordon 
Mara Madrigal-Weiss 
Gladys Mitchell 

 
Members Absent: 

Reneeta Anthony 
Lynne Ashbeck 
Sheriff Bill Brown  

Wendy Carrillo 
Larry Poaster 
Tina Wooton 

 
Staff Present: 

Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 
Filomena Yeroshek, Chief Counsel  
Kristal Antonicelli, Health Program  
   Specialist and RFA Lead 
 

Tom Orrock, Chief, Commission Operations 
   and Grants 
Sharmil Shah, Psy.D., Chief, Program 
   Operations

 

CONVENE AND WELCOME 

Chair John Boyd called the meeting of the Mental Health Services Oversight and 
Accountability Commission to order at 9:23 a.m. and welcomed everyone. 

Meeting Calendar 

Chair Boyd stated that the April 26th meeting will be held in Anaheim and the May 24th 
meeting will be held in Sacramento. The Anaheim location will soon be announced. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 

 

Youth Participation 

Chair Boyd stated the Commission made a commitment to include a young person 
around the table at every Commission meeting to learn the Commission process and to 
give their perspective on issues. He asked Smitha Gundavajhala to introduce herself. 

Smitha Gundavajhala stated she is part of Young Minds Advocacy, an organization that 
focuses on children’s mental health and improving access to quality mental health care 
for young people and their families. She studied public health at the University of 
California, Berkeley where she learned to advocate for college students and the mental 
health challenges they face. She stated she later learned that the challenges that 
college students face are emblematic of the larger challenges that young people face 
when it comes to accessing mental health care. She commended the Commission for 
their intentional efforts to include young people’s voices in the conversation. 

New Personnel 

Sharmil Shah, Psy.D., Chief, Program Operations, introduced two new staff members: 
Jeff Kukral, Plan Review team, and Kara Chung, Prevention and Early Intervention 
team. 

CONSUMER ENGAGEMENT 

Chair Boyd suggested at the February Commission meeting that future Commission 
meetings should begin with an individual with lived experience sharing their story. He 
stated the hope that this will be a part of Commission meetings hereafter. In keeping 
with that suggestion, the Commission has invited Jessie Wright to share her story. 

Jessie Wright, National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI), shared her story of growing 
up with mental illness, dropping out of high school, getting into drugs, having 
experiences with law enforcement and first responders, being taken to the Sacramento 
Mental Health Center, being diagnosed as paranoid, schizophrenic, and manic 
depressive, and becoming homeless but not thinking anything was wrong with her. She 
stated she would take her medication but stop when she felt she was okay. 

Ms. Wright stated her daughter began to take care of her siblings and mother from the 
time she was in fourth grade. She stated her daughter took her back to the Sacramento 
Mental Health Center in 2010. Ms. Wright was in grad school at the time. Her daughter 
is 44 years old today and is still her family’s support. Family support is important. 

In 2012, 12-Step Recovery took Ms. Wright to the hospital, where they put her on a 
different medication that she is still on today. Ms. Wright stated she had to get 
treatment, stay with that treatment, become medication compliant, and accept that she 
had a mental illness. She stated she still struggles with that acceptance today. 

Ms. Wright stated she advocates for others, gets involved, and loves what she does. 
She stated her passion is to see others come out of denial, get into treatment, and 
begin the healing process. Recovery is a continuous process that lasts a lifetime. 

 

 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 

 

Commissioner Comments 

Commissioner Mitchell applauded Ms. Wright and stated she appreciated her resilience 
and the whole notion of hanging in there and obtaining a Master’s Degree. She stated 
Jessie Wright is a model. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated Jessie Wright’s story is inspirational. In sharing it, 
Ms. Wright is spreading the message of hope that recovery is possible and that the 
journey is nonlinear. She stated sometimes there are setbacks but, with support and the 
right resources, recovery is possible for all. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss thanked Jessie Wright for keeping it real. She stated 
meetings contain a lot of paperwork and formalities, but if it is not kept real by hearing 
the everyday stories, Commissioners can get lost in the bureaucracy and business. 

Roll Call 

Filomena Yeroshek, Chief Counsel, called the roll and announced a quorum was not 
present. She suggested skipping Agenda Item 1, the approval of the meeting minutes, 
until later in the meeting and beginning with Agenda Item 2, Schools and Mental Health 
Panels. A quorum was established during the afternoon session.  

[Note: Agenda item 1 was moved to the afternoon. These minutes reflect the 
Agenda Item 1 as listed on the agenda and not as taken in chronological order.] 

 

ACTION 

1: Approve February 8, 2018, and February 22, 2018, MHSOAC Meeting 
Minutes  

Public Comment 

Rory O’Brien, LGBTQ Program Coordinator, Mental Health America of Northern 
California (NorCal MHA), Project Coordinator, Out for Mental Health, referred to page 
19 of the February 22, 2018, meeting minutes and stated the following statement is not 
correct: “phenotyping feature only be used with clients who have been provided with in-
person consent counseling and that the counseling be an opt-in process.” The correct 
statement that the speaker made was that the digital phenotyping feature be an opt-in 
process contingent upon the counseling not that the counseling be an opt-in.   

Action:  Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen made a motion, seconded by Chair Boyd, that: 

The Commission approves the February 8, 2018, and February 22, 2018, Meeting 
Minutes. 

Motion carried 5 yes, 0 no, and 2 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Madrigal-Weiss, 
and Mitchell, Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen, and Chair Boyd. 

The following Commissioners abstained: Commissioners Bunch, Danovitch, and 
Gordon. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 4 
 

 

INFORMATION 

2: Schools and Mental Health Panels 

Commissioner Gordon stated today’s panel sessions represent another stage in the 
journey towards building a system, which hopefully will join school and mental health 
systems together in partnership. He stated the hope that those partnerships will be 
more than just on paper and through grants but on the ground where services need to 
be available where children and families can most readily access them. 

Commissioner Gordon stated parents ask him why services were not made available 
when kindergarten and first grade teachers noticed issues with their children, but 
instead took until fifth, sixth, or seventh grade for their children’s situations to get bad 
enough that services were offered. He spoke against a fail-first system and stated the 
need to ensure that it is not. 

Commissioner Gordon stated staff put together panels of outstanding leaders to discuss 
why Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) is important and how it can be done at the 
local and state levels. He thanked the panel members in advance for their willingness to 
present and for their remarks. 

Commissioner Gordon highlighted the consideration section of the Issue Brief, which 
was included in the meeting packet. He stated the questions at the end of the Issue 
Brief are worthy of consideration by the Commission. He invited the members of the 
Subcommittee to offer comments. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss stated the need to take action now while there is great 
interest. 

Commissioner Mitchell stated she looked forward to making improvements with mental 
health in schools, especially at the earliest point of intervention. She stated more than 
anything relationships need to be built within schools. She stated programs and mental 
health providers can be brought in but there has to be trust so the work is done as a 
team to help children and families. 

Panel 1: The Lived Experience of Childhood Trauma and Resilience 

 Emmerald Evans, Founding Member of Seneca Family of Agencies Youth 
Advisory Board  

 Jakaar Brandon, Transition Age Youth Advocate and Peer Counselor, 
Member of Seneca Family of Agencies  

Jakaar Brandon 

Jakaar Brandon, Transition Age Youth Advocate and Peer Counselor, Member of 
Seneca Family of Agencies, emphasized that, rather than his title, first, he is a human. 
He shared his story of living in group homes since the age of 12, taking medication at 
an early age, being in children’s mental health since the age of four, and having seen 
many psychiatrists and psychologists who he felt never listened. He stated, at the age 
of 26, he finally has come to the point where he knows where he is going. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 5 
 

 

Mr. Brandon stated one of his recommendations is a change in the curriculum and 
training for all who work in schools. The Seneca Family of Agencies has a two-week 
training called New Employee Orientation (NEO), which is training from individuals who 
have had the same experience of group homes and trauma and who can explain their 
experiences and discuss them. He stated individuals with lived experience should do 
the training. Individuals with a Master’s Degree do not necessarily understand. He 
stated counselors, therapists, and social workers at the schools need training along with 
the teachers and school staff so they can better understand the need. 

Emmerald Evans 

Emmerald Evans, Founding Member of the Seneca Family of Agencies Youth Advisory 
Board, stated she is 19 years old and a student at Sacramento State University. She 
shared her story of living in foster care and group homes from the age of six. That 
unstable and nonnurturing environment with inconsistent mental health services and 
resources led to behavioral issues and inconsistencies in her academics. 

Ms. Evans stated, over time, she was blessed with key, lasting relationships, which 
enabled her to be resilient. She suggested that schools and communities provide 
spaces, forums, and groups for students to explore past experiences and ongoing 
needs. There should always be access to licensed mental health professionals in case 
of mental crises or life stresses. She stated administrators and staff should consistently 
develop a culture that eliminates the stigma of mental health and trauma, allowing 
students to feel safe and reach out for help and support from one another. 

Ms. Evans stated one of the biggest things she wished she had when going through the 
foster care system is consistency and stabilization. Ms. Evans stated she had the same 
lawyer throughout her foster care experience, from 6 to 18 years of age, who loved and 
appreciated her. That consistency is what grounded her. She stated she did not know 
what her purpose was until she turned 18 and became a leader to someone else. She 
stated understanding childhood trauma and breaking the stigma about mental illness 
are important strategies to finding help for these individuals. These children may not 
know they need help, but individuals who have lived through it know. Compassion is 
needed. 

Commissioner Questions 

Chair Boyd asked if Ms. Gundavajhala would share her perspective. She stated her 
heart is both heavy and full hearing the previous speakers’ experiences. She stated 
their bravery is huge – not only in how they have moved forward and upward from 
everything they went through, but also in surviving and being willing to share their 
stories today. Those stories will be an inspiration to many individuals who may be 
listening or are present at the meeting. 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated Mr. Brandon spoke about the importance of training programs 
for teachers and faculty to equip them to recognize mental health challenges that would 
be informed by young people with trauma-lived experience. She asked why he thought 
it was important for young people with those experiences to be informing, leading, and 
driving the process at all levels. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 6 
 

 

Mr. Brandon stated it gives them more of a purpose that they can see. Individuals with 
mental and physical challenges who have lived through these experiences and who 
have been that troubled person on the front line growing up have a voice. Being 
involved in training programs and peer-led groups gives them a sense of self-worth and 
possibly a career out of something that they have lived. 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated advocacy can be a form of healing and moving forward 
positively from pain and negative experiences. She stated teachers can often be 
squeezed between needing to serve students with all the performance expectations 
placed on them by administration. They are the individuals who interact with young 
people on a daily basis. She asked Mr. Brandon about his thoughts on restorative 
justice opportunities and programs for young people whose schools are not often 
equipped to recognize or handle their mental health challenges. 

Mr. Brandon stated teachers who think a child acts out because he is bad do not allow a 
relationship to be built. Training should be given regardless of funding because it will 
help teachers to better understand young people and to build relationships. Teachers 
should have compassion as a human being that someone is going through something 
instead of immediately thinking that the child is going crazy and call law enforcement. 

Commissioner Mitchell stated she heard Mr. Brandon say it would have helped to have 
individuals in the classroom who were empathetic to the situation and recognized that 
there was more going on there than just an out-of-control student. Mr. Brandon agreed. 

Commissioner Mitchell stated hopefully an effective change can be made to the process 
that trains educators. She agreed that teachers have benchmarks to hit in the 
classroom and administrative tasks and that it is necessary to have someone in the 
classroom to help build that relationship from the point in which the mental health issues 
appear. Teachers see it more often than anyone because the child is with them all day. 
She stated she does not know what the answer is but it probably is somewhere in that 
training and the Commission doing something with the requirements of educators. 

Commissioner Bunch agreed that training from individuals with lived experience is 
important. She stated she was particularly sad to hear that the panel members felt so 
unheard for so many years. She stated it is not just an issue of training so teachers and 
social workers know where individuals with lived experience are coming from, because 
they already do. What happens over time is that teachers and social workers get 
frustrated and disillusioned by the same systems that are letting individuals with lived 
experience down and they get desensitized. 

Commissioner Bunch stated one of the things the Commission has to think about to 
intervene is how to support teachers and social workers and find ways to decrease 
vicarious trauma that is not being addressed and help them get past the barriers. She 
stated teachers and social works can have all the empathy in the world, but if there is no 
way for them to help, then the only way they can help themselves is to start to feel less. 

Commissioner Gordon stated the Commission recently had an opportunity to visit the 
school in Richmond that had a Seneca Family of Agencies team that provided a support 
system around the teachers and other personnel. He asked Ms. Evans to share what 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 7 
 

 

Seneca Family of Agencies does to make to make those supports and to provide 
consistency for students and faculty.  

Ms. Evans stated she is familiar with that program but did not deal with Seneca Family 
of Agencies at school. She agreed that consistency is important. Consistency in the 
support and the person working with the young people helps to break down those 
barriers so the professionals see the young people as humans. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss asked Mr. Brandon for more detail on his suspensions. 
Mr. Brandon stated he has gone to approximately 60 percent of the schools in Vallejo. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss asked if the reason he was expelled from school was 
because of his behavior. Mr. Brandon stated it was. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss stated one of the reasons restorative justice and 
restorative practices are discussed is because it is about behavior and discipline. She 
stated schools are looking at doing things differently because behavior and mental 
health issues need to be considered. Schools cannot continue to expel students. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss stated she agreed that faculty and staff require training. 
School counselors, social workers, and psychologists need training, but the reality is 
that students spend more time with their instructors. Teachers need to understand 
things differently and respond differently. She stated, while teachers are already trained 
and are under pressure to meet academic standards, they do not need to understand all 
mental health issues. Teachers only need to be trained to ask the right questions, which 
align with trauma-informed practice. 

Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss stated, when teachers stop asking what is wrong with a 
student and, instead, frame the question as what happened to the student, they will 
behave differently. Including persons with lived experience in a leadership position 
during those trainings is much more powerful than handing teachers a manual. She 
thanked the speakers for presenting today and for reminding the Commission that it 
needs to take that into consideration. There is a lot of work yet to do. 

Commissioner Mitchell agreed. She stated the Commission’s work is to somehow 
inform or educate teachers on these issues so they better recognize students with 
needs. She stated the need to insert the training into the requirements for teachers. 

Commissioner Gordon stated the school in Richmond recognized that any training given 
to teachers or anyone else is in their past or is episodic. Teachers go to a training, go 
back to work, and the training is done. But the Richmond school created a team of 
individuals who work together to help teach each other the kinds of ways they should be 
responding to situations. He stated the teachers learn from each other. They have 
created a culture within the school that responded to young people in a way that was 
restorative rather than punitive. He stated it is that culture and that team at the school 
who are continually reinforcing that that will make a huge difference. 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated the youth voice is the credibility and the expertise that 
teachers need to be effective, because young people are the population that teachers 
are trying to serve. She stated the need to continue the conversation on not just how to 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 8 
 

 

make it easier for teachers to support young people, but also to continue to elevate 
what young people have to say about their own experiences as they move through their 
education. She thanked the panel members for being a part of that process. 

Panel 2: Understanding Early Childhood Mental Health: Risks, Disparities, and 
Educational Outcomes 

 Chandra Ghosh Ippen, Ph.D., Associate Director, Child Trauma Research 
Program, University of California, San Francisco 

 Gustavo Loera, Ed.D., Mental Health and Education Research Consultant, 
Center for Reducing Health Disparities, University of California, Davis 

Chandra Ghosh Ippen, Ph.D. 

Chandra Ghosh Ippen, Ph.D., Associate Director, Child Trauma Research Program, 
University of California, San Francisco, stated she is a mental health professional 
working with children in the zero- to six-year-old range. She stated the need for a work 
force that is trained to identify and support families much earlier. She provided an 
overview, with a slide presentation, on understanding early childhood mental health 
risks, disparities, and educational outcomes.  

Dr. Ghosh Ippen stated all teachers need to be taught to question if children are ADHD 
or if they do not focus so well and move around a lot because of trauma. It is not what is 
wrong with a child; it is what happened to a child. All behavior has meaning. The 
question is whether the meaning is being attended to. Schools do a lot for learning 
disorders but not if children are delayed in terms of emotion regulation.  

Dr. Ghosh Ippen stated a child’s history never goes away but, if a child can turn, 
process, and make meaning of their history, they can carry it differently. Positive 
experiences matter, such as competence-enhancing activities, safe environments, 
supportive relationships, and community support.  

Dr. Ghosh Ippen stated it is important to recognize that trauma is powerful learning. It is 
not about what children remember, it is about what they learned about safety, feelings, 
and themselves. She stated, as a professional, she understands that she has to earn 
safety and trust with children. Everyday little interactions like telling a child they are 
worthy and they are safe bring about change. 

Commissioner Questions and Discussion 

Commissioner Mitchell asked how this presentation can be shown in schools because 
this is what educators need. 

Commissioner Bunch suggested combining Dr. Ghosh Ippen’s presentation with the 
presentations from Panel 1 and creating a program for schools. 

Gustavo Loera, Ed.D. 

Gustavo Loera, Ed.D., Mental Health and Education Research Consultant, Center for 
Reducing Health Disparities, University of California, Davis, provided an overview, with 
a slide presentation, on the importance of prevention, early detection, and timely 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 9 
 

 

treatment of mental disorders. He stated the onset of mental disorders usually occur in 
childhood or adolescence; however, treatment typically does not occur until years later. 

Dr. Loera stated that in his written statement, which is included in the meeting packet, 
he provided stories of youth whose mental health issues went undetected and untreated 
as children and who are now struggling as youth. He showed a presentation slide of 
“El Wango,” a child in crisis. El Wango is translated as “baggy pants” because most of 
his clothes were hand-me-down clothes from other families. He stated El Wango’s story 
illustrates the many risk factors and adversities that he and children like him face on a 
daily basis. His story is a reminder that failure to work with schools to identify and find 
effective school-based mental health programs that focus on early detection and 
appropriate treatment could lead to more severe mental and physical conditions. 

Dr. Loera displayed a slide of a model that speaks of two best practices that he has 
been involved with: NAMI On-Campus Clubs and the California Health Occupations 
Students of America (Cal-HOSA). These programs are student-led organizations for 
middle schools and high schools that give children and adolescents a sense of 
belonging, recognize them as an asset to the community, and help them discover a 
meaningful purpose and role in their school and community life. 

Dr. Loera returned to the slide of El Wango. He stated the slide speaks to the value of 
educating and training teachers. He stated El Wango was on a trajectory towards a 
mental disorder but there was one educator who saw beyond the risk factors and 
tapped into the strength of this individual. He stated this educator who cared and 
showed compassion and empathy is the reason why El Wango is testifying before the 
Commission this morning. He thanked the Commission for the opportunity. 

Commissioner Questions and Discussion 

Commissioner Alvarez asked the presenters to discuss what this moment in particular 
means for advancing trauma-informed approaches, not only for children and immigrant 
families, but listing that as an experience that can be applied to children more broadly. 

Dr. Loera agreed that it is said that children are not wanting to go to school as a result 
of the fear of their parents being deported. Children struggling with depression will not 
ask for help for that reason. He stated only nine percent of farm workers and their 
families use services. He stated that is another population being forgotten. He stated 
the LGBTQ community has a double stigma and, if they are undocumented, it adds 
another layer of stress. There are a lot of stressors that are impacting their ability to 
seek services and what they see on the television every day does not make it any 
easier for them to do so. 

Dr. Ghosh Ippen stated she has to explain to children as young as two and three years 
of age who are having nightmares because someone could take their parent away and 
what will happen if they do. They are anxious and they see the faces of their parents as 
they worry. Then they go school on days after there have been raids and it makes 
sense that they will look hyperactive. They are not going to focus. When thinking of the 
protective shield, it is not just the caregivers that are failing those children, it is society. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 10 
 

 

Panel 3: Enhancing Opportunities for Prevention and Early Intervention 

 Heather Little, M.Ed., Health Policy and Program Manager, First 5 
Association of California 

 Natalie Woods Andrews, Ed.D., Director, Early Learning Department, 
Sacramento County Office of Education 

 Ruben Reyes, Superintendent, Robla School District 

 Ron Powell, Ph.D., Special Education Consultant, Early Childhood Mental 
Health Advocate  

Heather Little 

Heather Little, M.Ed., Health Policy and Program Manager, First 5 Association of 
California, provided an overview, with a slide presentation, on expanding early 
intervention systems in California. She stated, much like the Mental Health Services Act 
(MHSA), First 5 is a proposition-driven initiative, but, unlike the MHSA, First 5 dedicates 
100 percent of its funding specifically to those early prevention, early identification, and 
early intervention years. She highlighted First 5’s advocacy efforts and investments to 
help find solutions such as the Help Me Grow initiative to connect children to early 
mental health services. She stated there is not a single teacher, pediatrician, day care 
provider, or parent who does not want the best for the child in their care. She stated it is 
also a reality that there is no one single solution. She stated First 5 does not think they 
have every answer but it knows it is important to be part of the conversation and to bring 
individuals together. 

Natalie Woods Andrews, Ed.D. 

Natalie Woods Andrews, Ed.D., Director, Early Learning Department, Sacramento 
County Office of Education (SCOE), provided an overview, with a slide presentation, on 
enhancing opportunities for PEI. She stated there is a growing body of research that is 
focused on the importance of early identification and early intervention, and the 
importance of building strong relationships and ensuring that comprehensive supports 
are in place for young children and their families. 

Dr. Woods Andrews stated the importance of collaboration and coordinated services for 
that collective impact to ensure the wellbeing of young children and their families. She 
stated the result of a 15-month process was to develop the Sacramento County Early 
Learning Roadmap with five priority areas focusing on comprehensive and coordinated 
work, which was included in the meeting packet.  

Dr. Woods Andrews stated SCOE is working in collaboration with First 5 in launching 
Help Me Grow Sacramento County to implement comprehensive services and supports 
for children and their families. 

Ruben Reyes 

Ruben Reyes, Superintendent, Robla School District, continued the slide presentation 
and discussed the Robla School District demographics, the district’s application for a 
homeless grant, and the district’s Local Control Accountability Plan for student 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 11 
 

 

achievement and interventions, school climate, and parent involvement. He highlighted 
the current district activities being implemented around student mental health and their 
social-emotional growth, such as tripling the number of social workers currently working 
in the district. 

Superintendent Reyes stated everyone needs to be involved in supporting children in a 
variety of ways, including school secretaries, custodians, and kitchen workers. School 
districts must see parents as partners and vice versa. He highlighted the importance of 
creating outside partnerships with First 5, the SCOE, and other organizations to help 
bring resources. Partners help schools reach families and provide the kinds of services 
that are necessary to bring about the stability that families need. 

Ron Powell, Ph.D. 

Ron Powell, Ph.D., Special Education Consultant, Early Childhood Mental Health 
Advocate, stated he was the Administrator of the Desert/Mountain Special Education 
Local Plan Area (SELPA). He stated the Desert/Mountain SELPA is one of six SELPAs 
in San Bernardino County. He provided an overview, with a slide presentation, on 
enhancing opportunities for PEI. He stated San Bernardino County is possibly the most 
rural location in the nation and is certainly the largest SELPA in the state of California. 
The rural nature of the Desert/Mountain SELPA is what caused the SELPA to focus on 
mental health. 

Dr. Powell stated, as a consortium of 15 school districts and multiple charter schools, 
the SELPA was faced with the prospect of having to provide mental health services to 
the children in its region. The SELPA serves children who needed mental health 
services, has 25 therapists, and provides school-based mental health services including 
screening, assessment, referral, and treatment in over 300 schools in every district 
within the region. The SELPA served 11,000 children last year. 

Dr. Powell stated professionals cannot help what happens to a child, but they can 
control how it is responded to. He stated that response cannot be limited to the creation 
of new programs or the collaboration of individuals who just want to do a better job for 
children. Efforts must be directed toward the installation of safety nets all the way up the 
river, not just the children who are going off the waterfall. It is each individual’s 
responsibility to be that one supportive, caring person in that child’s life to make the 
difference and enable them to be resilient. 

Commissioner Questions and Discussion 

Commissioner Danovitch stated, if the desire is for teachers to care for students and 
children, then those teachers need to be cared for. The Commission has not had time to 
characterize the duress that teachers are under. He asked how to create a climate that 
can take care of the caretakers to give them trainings, resources, and supports to help 
children. 

Dr. Powell agreed that there is a need to understand that teachers have triggers and 
those triggers come from their own trauma history. He stated it is not just the teacher, it 
is everyone on the campus. It is the bus driver who sets the mood at the first of the day 
to the janitors and the cafeteria workers and everyone all along the way. Training is 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 12 
 

 

necessary in programs but teachers also need supports to continue to build them up 
when they need the help. That also needs to be a part of whatever is done. 

 

Panel 4: Strengthening California’s Response to Children’s Mental Health 
Needs 

 Curtiss Sarikey, MSW., Chief of Staff, Oakland Unified School District 

 Ted Lempert, J.D., President, Children Now 

Curtiss Sarikey 

Curtiss Sarikey, MSW., Chief of Staff, Oakland Unified School District, stated this 
problem is of great magnitude. The solutions must be grounded in equity by 
incentivizing collaboration among funding agencies, fields, professional domains, 
providers, schools, and community organizations to support families and caregivers, 
ensuring quality relationships for children across settings, supporting all pathways 
leading to kindergarten, building capacity of adults caring for and educating children, 
and creating healing environments. 

Mr. Sarikey suggested a cradle-to-career vision that crosses over all the siloes, funding 
streams, agencies, and professional domains that have been created, working together 
to scale social and emotional and academic development and embed it in all systems, 
convening the research and practice community to develop an integrated model of 
social and emotional learning that includes restorative practices, trauma-informed and 
healing practices, mental health, culturally specific practices, parent and student 
engagement, and a multi-tiered system of supports, identifying family engagement and 
partnership with parents as a key component of mental health PEI, supporting programs 
and models, and ensuring that families are part of developing this component at the 
policy and practice levels. 

Ted Lempert 

Ted Lempert, J.D., President, Children Now, and former Legislator and 
County Supervisor, stated the need to prioritize children, break down the silos, screen 
elementary children for oral health, speech, and vision, and ensure that there is an 
intervention. He suggested implementing home visiting across the state, adopting 
culturally appropriate screening, outreach, and referral processes for all children, 
developing a cross-agency council that brings together agencies at a state level, and 
working with counties that have successful PEI programs to better understand what 
works. Mr. Lempert stated this has already been done five decades ago. He stated he 
knows it can be done again for every child today.  

Commissioner Questions and Discussion 

Commissioner Mitchell thanked Mr. Lempert for reminding the Commission that there 
were screenings in the past. She agreed that it can be done today. 

Commissioner Alvarez stated the recurring theme throughout the panels has been the 
need to take care of children where they are and to emphasize as a priority taking care 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 13 
 

 

of children’s overall wellbeing. That priority needs to be kept at the forefront. She stated 
the first panel opened up with Jakaar saying first and foremost he is human. She stated 
the need to think of children and parents as humans and ensure that they receive the 
services they need where they are as individuals. 

Commissioner Gordon stated what he heard today was that it needs to be one system, 
that the siloes have to go away, and that the resources have to be filled with well-trained 
personnel. He stated the need for these well-trained individuals to have the capacity to 
build relationships among one another, the students, and their families and learn from 
one another. He stated the need for timely universal access where and when the clients 
need it. 

Commissioner Gordon stated another thing he gained was that it is necessary to 
intervene not when it is convenient for health systems or bureaucratic systems but at 
the earliest possible point – not just at preschool or kindergarten but before signs of 
needs emerge. He stated the need to intervene at that point to head off possible issues 
and challenges as the child progresses that the system would otherwise have to deal 
with later in the child’s life. 

Commissioner Gordon stated the thing that most struck him today was the power of the 
voices of the youth and how much could be learned, but oftentimes individuals do not 
take the time to listen to them to help shape and frame approaches to these problems. 

Commission Danovitch stated that underfunding is the elephant in the room.  

Ms. Gundavajhala stated when schools and mental health are discussed, it is 
considered a point of intervention, but there are upstream and downstream approaches 
and the stream continues lifelong. 

Public Comment 

Anna Hasselblad, Public Policy Manager, United Ways of California, stated United 
Ways of California is a member of the Children’s Health Coverage Coalition and is 
championing a state budget proposal to reinvest in funding for the coordination of the 
array of services through the Healthy Start Initiative, which promotes PEI interventions 
that are trauma-informed and culturally competent. 

Poshi Walker, LGBTQ Program Director, NorCal MHA, Co-Director, Out for Mental 
Health, and the California LGBT Health and Human Services Network, expressed 
concern that sexual orientation and gender identity issues have not yet been addressed 
in this schools and mental health project. LGBTQ children are overrepresented in the 
foster care system. Children who are identified as or perceived to be LGBTQ receive 
more frequent discipline and a greater severity of discipline than their cisgender and 
straight counterparts. Negative comments in the educational cumulative file can follow a 
child, amplifying implicit bias. 

Rory O’Brien, LGBTQ Program Coordinator, NorCal MHA, Project Coordinator, Out for 
Mental Health, urged discussing curriculum in schools and how to talk about mental 
health in the curriculum at a young age. Schools must be prepared to respond to the 
needs of all youth in their classes including, in particular, the need of youth to 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 14 
 

 

understand themselves and their classmates. The speaker suggested that the 
Commission read the National Sexuality Education Standards and consider it in 
discussions with districts and counites. 

Sandra Marley, client advocate, stated Parliament has government and opposition and 
opposition is looked on as being a very vital part of government. The speaker suggested 
tuning in to Channel 6 at 9:00 p.m. on Sunday about parliament with British Prime 
Minister Theresa May and the opposition and how they address each other. The 
speaker distributed a handout with questions about Senate Bill (SB) 906 such whether 
the individuals doing the criteria and exams have lived experience. 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

Robb Layne, Director of Communications and External Affairs, California Behavioral 
Health Directors Association (CBHDA), discussed the CBHDA’s strategy as an 
association around the AB 114, MHSA Reversion. The speaker stated the CBHDA is 
working with county partners to track and benchmark the Innovation dollars subject to 
the prior reversion. The CBHDA will continue to work with staff to create transparent 
deadlines, and to be a facilitator between counties, Commission staff, and Department 
of Health Care Services (DHCS) staff to meet the July 1, 2018, deadline. 

Stacie Hiramoto, Director, Racial and Ethnic Mental Health Disparities Coalition 
(REMHDCO), referred to the February 22, minutes where it was reported that the 
speaker looked forward to hearing a summary report-out on the Innovation Summit. The 
speaker stated it was not on today’s agenda but hoped there will be a report in the 
future. The speaker suggested that, if there is not time to present the report during a 
Commission meeting, perhaps the report can be posted online for public review. 

Joy Torres, NorCal MHA Advancing Client and Community Empowerment through 
Sustainable Solutions (ACCESS) Ambassador, spoke about the importance of 
treatment. Mental illness causes individuals to become isolated. The most deserving of 
the services are the severely mentally ill who are wandering the streets. 

Susan Gallagher, Executive Director, NorCal MHA, suggested more focus on the peer 
support aspect and less on the diagnostic aspect and pathologizing some of these 
behaviors. The speaker highlighted the need for more services and supports for children 
who have parents who are incarcerated. 

Sandra Marley referred to an article that came out in 2017 titled “Adult Bullying in the 
Workplace.” The speaker furnished staff with copies for their review. The speaker stated 
the need to bring the older adult population into the conversation. Older adults cannot 
get out and advocate for themselves. The speaker expressed concern about the Los 
Angeles Innovation project and their passive phenotyping and plan to contract the data 
storage out. The speaker stated there is possibly not enough oversight on that project. 

Andrea Crook, Advocacy Director, ACCESS California, NorCal MHA, stated this was 
the best Commission meeting she has attended. The speaker stated the need to do 
away with cultural competence and replace it with cultural humility. Cultural competence 
calls for expert knowledge, which is based on academic and institutional expertise, but 
expert knowledge comes from the individuals with the lived experience. The principles 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 15 
 

 

of cultural humility are life-long learning, critical self-reflection, recognizing and 
challenging power imbalances, and institutional accountability. To sum it up in one 
word, it is about love. 

 

LUNCH BREAK 

Chair Boyd explained that the Commission will be going into closed session during the 
lunchbreak as part of the Commission’s normal annual executive director performance 
review. 

REPORT BACK FROM CLOSED SESSION 

Chair Boyd reconvened the meeting after the lunchbreak and stated the Commission 
took no reportable action. 

INFORMATION 

3: Executive Director Report Out 

Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 

Executive Director Ewing thanked the panelists and the public who attended the 
meeting. He agreed with Andrea Crook’s comment that this was one of the best, most 
insightful, and most engaging presentations given about student mental health. He 
thanked the presenters for the guidance regarding the path the Commission will take to 
enhance the opportunities to serve children, youth, and young adults. He stated the 
purpose of these discussions is to create a shared understanding so that a policy path 
can be followed and recommendations can be formed that can be presented to the 
Governor and the Legislature that are consistent with the leadership that Senator Beall 
has shown in terms of his bill, SB 1019, youth mental health and substance use 
disorder services. He restated how exciting this morning’s success was.  

Executive Director Ewing presented his report as follows: 

Personnel 

In a temporary capacity, the Commission has retained a retired annuitant to replace 
Jennifer Whitney, the communications director, who has retired from state service. She 
will help the Commission build their communications strategy while a long-term director 
is found.  

Budget 

The budget process is in full swing. Pre-hearings are in progress; formal hearings will 
begin in a couple of weeks. Staff has been meeting with budget committees in both 
houses and has been speaking with the Department of Finance.  

Project Update 

Fiscal Reporting Tool 

The Fiscal Reporting Tool has been updated. A beta version of the updated features 
has been shared with the counties. They have until tomorrow to provide comment. A 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 16 
 

 

2.0 version of the tool should go live next week that will allow more recent data and, 
ideally, will allow the public to see cash on hand as of the end of the last fiscal year, 
which was eight months ago. It is not a cash-flow balance, but it does show the total 
dollars that counties have in their bank accounts up to the end of the prior fiscal year 
as a function of annualized revenue. 

The reason that is important is because some counties are carrying about a 
40 percent balance year over year. They are spending their money very quickly and 
annually. Other counties are carrying more than two years’ worth of revenue on their 
balance sheet. They are sitting on the dollars for the first year or the second year 
and they are beginning to spend them only in the third year. 

The auditor included in the audit report the level of fund balances as inconsistent 
with needs and made the argument that the mental health community has to do a 
better job of making these dollars available for services. That feature has been 
added to the tool and it should go live, ideally, next week. 

Innovation Incubator 

The Governor included $5 million in his budget to launch the Innovation Incubator, 
which was discussed as part of the strategy to enhance Innovation. In the budget 
proposal, the Governor asked the Commission to focus the Innovation Incubator on 
reducing criminal justice involvement of consumers in direct response to the large 
backlog of individuals who are declared incompetent to stand trial. This is consistent 
with the work that Commissioner Brown led in terms of community-based strategies for 
diversion and to improve access to care on the community side as a way to reduce the 
number of individuals who end up involved with the criminal justice system. Staff 
continues to speak with the budget and policy committees around unspent funds and 
how to prioritize those dollars consistent with the Governor’s proposal. 

The Commission has entered into a contract with a consultant to help design a business 
plan for the Innovation Incubator. Staff is working on a game plan including a series of 
meetings. There will be broader community meetings to discuss goals and objectives 
and more focused meetings with individuals around the world who have expertise in 
these models in order to develop a business plan and the governance on the 
operational side, such as how to fund this moving forward. There will be a series of 
larger open meetings and a series of focused meetings with individuals with technical 
expertise. Executive Director Ewing invited Commissioners to be involved in this 
planning effort. 

Innovation Planning 

Executive Director Ewing asked Dr. Shah to provide an update on her efforts to highlight 
where the counties are in terms of Innovation planning and the conversations that staff 
has had with the Legislature and with the auditors about delays in Innovation approvals. 
Staff is doing a better job tracking counties that have plans in place, counties that have 
come to the Commission for plans, and counties that have not submitted an Innovation 
proposal for several years. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 17 
 

 

Dr. Shah reviewed the Innovation Dashboard, which was included in the meeting 
packet. She referred to the Innovation Proposals to be Calendared chart and stated 
there are currently nine draft proposals that have been submitted by seven counties, 
which total $17 million in Innovation funds.  

Dr. Shah referred to the Innovation Concepts being Developed chart and stated 
13 Innovation concepts have been submitted by six counties and are being developed 
with staff support and technical assistance, which total approximately $42 million. 

Dr. Shah referred to the Approved Innovation Plans chart and stated this chart tracks 
the number of Innovation plans that have been approved during the past five years 
including extensions. She stated 52 counties have presented an Innovation plan to the 
Commission since 2013, which is 88 percent of the counties, and seven counties have 
not presented an Innovation plan, which is 12 percent of the counties. 

Dr. Shah stated an updated Innovation Dashboard will be included in the meeting 
packet every month. 

Chair Boyd thanked Dr. Shah and her team for putting this together. He stated major 
strides have been made in this area and the Innovation Dashboard is one more tool that 
will increase transparency and engagement and help the Commission and staff pace 
and schedule the work. 

Stakeholder Contracts 

Staff expects to testify in April before the budget committees on the Commission’s 
request to increase stakeholder funding in support of reducing criminal justice 
involvement of consumers and to increase stakeholder funding to support advocacy on 
behalf of the mental health needs of immigrants and refugees. Staff will work with the 
Chair to determine if the Chair or a Commissioner wants to testify to the budget 
committees to make the request. 

Strategic Planning 

There are three proposals in response to Chair Boyd’s request that a strategic planning 
consultant be identified, with a fourth proposal imminent. The contract will be awarded 
once all vendor proposals have been reviewed. 

Triage Grants 

Today’s agenda includes a presentation on the allocation of funds for triage. Staff is 
excited about the work that is happening in the triage program. There is a lot of interest 
in triage. Fundamentally, what was done last year was to shift triage as a funding 
strategy and move it towards a way to incentivize stronger collaboration and integration 
at the community level. There will be more to report after the procurement discussion 
because there will be a lot of interest in that. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 18 
 

 

INFORMATION 

4: California State Auditor’s February 2018 Report on the Mental Health 
Services Act 

Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 

Chair Boyd tabled this item to the next Commission meeting. He stated the meeting 
packet contains detailed information about this item for Commissioners and public 
review. 

Roll Call 

Chair Boyd asked Chief Counsel Yeroshek to call roll. Chief Counsel Yeroshek called 
the roll and announced a quorum was achieved. 

ACTION 

5: Trinity County Innovation Plan 

Presenters: Noel O’Neill, LMFT, Director; Marlinda Butler, MSW, MHSA 
Coordinator, Trinity County 

Noel O’Neill, LMFT, Director, Trinity County, stated Marlinda Butler, MHSA Coordinator, 
Trinity County, wrote the proposed Trinity County Innovation Plan but was unable to be 
in attendance due to illness. He provided an overview, with a slide presentation, of 
assessing the local capacity to serve the consumer in crisis, establishing a vision for 
peer respite, and developing an Innovation plan for the Cedar Home Peer Respite 
project. He stated construction is now complete on the 1,800 square foot peer respite 
home. A peer respite in Trinity County not only reduces the need for out of county 
placements, it furthers the county’s efforts to demonstrate the efficacy of peer support 
and to further embed recovery and resiliency programming as a cornerstone to 
successful behavioral health treatment within the county MHP system. 

Commissioner Questions 

Commissioner Danovitch asked about the measure and comparison used to answer the 
study question. Mr. O’Neill stated the measurement used over the last five years is the 
number of days of purchased hospital beds for psychiatric care. He stated, before the 
last Innovation project, the county was at 290 bed days purchased per year for two 
years prior to the project and is now averaging 173 bed days. He stated the county 
knows, because of this gap in service, that there are no locations available for an 
overnight stay in the community. He stated this number can be brought down even 
more. 

Commissioner Danovitch asked if the county’s hypothesis is to bring down that number. 
Mr. O’Neill stated it was. 

Commissioner Danovitch asked about the mechanism to continue this going forward 
after the Innovation and evaluation period, if that number is brought down and is judged 
to be a success. Mr. O’Neill stated the county made an agreement with CHFFA that this 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 19 
 

 

would be a 20-year project and it is greatly needed in the community. Trinity County is 
committed to it.  

Public Comment 

Adrienne Shilton, Government Affairs Director, Steinberg Institute, spoke in support of 
the proposed project. 

Robb Layne spoke in support of the proposed project. 

Chair Boyd stated the importance for counties to engage the youth voice around the 
state. He stated the Commission will be looking for that moving forward. 

Ms. Gundavajhala thanked Mr. O’Neill for his presentation and acknowledged and 
appreciated the county’s commitments to longevity and sustainability. Innovation should 
be considered more short-term and immediate while thinking about sustainability and 
ultimately how the community can continue to be involved in the process. 
Ms. Gundavajhala encouraged the county to continue that community-based 
informatory process, especially when thinking about peers, and to think about a varied 
group of peers to reflect the varied experiences of the communities in the county. 

Commissioner Discussion 

Commissioner Danovitch stated he is supportive of the need for this but was concerned 
that it does not fit into his understanding of what the Innovation mechanism is supposed 
to be, which is a mechanism to study an Innovation and as a way of determining 
whether or not it works and then coming up with a way to sustain that. Innovation dollars 
are not supposed to fund fixed costs in programs. 

Chair Boyd stated he also was conflicted. He agreed there should be a level of rigor and 
innovation around these types of issues. He stated he was more inclined to support it 
being that it is in a small rural community and understanding that on some level it does 
not necessarily meet all the things expected for Innovation. He asked Chief Counsel 
Yeroshek for her perspective. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek stated there is always challenge and conflict regarding the 
need. Every county that comes to present an Innovation plan talks about the need. She 
stated the definition of Innovation from a legal perspective is very broad. She stated this 
proposed Innovation plan fits within the minimum legal requirements. The question 
becomes if the Commission will accept the minimum requirements. She stated the 
Commission has been moving towards truly short-term testing of a new or adopted 
approach.  Of concern is the fact that the county already has a commitment to continue 
the project for 20 years. The problem may be if the proposed project qualifies as a test 
and evaluates whether something works. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek summarized that the Commission has the discretion to 
approve the proposed project because it fits the minimum requirements from a legal 
perspective, but this is a challenge that the Commission has been dealing with for 
multiple years now. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 20 
 

 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated she saw the proposed project as unique because of 
the frontier aspect of the county. Trinity County is a very rural county where it is not 
unusual to drive 100 miles to get any kind of service. She commended the county for 
their stakeholder process, listening to individuals with lived experience, making that 
space and commitment, leveraging the resources from CHFFA, and, in the process, 
involving national leaders to amplify the impact. She stated the proposed project is 
innovative, inspiring, and exciting to see. 

Mr. O’Neill stated there are four MHSA core values. He stated his belief that the 
proposed project meets all four of the MHSA core values. He brought to the 
Commission’s attention that counties come before the Commission asking for millions of 
dollars. Trinity County is asking for $89,000 to help support what the community 
believes to be an essential program. 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated Commissioner Danovitch’s comment brought up that one of 
the things that community programs often struggle with is communicating the value of 
what they do. She stated a lot of what allows these programs to continue to be 
supported, funded, built on, and improved is being able to communicate the value of 
what is happening in that program. She stated, although this may not be a traditional 
use of the word Innovation, what is innovative is the way of thinking about service 
provision. 

Ms. Gundavajhala strongly urged the county in their implementation to document and 
be creative about documenting the strengths of this Innovation because what makes it 
challenging to standardize Innovation is that Innovation is nonstandard by definition. 
Creatively documenting strengths as they are observed will be valuable. 

Chair Boyd stated, to be consistent and clear to counties and other key stakeholders, he 
explained that what Commissioner Danovitch discussed was the strong direction of this 
Commission and what he himself discussed was that the Commission is in the process 
of implementing and trying to live up to that standard. The Commission has more work 
to do on that. He stated the definition and standards heard from Commissioner 
Danovitch do ultimately reflect where the Commission is going. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated the transformation the Commission is seeking and 
that the youth and the panel members discussed this morning is a peer-to-peer 
approach. That connection, relationship, and place to go makes a huge difference and 
is the heart of the MHSA. She commended Trinity County for taking leadership in 
looking at crisis as an opportunity for peers to make an impact on one another. 

Chair Boyd stated this is a tough one. He applauded the work and the effort. The project 
barely meets minimal qualifications. Peers and use of peers are amazing; that is how 
transformation is happening. The struggle is that this has been done before. 

Mr. O’Neill agreed that peer respite has been done, but it has been done in Los 
Angeles, Santa Cruz, Sonoma, and Alameda Counties. He noted that these are all 
urban areas. He stated it has never been done in a rural county with no crisis 
residential, no crisis stabilization, and no crisis unit. This is the resource that Trinity 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 21 
 

 

County will have. The study question is can this resource ameliorate some of the mental 
health issues that the county deals with every day? 

Action:  Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen made a motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Gordon, that: 

The MHSOAC approves Trinity County’s Innovation Project as follows: 

 Name: Cedar Home Peer Respite 
 Amount: $267,000 
 Program Length: Twenty-Seven (27) Months 

Motion carried 7 yes, 1 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Bunch, Gordon, 
Madrigal-Weiss, and Mitchell, Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen, and Chair Boyd. 

The following Commissioner voted “No”: Commissioner Danovitch. 

ACTION 

6: San Francisco County Innovation Plan 

Presenters: Imo Momoh, MPA, Director; Tracey Helton, MPA, CATC, Program 
Manager, San Francisco County; Jose Orbeta, Peer Specialist, San Francisco 
County 

Imo Momoh 

Imo Momoh, MPA, Director, San Francisco County, provided an overview, with a slide 
presentation, of the need and goal, peer model, and community planning process of the 
Intensive Case Management/Full-Service Partnership (ICM/FSP) to Outpatient 
Transition Support. He stated the ICM/FSP comes from a design to provide services to 
individuals with acute and chronic mental health challenges that, if not addressed, could 
lead to severe and persistent functional impairment. 

Tracy Helton 

Tracey Helton, MPA, CATC, Program Manager, San Francisco County, stated she is a 
peer and a manager for the MHSA in San Francisco County. She provided a review of 
the proposed project from a peer perspective. 

Jose Orbeta 

Jose Orbeta, Peer Specialist, San Francisco County, stated the county has nothing in 
place to assure that these clients get to the outpatient program. He stated having a 
guide who has similar lived experience is imperative because it is needed in cities like 
San Francisco. 

Commissioner Questions 

Chair Boyd thanked the county representatives and the lived experience representative 
in this presentation. The Commission values that. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 22 
 

 

Commissioner Bunch stated what was described in the presentations seems like it 
should be something that should happen as someone is stepping down so that, 
whatever provider is meeting with someone in intensive case management services, 
they would hold their hand and take them to their first appointment, but it is not. She 
stated she appreciated what was brought to the table. 

Commissioner Alvarez asked about the organizational readiness. She stated it is an 
important element of this project in getting the organization ready to look at sharing 
power with peer specialists. She stated that is what she heard coming out of the 
decision-making process – that power is shared with peer specialists in the creation of 
this program and in the implementation. She asked if she is making too much of it and 
how peer leadership and knowledge can be used to ensure this program is successful. 

Ms. Helton stated that organizational readiness is a piece of it. When the county initially 
began discussing this project, many clinicians were moving from the 3-Fs model (peers 
doing floors, filing, and food) to peers being in a higher level of education and working 
within the clinics. She stated a big piece of organizational readiness was holding years’ 
worth of meetings with the clinicians who have been interacting with a peer on each of 
the panels, with each of them having equal decision-making ability within that body. 

Ms. Helton stated the county has spent a year preparing and looking at how clinicians 
interact with the peers in making clinical decisions, and rolling out this program. This 
would be an interesting and innovative piece that is transferrable to other counties. 

Mr. Orbeta stated he was part of the meetings and planning. He stated the peer voice is 
needed and respected. He stated there are three separate groups that meet bimonthly 
to brainstorm to help streamline it so stakeholders know exactly what the peer role will 
be and the different things that are required for the transition between the ICM and the 
outpatient program. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen asked what kind of training the clinical supervisor, the 
licensed therapist, will undergo to serve the peer role effectively. Ms. Helton stated 
individuals who interact with peers are trained in the Wellness Recovery Action Plan 
(WRAP) principles, de-escalation, motivational interviewing, and harm reduction. Peers 
are trained with peer professional training. She stated she has led up to 21 peers at one 
time and is a peer herself. San Francisco County, in particular, values peer leadership 
at the highest levels. That is what is envisioned for this team. Individuals with lived 
experience are applying for different county jobs as therapists and clinicians. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen asked if the clinical supervisor may also be a peer. 
Ms. Helton stated that would be ideal. 

Commissioner Danovitch stated there is no question that there is a strong need. This is 
a population that slips through the cracks with incredible consequences with respect to 
morbidity and mortality. Most of the funds for the proposed project go to staffing and 
there are other mechanisms under the MHSA that fund these activities, such as 
community services and supports and workforce mechanisms. 

Commissioner Danovitch stated the purpose of Innovation is to fund a pilot test of 
something to answer a question to determine if it works because it is not fundable 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 23 
 

 

through other mechanisms because it is unknown if it will work, and then, if it works, to 
use those insights to sustain the program and disseminate it to other sites. He stated 
the county has asked good questions, all of which are important, but it is not clear from 
looking at the proposal how this initiative will answer those questions and how the 
answers to the questions will inform the ability to sustain this after the maximum years 
of funding run out. He stated those are the questions that need to be answered for the 
Commission to support this under the Innovation mechanism. 

Mr. Momoh stated, during the research phase, the county did not see where the efficacy 
has been tested on how a Peer Linkage Team has been successful in helpful transition 
for clients from excessive case management outpatient services to appointment-based 
outpatient care, which is a lower level of care. He stated the proposed project is 
innovative because whether it works is unknown. Individuals making this transition 
become hard to reach and hard to engage. It is important to test the proposed project to 
see if it will work so the county can take the successful elements of the project and 
explore further mechanisms once the county has the confidence that this is something 
that is integral to the system that will build successful results. 

Commissioner Danovitch agreed that the hypothesis that peers can help with this 
transition is a good one, but he suggested comparing a group that did not get the 
service with a group that did get the service. It would possibly take more than $1 million 
of evaluation costs to track down individuals in this sector and get the data back about 
what happened to them. These individuals slip through the cracks in current data 
sources, as well. 

Commissioner Danovitch asked how to get the answer, since it is a question worth 
asking and answering. Mr. Momoh agreed that the county did not do justice to the 
evaluation section. He stated it is a good point to make a comparison between 
individuals who receive services and those who do not. He stated the county can 
develop the project to help test that and put more emphasis on evaluation to measure 
the impact. He introduced the lead evaluator, Diane Prentiss, to provide further detail. 

Diane Prentiss, MHSA Epidemiologist/Evaluator, San Francisco Department of Public 
Health, agreed that in an ideal world there would be a control group and differences 
would be measured between the groups, but this is in an applied setting where this 
opportunity will be provided to individuals who are eligible for it. 

Ms. Prentiss stated the evaluation baseline in this case is what has been happening 
over the last three years as compared to what happens after the project rolls out. The 
goal is to move the needle on increasing the number of referrals to outpatient and 
increasing the percentages of clients who engage at outpatient in a measurable way by 
accessing at least eight services within 90 days and comparing that to the baseline 
numbers that are currently being tracked. 

Ms. Prentiss stated there are process issues to work out in the county’s Avatar 
treatment tracking system because tracking referrals are not done in Avatar. She stated 
she expects that some clients will not avail themselves of this service. There may be 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 24 
 

 

intrinsic problems with that in terms of a comparison, but at least there would be some 
basis for comparison of those who do not access this service. 

Ms. Helton stated the impetus for this project is looking at years of data of individuals 
who did not have the different services and linkages. That is what facilitated creating 
this project. The county had so much information on individuals who had fallen out of 
services, where they had gone, and how they had to come back. Some of that data can 
be compared to the data from the new project. 

Ms. Gundavajhala thanked the speakers for taking the time to share about their ongoing 
efforts and about this proposal. She stated she is in this role today to share from the 
youth perspective what sorts of questions or comments she has. Ms. Gundavajhala 
stated this program will service a wide population but, when looking at transition age 
youth, it sounds like the need identified is a linkage issue, a gap in services. She asked 
if there are other aspects of the transition age youth experience that might be met or 
addressed by this program – for instance, if this program will support young people in 
getting transitions through structural as well as clinical perspectives. 

Ms. Helton stated the county has a TAY project that is an ICM. She stated one of the 
first places the county looked in creating this project was the transition between youth 
aging out of foster care. That was the first information gathering of how steep of a drop-
off there was to inform decision-making. She stated the interest of including a TAY as 
one of the peers in the proposed project who will be involved in the transitions for the 
TAY in the system. 

Public Comment 

Sandra Marley stated concern about transparency in the budget and asked about peer 
navigator wages. 

Robb Layne spoke in support of the proposed project. 

Andrea Crook spoke in support of the proposed project. 

Joy Torres spoke in support of the proposed project. 

Commissioner Discussion 

Commissioner Gordon asked why the proposed project is innovative. Mr. Momoh stated 
it is innovative because the county was unable to find where efficacy had been tested of 
a Peer Linkage Team, a peer transition team that supports clients in support of 
outpatient intensive case management programs and transitioning to appointment-
based outpatient services. The county found low engagement in this area. The goal of 
the proposed project is to explore the impact and effectiveness of a highly skilled and 
trained Peer Linkage Team helping to successfully transition these individuals into the 
appointment-based outpatient setting. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated there was a question about the budget during public 
comment. She stated the full copy of every county’s Innovation plan is on the website. 
The meeting packet and online meeting materials include links to those plans. The plan 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 25 
 

 

includes a detailed budget. She asked about the salary range for the three peer 
navigators because they are lumped together in the budget documents. 

Ms. Helton stated the three peer navigators will make $22 per hour. Other peer 
navigators are classified as a supervisor, who will make $23 to $24 per hour depending 
on experience, and a bilingual navigator, who will potentially also make more. The 
salary ranges will be between $22 and $25 per hour depending on the role, 
responsibilities, and language capacity. 

Chair Boyd asked about other like positions in San Francisco that fall into that salary 
range. Ms. Helton stated the starting salary for a Health Worker 1 is $21 per hour and is 
the lowest entry-level health worker position in the city and county. The peers who work 
in the contractor positions make anywhere from minimum wage to $20 per hour. 

Commissioner Mitchell stated, even with those salaries, they will not be able to live in 
San Francisco. She stated a little bit of something is better than a whole lot of nothing. 
She stated she hears her colleagues’ concerns but supports the proposed project. She 
stated the Commission seems to always face the difficult question of innovativeness of 
a project versus need. She stated in this case she defers to the need out of appreciation 
of what the county is attempting to do. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen agreed. She stated she saw the innovation in this project. 
She stated she also saw a reoccurring issue throughout the state around the salary of 
peers. San Francisco is one of the most expensive areas in California. She encouraged 
the county representatives, as leaders in San Francisco, to advocate to raise the bar for 
peers. There is a lot of value in peers. Counties also need to consider how peers can 
live a meaningful life in the community they are serving. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen moved to approve the proposed project. 

Commissioner Bunch stated she also saw the need. She stated it is frustrating because 
it is a need that is based on the failure of another system because, when someone is in 
an intensive case management program, the handholding should be done by that 
program, such as wraparound where they are not done with a client until the client is 
successfully with another program. She stated she sees that does not happen and so 
she sees the need for something like this project. 

Commissioner Danovitch stated he is supportive of the need and innovativeness. He 
stated what he would need to see to support the proposed project is a clearer 
evaluation plan, and what comes out of that evaluation is information that enables the 
county and/or others to decide to continue a program like this after the funding through 
this mechanism runs out. Without that, he stated he does not see how this addresses 
the question that it set out to answer. He stated it is addressable but he did not see it in 
the materials presented. He suggested that the county bring an improved plan back to 
the Commission at a future Commission meeting. 

Commissioner Mitchell stated, if she were to make a motion, she would require that the 
program is not delayed, but that the county come back within a certain period of time 
with an evaluation tool to present to the Commission. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 26 
 

 

Commissioner Bunch seconded Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen’s motion. 

Chair Boyd asked if Commissioners would like to make a friendly amendment that 
would include approval but that the Commission would like San Francisco County to 
present back including the information Commissioner Danovitch discussed. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek stated it is not necessary for that to be part of the motion. The 
Commission can approve it and then request that the county provide the full evaluation 
or more details. The approval is not contingent upon the county coming back because 
the Commission is still approving it. 

Chair Boyd asked if there is a difference between requesting and giving a choice. 
Chief Counsel Yeroshek suggested that the Commission ask in public and receive a 
public commitment. Executive Director Ewing recommended including directing staff to 
work with the county to follow up on the Commission’s behalf. Mr. Momoh gave a verbal 
commitment to come back to the Commission with an evaluation plan. 

Action:  Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Bunch, 
that: 

The MHSOAC approves San Francisco County’s Innovation plan as written with 
direction to staff to provide technical assistance to the county to fortify the evaluation 
methodology and report back to the Commission. 

Name: Intensive Case Management/Full-Service Partnership to Outpatient 
Transition Support 

 Amount: $3,750,000  
 Program Length: Five (5) Years 

Motion carried 8 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Bunch, Danovitch, 
Gordon, Madrigal-Weiss, and Mitchell, Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen, and Chair Boyd. 

Approval of Meeting Minutes 

The Commission approved the meeting minutes for February 8, 2018, and 
February 22, 2018. (See Agenda Item 1, above, for details.) 

ACTION 

7: Award Triage Program Grants 

Presenters: Tom Orrock, Chief, Commission Operations and Grants; 
Kristal Antonicelli, Project Lead 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen recused herself from the discussion and decision-making 
with regard to this agenda item and left the room pursuant to Commission policy. 

Chair Boyd acknowledge Norma Pate, Deputy Director, who was unable to be in 
attendance. He stated Deputy Director Pate has put in a tremendous amount of work to 
help the Commission move forward with the triage grant program.  



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 27 
 

 

Tom Orrock, Chief, Commission Operations and Grants, provided an overview, with a 
slide presentation, of the background of SB 82, the Investment in Mental Health Wellness 
Act of 2013, and the purpose, goals, and direction of the triage programs. He deferred to 
Ms. Antonicelli to present the results of the triage Request for Applications (RFA) for the 
adults/TAY age group. 

Kristal Antonicelli, Project Lead, continued the slide presentation and discussed the 
timeline; the RFA eligibility criteria, application requirements, collaboration, and 
implementation. Twenty applications were received and passed the administrative 
review process for this grant and all were scored as a result. The applications being 
recommended for funding today represent over 110 collaborations throughout the state 
of California. Over 200 positions are proposed in these programs and 35 percent of 
those are peer positions. 

Ms. Antonicelli stated the recommendation to award the Adults/TAY Triage Personnel 
Grants to the following counties: 

Alameda County, Berkeley City, Butte County, Calaveras County, Humboldt County, 
Los Angeles County, Merced County, Placer County, Sacramento County, San Francisco, 
Sonoma County, Stanislaus County, Tuolumne County, Ventura County, and Yolo County. 

Ms. Antonicelli stated the deadline to appeal is April 5th. She stated any additional funds 
that may become available for the Adults/TAY triage grants will be allocated first to 
Alameda County and Berkeley City, the two applicants who are partially funded due to 
lack of funding, and then to the next highest scoring counties that were not funded until 
all funds are allocated. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek stated the awardees listed on the motion slide are listed in 
alphabetical order, not in order of score. The reason these counties were recommended 
to be granted these funds is because they were the highest scores within each of their 
categories. 

Commissioner Bunch recused herself pursuant to Commission policy. 

Commissioner Questions 

Commissioner Alvarez asked about the challenges being addressed in the proposals 
and if there is an opportunity to share what one county is doing so there is a learning 
opportunity. She asked what the Commission’s responsibility is to share the lessons 
learned in order to take some of these Innovations to scale. 

Ms. Antonicelli stated there is a mandatory participation in statewide evaluation with 
submission of an application and subsequent award. That is still in progress but there 
will be a statewide evaluation that will look at program-to-program comparisons, best 
practices, cost savings, and things of that nature. 

 

 

 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 28 
 

 

Action:  Commissioner Danovitch made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Madrigal-
Weiss that: 

■ The MHSOAC awards the Adults/TAY Triage Personnel Grants to the following 
counties for the specified amounts listed and directs the Executive Director to 
issue a Notice of Intent to make the following awards: 

 

■ The MHSOAC establishes April 5, 2018 as the deadline for unsuccessful 
applicants to submit an Appeal consistent with the ten working days standard set 
forth in the Request for Applicants. 

■ The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to notify the Commission Chair and 
Vice Chair of any appeals within two working days of the submission and to 
adjudicate the appeals consistent with the procedure provided in the Request for 
Applications. 

■ The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to execute the contracts upon 
expiration of the appeal period or consideration of the appeals, whichever comes 
first. 

■ The MHSOAC directs any additional funds that may become available for the 
Adults/TAY triage grants to be allocated first to Alameda County and Berkeley 
City, the two applicants who are partially funded due to lack of funding, and then 
to the next highest scoring counties that were not funded until all funds are 
allocated.  

■ The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate with Alameda 
County and Berkeley City including, but not limited to, terms such as delayed 
implementation while awaiting possible additional funds. 

Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Danovitch, Gordon, 
Madrigal-Weiss, and Mitchell, and Chair Boyd. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen and Commissioner Bunch recused themselves. 

 

 

 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 29 
 

 

8: Legislation 

Presenters: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director; Norma Pate, Deputy Director 

Executive Director Ewing stated the Commission is in the middle of the policy process 
with the Legislature. One of the charges the Commission has asked is to inform and 
guide legislation. SB 1004, authored by Senators Wiener and Moorlach, was put on the 
agenda, which relates to the PEI program. Staff was hopeful to have amendments in 
print today, but because of delays in drafting staff was unable to do that. 

Executive Director Ewing stated he asked Angela Hill from Senator Wiener’s office, who 
is the lead author, and Adrienne Shilton from the Steinberg Institute, the sponsor of the 
bill, to discuss the proposal because it has implications for the Commission. He stated, 
although the bill is not yet in print, staff wanted the Commission to have an opportunity 
to engage and ask questions and also give the author and sponsor feedback. 

Senator Wiener’s Office 

Angela Hill, Fellow, Senator Wiener’s office, stated approximately one third of 
California’s prisons and approximately one fourth of the homeless population are 
severely mentally ill. Suicide is the third leading cause of death for those aged 15 to 24. 
The approach needs to change to reach individuals who are suffering from mental 
illness before they are severely mentally ill and have been going untreated. The author 
of SB 1004 wants to focus more in this bill on bolstering and improving PEI programs 
throughout the state. Shifting the focus to PEI will break the devastating cycle. 

Ms. Hill stated the need to look at PEI programs, give greater direction, and define best 
practices in order to see better outcomes and more stable lives lived. The Commission 
has an integral role in this process with the MHSA, can help achieve that goal, and can 
be the regulatory body to improve PEI programming. 

Steinberg Institute 

Adrienne Shilton, Government Affairs Director, Steinberg Institute, stated the state 
auditor noted that California lacks accountability for the $2 billion annual investment that 
the MHSA brings in, and no one agency has definitive authority for ensuring the 
strategic and effective use of those taxpayer dollars on services on measurable 
outcomes. The Steinberg Institute believes there is a failure not of funding and intent, 
but of leadership and strategic focus. The state auditor’s report highlighted this 
shortcoming and echoed the need for effective services and treatment and found that 
counties were diligently trying to carry out their mission and that progress was 
hampered by ineffective leadership and oversight. She stated the state auditor also 
pointed out that there was over $200 million of unspent funds that should have reverted 
back to the state. These were funds that counties should have spent but could not 
spend. The bulk of these dollars were PEI and Innovation. 

Ms. Shilton stated the Commission has been showing tremendous leadership, 
particularly when it comes to the Innovation component of the MHSA. The Steinberg 
Institute believes the Commission should have the same authority over the PEI 
component as it does over the Innovation component. Absent a statewide strategic 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 30 
 

 

vision on these best practices, counties will continue to struggle to spend their full 
amount of PEI funds. 

Ms. Shilton stated SB 1004 will strengthen the role of the Commission by requiring a 
clear vision on the priorities on the use of PEI funds. The priorities are early psychosis 
and mood disorder detection and intervention, outreach and engagement strategies that 
target TAY with the priority given to programs that partner with colleges, and childhood 
trauma prevention and early intervention. 

Commissioner Questions 

Chair Boyd thanked Senator Wiener for his care around mental health and for having 
the kind of robust work and dialogue to move the kinds of issues the Commission cares 
about and spends a lot of time talking about both as it relates to Innovation and PEI and 
associated regulations. He asked Ms. Hill to extend that back to Senator Wiener.  

Chair Boyd thanked the Steinberg Institute for sponsoring the bill and for providing 
leadership and support on this issue.  

Commissioner Gordon stated he had to leave but before he left wanted to let 
Commissioners know that he supported SB 1004. 

Chair Boyd asked if Commissioner Gordon would support the Commission continuing to 
work with Senator Wiener’s office and the Steinberg Institute as it relates to language 
and authorizing Chair Boyd to work alongside the Executive Director to move it forward. 

Commissioner Gordon stated he would. He stated his priority to ensure the language 
was such that the Commission’s role and responsibilities are clearly defined. 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated the youth focus outlined by this piece of legislation is exciting. 
That young people are being considered and prioritized is important. She stated she 
does not feel informed enough to comment in-depth but asked about anticipated 
updates. 

Ms. Shilton stated it is still early in the legislative process. The language presented 
today will be in print next week. She anticipated that the language will be added to 
throughout the summer as the bill moves forward. 

Ms. Gundavajhala asked what kind of youth input will be incorporated into the process. 
Ms. Shilton stated outreach has primarily been to organizations that represent youth or 
serve youth in the bill process. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated one of the areas in terms of the three PEI program 
categories under PEI funding that is missing is stigma reduction efforts. That is a big 
piece that is not there. She asked, besides those three categories, if the MHSOAC 
oversight and approving PEI programs are the main things being proposed in the bill. 

Ms. Shilton stated they were. She stated the bill is really about the strategic vision and 
additional programmatic and fiscal oversight done by the MHSOAC. She stated the 
Steinberg Institute welcomes feedback on the priorities. She stated the categories are 
defined in a broad way. The Steinberg Institute did not want to be in a position to tell 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 31 
 

 

counties specifically which PEI program to fund. The categories are framed out with 
core principles. 

Ms. Shilton stated presumably a stigma discrimination reduction program could be run 
within one of the three categories. She stated stigma discrimination reduction is not 
specifically called out but is a principle governing all three categories. 

Commissioner Alvarez suggested the recent Workforce Commission has a model that 
may be helpful and applicable. They have five priorities but two foundational principles. 
Diversity and technology in the workplace are foundational principles that go throughout 
all of the priorities. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen stated the bill seems to refocus PEI. She asked how that 
impacts the PEI regulation. During the three to four years that the Commission was 
going through that PEI regulation process, many counties stated they needed a lot of 
technical assistance and the Commission was not necessarily able to step up due to 
staffing capacity. She asked about the proposed budget with this bill for additional staff 
for the Commission to fully support counties. She asked where counties are in this 
discussion. 

Executive Director Ewing stated SB 1004 was put on the agenda because it explicitly 
identifies a role for the Commission and would bring about a significant change for the 
Commission to review and approve PEI spending. He stated staff has been working 
closely with the author’s office and the Steinberg Institute to try to convey to them the 
principles the Commission has endorsed, such as creating technical assistance and 
support for counties. Staff has talked with the author’s office about how to enhance the 
efficacy of the PEI dollars, which requires thinking about the other ways the 
Commission should engage in addition to plan review and approval. 

Chair Boyd stated the Commission has been doing a lot of work around child and 
adolescent mental health along with the work on Innovation. He stated there is a strong 
need for mental health Innovation around children and adolescence. The Commission 
has been discussing a $5 million Innovation Incubator that would be focused on 
competency to stand trial and other issues. He asked if the Commission would support 
putting $5 million toward a child mental health Innovation Incubator. 

Commissioner Alvarez stated one thing the Commission has been discussing is to 
modernize systems with the incredible technology out there. She suggested ensuring 
that, as technology moves forward, the Commission also considers technology for 
accessibility to communication, connecting individuals to resources, and other ways in 
which the mental health system can be strengthened. Technology can play a critical role 
in connecting rural communities through telehealth, connecting specialists, improving 
language access barriers, and other ways that technology can play a vital role. She 
challenged the Commission to think about technology within the context of mental 
health delivery to go further to ensuring that individuals get the care they need and 
deserve. 

Executive Director Ewing stated, in terms of the Chair’s direction, the way the Rules of 
Procedures work is that Commissioners would make a formal motion and vote on that 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 32 
 

 

and go on the record. Staff does a lot of technical assistance. Technical assistance is 
when staff is called in to departments and legislative offices to explain the MHSA and 
the work of the Commission. The Commission does not take a position in the 
discussions, including on this bill. Staff draws from the positions the Commission has 
already taken to try to inform the debate without expressing that the Commission has 
taken a formal position, unless the Commission has taken a formal position. Just as 
staff was directed through a vote to try to secure funding for stakeholder advocacy on 
behalf of immigrants and refugees and to reduce criminal justice involvement, the 
appropriate procedure would be for the Commission to take a formal vote for additional 
funds for Innovation around children and youth. 

Executive Director Ewing stated, in terms of Commissioner Alvarez’s comments, part of 
what staff is trying to do in terms of the Innovation Incubator is to explore those options. 
He stated he spent the day in the Bay Area this week talking with experts about 
technology, applications, data analytics, all of the ways in which the world has evolved, 
and how to catch up in terms of some of these tools. 

Executive Director Ewing stated part of the goal of the Innovation Incubator is to better 
connect and provide that technical assistance. Part of the tension heard with the two 
Innovation plans approved today was between the Commission’s approval authority 
versus the Commission’s ability to shape and support that innovation to happen. 

Commissioner Mitchell asked if there is a possibility of weaving in a conversation 
regarding the Commission’s ability to effect housing for the mentally challenged. 

Executive Director Ewing stated there is a validating act through the courts to ensure 
that the structure of the No Place Like Home bond proposal is legal and is being held up 
because of the lawsuit. He stated, in the context of Senator Wiener’s bill, lawmakers are 
frustrated that there is not a clear strategy, particularly in the PEI area. Increasingly, 
they recognize that there is also not a clear strategy in the Innovation space. There is 
frustration coming out of the auditor’s report that there are unspent funds and that some 
counties have no unspent funds while others are sitting on large amounts. 

Executive Director Ewing stated on April 17th the Joint Legislative Audit Committee in 
concert with Senator Beall’s Committee on Mental Health is holding an oversight 
hearing to look at this issue. There are more policymakers this year that are aware of 
what is happening in mental health and investing in strategic opportunities around 
prevention, including housing. 

Executive Director Ewing stated the way he reads the intent of Senator Wiener’s bill is, 
in addition to the language, that they are asking the Commission to help set a strategic 
vision and operational strategy to ensure that these dollars are used more effectively. 
There is nothing in there that says not to include housing. He stated, if this bill moves 
forward, there is an opportunity for the Commission to begin to define that, particularly 
around housing, as a PEI strategy. There are examples around the country where 
housing is a foundational support such as the Housing First model. The presentations 
today affirmed that housing and stability are key drivers of trauma and adverse 
childhood experiences for children. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 33 
 

 

Ms. Gundavajhala stated there is funding for PEI and funding for TAY, but prevention is 
a lifelong task that may not necessarily be segmented by age. Presentations today 
brought up that many things can go undiagnosed for a long time, especially since there 
are often no supports, access, or language to describe experiences and needs.  

Ms. Gundavajhala stated, in framing the whole idea of TAY as a population to serve, 
she hoped the goal is that there is no transition ultimately and that there is a smooth 
and seamless transition from a child into being an adult. The fact that TAY have been 
identified as a specific and vulnerable population rather than looking at this transition as 
a natural part of life means that there are specific vulnerabilities to the transition. Until 
the transition is completely eliminated, the work is not done. 

Public Comment 

Poshi Walker stated it is difficult to make public comment before learning what the 
Commission will vote on. The speaker asked how the Commission can support SB 1004 
without language. 

Chair Boyd clarified that the Commission will not be voting to support a bill that is not 
written. The Commission will be voting, if anything, to authorize the Executive Director 
with direction from the Chair to work with Senator Wiener’s office to continue to evolve 
and develop the bill. He stated the frame of the question that may be most relevant for 
public comment is that this bill at its core would provide at the Commission level 
approval for PEI plans. The bill would shift PEI plan approval to the Commission, similar 
to county Innovation plans. 

Poshi Walker echoed Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen’s comments. The speaker stated 
concern about the Commission’s capacity to take this on, if additional staff would be 
part of the bill, and if the Commission would need to meet more often, since the agenda 
is full with Innovation plan approval. The speaker also stated concern about the 
language of “evidence” and “proven” and hoped that this bill would include recognition 
of community-defined practices and not just evidence-based practices. 

Poshi Walker stated SB 1004 currently focuses on college youth. The speaker stated 
LGBTQ youth are overrepresented in the foster youth system, the juvenile justice 
system, and the homeless population. They are often bullied and harassed within the 
school environment and are under high risk of school dropout. Many LGBTQ youth do 
not make it to college yet are at high risk for mental health challenges. These disparities 
are increased for LGBTQ youth of color. The speaker strongly urged that youth outside 
of the college system be included in this bill. 

Dorinda Wiseman, Deputy Executive Officer, California Behavioral Health Planning 
Council (CBHPC), stated the CBHPC is concerned about some of the language in the 
bill as it stands, disparities, whether or not counties will have flexibility and, while 
acknowledging the need for leadership, questions the Commission’s capacity to expand 
its responsibilities. The speaker stated older adults are missing out on being assessed 
and provided interventions at their first break. 

Stacie Hiramoto stated REMHDCO agrees that leadership and PEI programs need 
improving. The greatest hope for new programs that reduce disparities for underserved 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 34 
 

 

racial, ethnic, and cultural communities lies within the PEI and Innovation components 
of the MHSA. The speaker was concerned that the bill may make it more difficult for 
such programs because they do not fit under one of the three priority categories. This is 
defined in the Fact Sheet for SB 1004 as not enough counties use evidence-based 
models of early psychosis care. PEI was not meant to favor evidence-based models or 
early intervention for psychosis over prevention leading to better mental health in 
general. The speaker requested an open forum for more public comment and to review 
the foundational document created by this Commission. 

Joy Torres stated the MHSA is about homelessness, suicide rate, deaths, and 
treatment. There are many lawsuits in progress because legally individuals who are 
homeless can use PEI funds. Individuals who are homeless need someone with 
authority to tell Orange County to use it. The federal judge did and now the 
Orange County Board of Supervisors has issued $70 million for housing, but they want 
to do tents. The speaker suggested an Innovation fund to provide homeless PEI shelter 
care and permanent housing for older adults and individuals who have gone through 
trauma. 

Andrea Crook stated, when discussing legislative priorities, it is hard for stakeholders to 
provide meaningful input without the necessary information. The speaker reached out to 
the Commission at the last meeting and requested an objective policy be made 
available at this meeting that would provide an opportunity to not only hear from 
stakeholders but to have input on the agenda for legislative priorities. The speaker 
stated there is not enough information and informed stakeholders are important prior to 
making policy. 

Rory O'Brien also stated concern about the stakeholder process. The speaker 
addressed the conversation that occurred on the Innovation Incubator for children and 
youth. The speaker asked that the Commission be strategic regarding the children and 
youth Innovation Incubator idea and consider the amount of Innovation funds across the 
state that are not being spent. 

Rory O’Brien stated Executive Director Ewing reported that some counties have spent 
all of their Innovation funds, but there are many counties that have not. It may be far 
more strategic for the Commission to request that counties propose projects specific to 
children and youth rather than putting a large amount of funds into a new incubator. The 
speaker is not sure whether the incubator is necessary or not and looks forward to more 
conversation on whether it is. 

Tai’Rance "Chuckii" Kelly, Sr., NorCal MHA ACCESS Ambassador, spoke about gaps 
in services and communities and the housing issue. The speaker stated the need for 
more services for people of color. 

Commissioner Discussion 

Chair Boyd stated he did hear Andrea Crook’s request at the last Commission meeting 
about ensuring the Commission has transparency around legislative issues. He asked 
Andrea Crook’s organization and other organizations that have legislative issues to 
send feedback and suggestions to Commission staff, ideally within the next two weeks. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 35 
 

 

He stated he will review the feedback with the Executive Director prior to the next 
Commission meeting to help consider how to address those in meaningful ways moving 
forward. 

Chair Boyd asked Chief Counsel Yeroshek for staff’s proposed motion on SB 1004. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek stated the proposed motion would be to authorize the Chair to 
work with the Executive Director to continue the efforts in working with the author of SB 
1004 to support the principles in the bill and to refine the language. She stated the 
motion is to continue to support the principles, not the specific language, because the 
amendment language is not published yet. 

Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen asked for a review of the principles of SB 1004. 

Adrienne Shilton stated the two key principles are (1) to establish a strategic vision for 
PEI and (2) to change where the oversight and approval happens for county PEI plans 
providing the Commission approval of those plans. 

Action:  Commissioner Danovitch made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Mitchell, 
that: 

The MHSOAC authorizes the Chair to work with the Executive Director to continue 
efforts in working with the author of Senate Bill 1004 to support the principles in the bill, 
(e.g. establish a strategic vision for PEI and have the Commission approve PEI plans)  
and refine the language. 

Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Danovitch, 
Madrigal-Weiss, and Mitchell, Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen, and Chair Boyd. 

Action:  Commissioner Mitchell made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Alvarez, 
that: 

The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to work with the Legislature to seek $5 
million to support a children’s Innovation incubator. 

Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

The following Commissioners voted “Yes”: Commissioners Alvarez, Danovitch, 
Madrigal-Weiss, and Mitchell, Vice Chair Aslami-Tamplen, and Chair Boyd. 

INFORMATION 

9: Stakeholder Contract Update 

Presenters: Tom Orrock, Chief, Commission Operations and Grants; 
Angela Brand, Stakeholder Contract Lead 

Chair Boyd tabled this item to the next Commission meeting. 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

Sandra Marley asked if the stakeholder contract updates will be posted online for 
stakeholders who cannot physically be in attendance. Chair Boyd stated they will. 



MHSOAC Meeting Minutes 
March 22, 2018 
Page 36 
 

 

Andrea Crook stated NorCal MHA would like Commissioners’ email addresses in a 
distribution list to forward information about the work that ACCESS California is doing. 
Currently, she emails Commission staff and staff can forward information. For example, 
NorCal MHA is hosting a leadership webinar on April 12th and doing leadership trainings 
in all of the five regions. 

Chief Counsel Yeroshek suggested that Andrea Crook send staff an email with 
information on how to sign up to NorCal MHA Listserv  and staff will forward it to 
Commissioners who can then sign up. 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:11 p.m. 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 2 
 Action 

 
 April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Los Angeles County Innovation Plans 

 

 
Summary: The Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability 
Commission (MHSOAC or Commission) will consider approval of Los 
Angeles County’s request to fund the following Innovative projects for a total 
amount of $12,373,988.  

(A)  Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation - $2,499,102 
(B)  Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership:   $9,874,886 

The Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) requires that an INN project does 
one of the following: (a) introduces a new mental health practice or 
approach, including but not limited to prevention and early intervention; 
(b) makes a change to an existing mental health practice or approach, 
including, but not limited to, adaptation for a new setting or community; 
(c) introduces to the mental health system a promising community-driven 
practice/approach, that has been successful in non-mental health contexts 
or settings; or (d) participates in a housing program designed to stabilize a 
person’s living situation while also providing supportive services on site. The 
law also requires that an INN project address one of the following as its 
primary purpose: (1) increase access to underserved groups, (2) increase 
the quality of services including measurable outcomes, (3) promote 
interagency and community collaboration, or (4) increase access to 
services.  

 Los Angeles proposes to develop and implement a Mobile Transcranial 
Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) Program to reduce symptoms in clients 
with major depressive disorders. This project will be implemented in 
two or more phases: first phase will involve mobile TMS delivered to 
adult clients currently receiving FSP services. The second phase will 
involve the expansion of mobile TMS treatment to clients living in 
Board and Care facilities. 

 Los Angeles County proposes to implement a Full Service 
Partnership (FSP) model comprised of peers with lived experiences 
as mental health consumers and/or justice-involved individuals to 
assist in serving the justice-involved population who meet the criteria 
to receive FSP services within the County. 
 

Presenters for Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Project:  
 Jonathan E. Sherin, M.D., Ph.D., Director, Los Angeles County 
 Marc Heiser, M.D., Ph.D., Psychiatrist, Los Angeles County 
 Debbie Innes-Gomberg, Ph.D., Deputy Director, Los Angeles County 



2 | P a g e  
 

 
Presenters for Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership:  

 Debbie Innes-Gomberg, Ph.D., Deputy Director, Los Angeles County 
 

Enclosures (5): (1) Biographies for Los Angeles County Innovation 
Presenters; (2) Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Project Brief 
(3) Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Staff Analysis (4) Peer 
Support Specialist Full Service Partnership Project Brief; (5) Peer Support 
Specialist Full Service Partnership Staff Analysis. 

Handout (2): PowerPoint will be presented at the meeting for each Project 
 
Additional Materials (1): Links to the County’s complete Innovation Plans 
are available on the MHSOAC website at the following URLs:  
 

http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/los-angeles-county-inn-plan-
description-mobile-transcranial-magnetic-stimulation 
 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/los-angeles-county-inn-plan-
description-innovation-5-project-peer-support 
 

Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC approves Los Angeles County’s Innovation 
Projects, as follows: 
 

Name:   Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation 
Amount:   $2,499,102 
Project Length:  Three (3) Years 
 
Name:   Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership 
Amount:   $9,874,886 
Project Length:  Four (4) Years 
 
 
 



 
 

Biographies for Los Angeles County Presenters 

Debbie Innes-Gomberg, Ph.D. 

Dr. Innes-Gomberg received her Ph.D. from CSPP-LA in 1992 and is the Deputy Director 
over Program Development and Outcomes for the Los Angeles County Department of 
Mental Health. Over her 25 year career she has assumed leadership roles in Jail Mental 
Health Services, Adult System of Care, served as a District Chief for the 
Long Beach/South Bay areas of Los Angeles County and oversees the administration of 
the Mental Health Services Act. Dr. Innes-Gomberg is the Co-Chair of the County 
Behavioral Health Directors’ Association’s (CBHDA) MHSA Committee, including a 
member of its Governing Board. She is a leader in LA County and across the State on 
the MHSA and on outcome and evaluation of mental health programs. 
 
Jonathan Sherin, M.D., Ph.D. 
 
Jonathan Sherin, M.D., Ph.D., is a longtime wellbeing advocate and – as of November 2016– 
the new Director of the Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health (LACDMH). In this 
role, he oversees the largest public mental health system in the United States with a budget 
approaching $2.5 billion and serving over 250,000 residents. 
 
Prior to joining LACDMH, Dr. Sherin was Chief Medical Officer and Executive Vice President 
of Military Communities for Volunteers of America, one of our nation’s largest direct 
service non-profits. Over the years, he has also served in a variety of clinical, academic, 
teaching, and administrative leadership positions. In his last such post, Dr. Sherin directed 
mental health for the Miami VA Healthcare System and functioned as Vice-Chairman of 
the Department of Psychiatry at the University of Miami. 
 
As an expert on veteran issues, Dr. Sherin has testified to Congress on challenges faced 
by members of the military community, specifically as they relate to trauma, recovery, 
reintegration, and the risk of homelessness and suicide. As a researcher, Dr. Sherin has 
published in the fields of neurobiology and psychiatry – including a seminal article in 
“Science” magazine that features his work identifying a core sleep circuit in mammals (the 
“sleep switch”). He also received the prestigious Kempf Award from the American 
Psychiatric Association for his conceptual model of the psychotic process. 
 
Dr. Sherin is currently a volunteer clinical professor of psychiatry and behavioral sciences 
at both UCLA and the University of Miami.  
 
Marc Heiser, M.D. 
 
Dr. Marc Heiser obtained his BA in English and Molecular and Cell Biology at 
UC Berkeley. He obtained his Medical Degree (MD) from UCSF where he also obtained 



 
a Ph.D. in Neuroscience. He then went on to complete his residency training in psychiatry 
and a fellowship in child and adolescent psychiatry at UCLA.  
 
Dr. Heiser has been involved with Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) research 
since 2003 and was trained to use TMS to treat psychiatric disorders as a clinical fellow 
at UCLA in the Neuromodulation Division. Dr. Heiser has received awards from the 
American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry and the Brain & Behavior 
Research Foundation for his research with TMS and his work has been published in a 
number of prestigious journals. Currently, Dr. Heiser works for the Los Angeles County 
Department of Mental Health in the Juvenile Justice Mental Health Program and is 
developing a clinical TMS program. He is an attending physician in the Mood Disorder 
Clinic at the Veterans Affairs Greater Los Angeles Health System where he is also helping 
to start at clinical TMS program. Finally, Dr. Heiser is a clinical faculty at UCLA where is 
teaches fellows in psychiatry.  
 
 
 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

1 
 

Los Angeles County Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) proposes to implement an FDA-
approved treatment that has become a standard treatment in private practice and in academic 
centers but has not been used in public mental health settings, mobile Transcranial Magnetic 
Stimulation (TMS).  It should be noted that TMS is not at all related or similar to Electro-convulsive 
Treatment (ECT). 

TMS is FDA approved for the treatment of depression and is a non-invasive treatment that can 
enhance or suppress the activity of neurons in targeted areas of the brain through the use of 
electromagnetic stimulation. According to the American Psychiatric Association best practice 
guidelines for the treatment of major depressive disorder, TMS is now a first-line treatment for 
depression that has not responded to one antidepressant medication (APA 2010) as well as being 
effective for treatment-resistant depression. In addition, recent clinical studies suggest that TMS 
can be an effective treatment for a number of other psychiatric disorders, including substance use 
disorders, schizophrenia, obsessive-compulsive disorder, and post-traumatic stress disorder.   

TMS uses precisely targeted magnetic pulses similar to those used in Magnetic Resonance 
Imaging (MRI) to stimulate key areas of the brain that are underactive in clients with depression. 
The client reclines comfortably in the treatment chair and is awake and alert during treatment.  An 
electromagnetic coil is then placed directly to the target area of the brain where the device 
generates magnetic fields that alter the electrical activity of neurons. The enhancing or 
suppressing of neuron activity depends upon a number of variables including the frequency of the 
TMS pulses. During treatment, the client hears a clicking sound and feels a tapping sensation on 
the head. The client can go back to their normal activities immediately after treatment.  Treatment 
can last between 10-45 minutes and is administered once per day for 5 consecutive days per 
week for 4-8 weeks.  

LACDMH proposes to implement a mobile TMS program in two or more phases.  The first phase 
will involve TMS delivered to clients meeting the criteria specified under Target Population in a 
mobile van outfitted with the technology, delivered to fully consenting clients receiving services in 
adult outpatient programs, including FSP programs.   The mobility of the van will result in the 
service being delivered wherever the client desires. During the first 6 months of the project, DMH 
will evaluate service, particularly from the perspective of the clients treated and will report back to 
the MHSOAC the preliminary findings.  The second phase would involve expanding from clients 
in adult outpatient services to clients living in Board and Care facilities. 

LACDMH estimates serving 384 clients a year across the county.   

 
Target Population 
 
The target population includes individuals receiving services in an FSP program or residing in 
board and care facilities that have a depression as a major part of their psychiatric symptoms and 
one or more of the following: 
 

 Resistance to treatment with psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by a lack 
of a clinically significant response to at least two psychopharmacologic agents in 
the current depressive episode; or 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

2 
 

 Inability to tolerate psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by two trials of 
psychopharmacologic agents from two different agent classes; or 

 History of response to TMS in a previous depressive episode; or 
 A history of response to ECT in a previous or current episode or an inability to 

tolerate ECT, or is a candidate for, but has declined ECT and TMS is considered 
a less invasive treatment option. 

 
However, because of the nature of the TMS treatment, we would exclude individuals with a history 
of seizure disorder and those with metal implants in the head or upper torso (e.g., cardiac 
pacemakers).   
 
Innovation Primary Purpose 
 
Overall, the primary purpose of this Innovation project is to improve the quality of  mental health 
services and achieve greater outcomes by providing new and effective treatment to clients with 
chronic and severe mental illness.  
 
Qualification as an Innovation Project 
This project seeks to introduce a new approach or approach that is new to the overall mental 
health system, including, but not limited to, prevention and early intervention. 
 
The goals of this project include: 

 
 Provide access to new and effective treatment to clients with chronic and severe mental 

illness 
 Increase adherence to treatment by bringing the treatment to the client 
 Reduce use of other resources (i.e., psychiatric hospitalization, Emergency Room visits, 

intensive supportive services, etc.) 
 Improve social and occupational functioning that would lead to successful community 

reintegration 
 Increase the quality of life of clients with histories of poorly treated depression. 

The project would be a 3 year demonstration project. 
 
Informed Consent Process 
In order to ensure that each client is freely participating in this treatment, the treating psychiatrist 
will obtain informed consent from the client. This will require that the client understand the nature 
of the treatment, its potential for benefit, and its potential risks, the treating psychiatrist will obtain 
informed consent for each client.  The procedure will be described in detail the procedures 
involved in the treatment including the use of a magnetic coil, the sensations associated with the 
treatment (tactile, auditory), the approximate duration of each session, the frequency of sessions, 
the approximate number of sessions and the potential need for maintenance treatments in order 
to prevent relapse.   
 
Potential risks that will be discussed include the following:  
 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

3 
 

 The potential for a tapping sensation that can be annoying or painful at the site of 
stimulation (reported by approximately one third of clients and usually improves over 
course of treatment).  The person administering the treatments may make adjustments in 
order to ensure that the treatment is tolerable for each client. 

 The treatment can also produce contractions of superficial facial or jaw muscles occurring 
only during the treatment and that do not persist after treatments.  

 Headaches may also occur as a result of the treatment (reported in approximately 50% of 
clients).  These usually improve over the course of treatment and can be alleviated by 
over-the-counter pain medication 

 TMS produces a loud clicking sound.  Therefore we require clients to wear ear plugs during 
the treatments.  There is no evidence that TMS permanently affects hearing if earplugs 
are worn.   

 A seizure is the most serious risk associated with TMS.  The risk of seizures, however, is 
exceedingly low (<1/30000 treatments).   

 There is also a risk that the client may not improve or may experience worsening mood or 
anxiety.  If these issues arise, they will be addressed by the treating TMS psychiatrist. 

 Finally, as with all treatments, there are unforeseeable risks that we do not yet know about 
or that are not currently recognized.  If possible, we will continue to follow the cohort of 
clients in this project longitudinally in order to further define such as yet unknown risks.   

 
Potential Benefits of TMS that will be discussed: 
 
 TMS has been shown to lead to a remission of depressive symptoms in between 30-68% 

of clients with treatment refractory depression.   
 TMS may also improve symptoms of other psychiatric disorders including PTSD, 

psychosis, substance use disorders, autism, and eating disorders.  However, more studies 
are needed in order to know how likely TMS is to be effective for these issues 

 
 
The Unmet Need 
 
Treatment refractory depression (TRD), defined as depression that has not responded to at least 
one antidepressant medication, affects approximately 4.2 million Americans. According to Los 
Angeles County Department of Mental Health (LACDMH) records, in the 2016-2017 fiscal year, 
approximately 42,000 individuals are being treated for major depressive disorder and an 
additional 23,000 individuals are receiving treatment for other disorders in which depression plays 
a key role (bipolar disorder and schizoaffective disorder).  Based upon the literature, we estimate 
that at least 35% of these individuals have depressive symptoms that are treatment refractory.   
 

  



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

4 
 

Mobile TMS Implementation Process 
The components of this Innovation project are as follows: 
1. Purchase TMS device and accessories including modified van that will transport the treatment 

to clinics, field-based locations and/or Board and Care facilities in Los Angeles County in 
phase 2. 

	
2. A lead psychiatrist will oversee initial TMS treatment sessions and track progress by collecting 

symptoms and functional outcomes that can, in turn, be used to judge the efficacy of this 
program. 	
	

3. Hire and train staff (Nurse, Psychiatric Technician) to operate equipment. 
 

4. Identify adult outpatient program, including FSP programs with higher numbers of clients who 
meet criteria listed in Target Population above and engage and educate clients, staff and 
family members about TMS.  The DMH Peer Support Specialist will be part of a team 
responsible for engagement 
 

5. Once clients have been identified and agree to treatment, they will be seen 1 times per day 
for 5 consecutive days per week for 4-8 weeks.  

 
6. As clients begin treatment, client satisfaction, and reactions and weekly outcome data will 

guide use of TMS.   
 

Evaluating the Efficacy of TMS 
A depression outcome measure will be administered at the beginning of treatment and weekly 
throughout the course of treatment.  Measures may include: Quick Inventory of Depressive 
Symptoms (QIDS-16, client rated), the Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS, clinician rated), 
and a measure for adaptive daily living and quality of life. Additional rating scales may be used to 
track comorbid symptoms as appropriate. Client satisfaction with TMS will also be assessed at 
the end of each session, utilizing a verbal check in and at the end of treatment.  These assessment 
tools will enable clinicians to track improvements in depressive symptoms and functional 
outcomes that can, in turn, be used to judge the efficacy of this program. 
 

Overarching Learning Questions 

1. Will these individuals be adherent with a mobile TMS treatment program? 
2. Is TMS an effective treatment for this population? 
3. Does TMS for depression lead to improvement in comorbid symptoms (i.e., substance use, 

psychotic symptoms, etc.)? 
4. If TMS is an effective treatment for this population, should the program be expanded to treat 

a larger part of the population? 
 

Stakeholder involvement in proposed Innovation Project 

LACDMH’s stakeholder process meets Welfare and Institutions Code 5848 on composition of the 
System Leadership Team (SLT) and meaningful involvement of stakeholders related to mental 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

5 
 

health planning, policy, implementation, monitoring, quality improvement, evaluation and budget 
allocations. The composition of the System Leadership Team meets California Code of 
Regulations Section 3300 on stakeholder diversity.  Planning for this project began in the spring 
of 2017, but has been a focus of Dr. Sherin since becoming the Director of the Los Angeles 
County Department of Mental Health. A proposal was presented to the System Leadership Team 
on October 18, 2017 with a request for feedback. The feedback received was overwhelmingly 
positive.  Stakeholders expressed an interest in expanding the target population to include other 
severely mentally ill individuals in other mental health settings than just B&C residents. In 
response to this feedback, it was explained that one of the goals of the project was to collect 
enough data to support an expansion of the target population. Feedback beyond that has been 
categorized in the following manner: 

 Populations of interest: 
o Request to include FSP clients that have been identified as having more severe 

symptomatology. 
o Individuals who may reside in Institutions of Mental Disease (IMD) who may benefit 

from TMS treatment. 
 Concern regarding painful side effects of the treatment. 
 Clarification and differentiation between Electroconvulsive Therapy (ECT) and TMS 

treatment.  
 Consider other funding sources to pay for TMS treatment.  

 
Feedback has been considered and much of it incorporated into the proposal or will be 
incorporated into the implementation phase of this project. 

In addition, we plan to solicit peer involvement by engaging individuals with lived experience in 
our peer resource center and those who have undergone TMS treatment to assist others that may 
be contemplating this type of treatment. 

The Department’s Mental Health Commission Executive Committee was briefed on January 11, 
2018, with a formal presentation to the Commission on January, 25, 2018.  Board Deputy briefings 
were completed during January, 2018.  

After an initial presentation to the MHSOAC and the associated feedback, the Department chose 
to add a community worker/peer support specialist staff to the TMS team, reflecting a change to 
the overall budget of the proposed project.  The Department also chose to broaden the client 
populations who may elect to participate in TMS to include clients in the adult outpatient mental 
health system including adult FSP programs (who meet criteria for TMS), again, based on 
stakeholder feedback. Taking a step further, based on key feedback from client advocates, DMH 
chose to phase the project such that services start in adult outpatient mental health settings and 
not in Board and Care facilities. 

After, the February, 2018 presentation to the MHSOAC, four additional presentations have been 
made recently.  A presentation was made to the Service Area 3 Advisory Committee on March 8, 
2018.  Positive feedback was received, with questions centering around the process of treatment 
including clarifying the frequency and length of treatment, sustainability of long term benefits and 
involvement of peers.  On March 15, 2018, DMH held an additional peer focus group comprised 
of Wellness Outreach Workers, and paid peer advocates.  DMH received positive feedback with 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

6 
 

questions revolved around treatment side effects, ability to be on medication while receiving TMS 
treatment, funding, and length of treatment. Seven (7) post surveys were completed by peers as 
well as written comments were collected.  Survey results: 71% of peers reported that they would 
recommend TMS treatment to a friend or family member, if they needed it; 86% felt that this was 
an important treatment that can be beneficial for many people; and 100% reported that they would 
support DMH in offering this treatment to those in need. On April 4th and 6th, 2018 presentations 
were made to a local clinic and to Service Area Advisory Committee 8, with positive feedback and 
questions asked for clarification regarding the process and length of TMS.  

Sustainability 
 
Analytics associated with mobile TMS, coupled with a comprehensive evaluation, will inform 
actions taken by the Department at the conclusion of the third year of the project. Factors to be 
taken into account will include user satisfaction and outcomes, advances in TMS at the conclusion 
of the project and the overall effectiveness of this treatment for specific populations. At the 
conclusion of the third year, DMH will explore continuing deemed services by maintaining 
operating staff through the MHSA Community and Service Supports (CSS) plan. 

Timeframe of the Project and Project Milestones 

Upon approval from the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission, the 
Department will issue a solicitation to identify one or more companies with capacity to immediately 
initiate the deliverables in this project proposal including retrofitting a Transit Van with TMS 
medical device and accessories. The projected timeframe is as follows but, due to the innovative 
nature of this project, actual implementation steps may deviate in terms of sequence and/or 
timeframes: 

 October 27, 2017: 30 Day Public Posting of Proposed Project 
 February 22, 2018: Presentation to the MHSOAC 
 March 14, 2018:  Re-posting of proposal with the addition of a peer staff 
 April 26, 2018:  Re-presentation to the MHSOAC 
 June, 2018:  Van retrofitting with TMS medical device. 
 July-August, 2018: Hire and train staff to administer treatment and collect outcome 

measures. In addition, identify eligible clients at board and care facilities that are willing to 
participate in TMS treatment.  

 July-August, 2018: Launch project by beginning treatment and tracking progress weekly.  
 FY 2018-2019: Development, testing and implementation of deliverables. 
 FY 2019-2020 through FY 2020 – 2021: Continued use, evaluation and scaling and a final 

evaluation to the Department. 

As with all components of the MHSA, implementation and preliminary outcomes will be reviewed 
with the LACDMH’s SLT periodically and will be reported on in MHSA Annual Updates/MHSA 
Three Year Program and Expenditure Plans. 

Budget 
 
Fiscal Year 2018-19:   
Modified Van:     $89,195   (One-time cost) 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

7 
 

Magventure TMS (1 device):   $69,433   (One-time cost) 
Laptop      $2,000     (One-time cost)    
Van Maintenance Plan:    $6,000    
Mental Health Psychiatrist:   $316,775 (Salary and Employee Benefits)          
Mental Health Counselor, RN:  $151,234 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Clinical Psychologist II   $133,863 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Psychiatric Technician II:   $65,322   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Community Worker    $53,950   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Intermediate Typist Clerk:   $51,014   (Salary and Employee Benefits)  
Operating Cost for 1 clinical position:  $4000      (One-time cost) 
 Total Cost:  $942,786 
  
Fiscal Year 2019-20:    
Van Maintenance Plan:    $6,000    
Mental Health Psychiatrist:   $316,775 (Salary and Employee Benefits)          
Mental Health Counselor, RN:  $151,234 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Clinical Psychologist II   $133,863 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
The Psychologist will assume responsibility for the evaluation  
Psychiatric Technician II:   $65,322   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Intermediate Typist Clerk:   $51,014   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Community Worker    $53,950   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
 
Total Cost:     $778,158 
 
Fiscal Year 2020-21:   
Van Maintenance Plan:    $6,000    
Mental Health Psychiatrist:   $316,775 (Salary and Employee Benefits)          
Mental Health Counselor, RN:  $151,234 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Clinical Psychologist II   $133,863 (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
The Psychologist will assume responsibility for the evaluation  
Psychiatric Technician II:   $65,322   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Intermediate Typist Clerk:   $51,014   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
Community Worker    $53,950   (Salary and Employee Benefits) 
 
Total Cost:     $778,158 
 
Summary by Fiscal Year: 
FY 18-19 Estimated Cost               $942,786 
FY 19-20 Estimated Cost               $778,158  
FY 20-21 Estimated Cost              $778,158  

 
Total 3 year Project Cost:    $2,499,102  

Note- the cost of the evaluation is the cost of the Psychologist conducting it:  $401,590 
 
 
Budget Narrative: 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

8 
 

(1) Mental Health Psychiatrist:  The psychiatrist will participate in outreach and education in B&C 
facilities with staff, providers and potential clients.  The psychiatrist will also perform in-person 
evaluations to determine if a referred client meets criteria for and may benefit from TMS treatment.  
The psychiatrist will prescribe and manage the TMS treatments.  Initially, the psychiatrist will be 
on site for treatments.  However, the psychiatrist may be off site and manage daily TMS sessions 
via tele-psychiatry in conjunction with the mental health nurse and psychiatric technician who will 
always be on site.    

(1) Mental Health Counselor, RN:  The Mental Health Counselor RN will deliver the daily TMS 
treatment sessions and perform daily assessments of the client’s symptoms and any side effects 
that will be communicated to the psychiatrist.  They will also administer client rating scales.  This 
team member will also be trained to provide first-aid and Basic Life Support (BLS) in case of 
emergency. 

(1) Clinical Psychologist II:  The Clinical Psychologist will assume responsibility for the evaluation 
of this project and will establish a database into which rating scales and other clinical data will be 
entered in order to track client progress/response to treatment, side effects, and treatment 
parameters.  They will analyze this data which can then be de-identified and used for outcomes 
measurement reporting.  The Clinical Psychologist will also provide outreach and education 
regarding outcomes of this project to other providers throughout L.A. County and the state of 
California.   

(1) Psychiatric Technician II:  The Psychiatric Technician will be driving the mobile TMS unit to 
treatment sites throughout L.A. County, will assist the Mental Health Counselor, RN with setup of 
the TMS device for each treatment session, will help administer clinical rating scales and will 
interface with B&C staff regarding client progress.   

(1) Intermediate Typist Clerk:  The Intermediate Typist Clerk will provide administrative support 
to the mobile TMS team.  This includes, but is not limited to, securing TMS education presentation 
locations; preparing educational packets; registering attendees; sending registration 
confirmations; setting up the audio visual equipment for meetings; provide phone coverage for 
mobile TMS team; assist in the preparation of TMS related community meetings; responsible for 
maintaining records and the upkeep for the county TMS van; and serve as backup timekeeper 
and travel coordinator for the team.   

(1) Community Worker:  The Community Worker will be someone with lived experience that will 
outreach and engage potential clients, family members and/or caregivers to orient them to TMS 
treatment process. They will assist and support the TMS staff in checking in with clients receiving 
TMS services, in conducting community presentations and disseminating TMS informational 
materials. Additional duties include, but are not limited to, facilitating relations between the agency 
and client; serves as an advocate for client access to departmental and community resources; 



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES – DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH 
 

 
MHSA Innovation 4 Project 

Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
 

9 
 

acts as interpreter for client population; supports/assists in administering required outcome 
measures; and may accompany clients to TMS treatment sessions to provide additional support.    

This project will be entirely funded by MHSA Innovation Plan.  

  

 

 
 



  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS— LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
 

Name of Innovative (INN) Project: Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation 

Total INN Funding Requested:   $2,499,102 

Duration of Innovative Project:   Three (3) Years 
 

Review History: 

Approved by the County Board of Supervisors:   Pending MHSOAC Approval  
County submitted Innovation (INN Project):    April 13, 2018 
MHSOAC consideration of INN Project:    April 26, 2018 
 
Los Angeles previously presented this Innovation Project to the Commission on February 
22, 2018. Rather than proceeding to vote on the project due to Commissioner comments 
and public feedback, Los Angeles County chose to withdraw the project. Substantial 
changes have since been incorporated and project was reposted for 30-day public 
comment. The County is now returning to present the revised project plan to the 
Commission, with substantial changes incorporated as a result of stakeholder feedback 
and client advocacy.  
 
Project Introduction:  

In order to reduce symptoms in clients with major depressive disorders, Los Angeles County 
proposes to develop and implement a Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) 
Program in two phases. Initially, TMS treatment will be provided for clients who are 
receiving mental health outpatient services, including Full Service Partnership programs, 
and then treatment will expand to include interested clients living in Board and Care 
Facilities who have a history of being resistant to treatment.  

Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation is a Food and Drug Administration (FDA) Approved 
treatment and is used to treat refractory depression. Although TMS treatment initially 
developed in 1985, the first TMS device was approved by the FDA on October 9, 2008 
and has been primarily utilized in private practice and not available in public mental health 
settings. 

The County states that the overarching goal of this project is to reduce the burden of 
symptoms of clients with treatment refractory depression with the hopes of increasing 
their social and occupational functioning. Treatment refractory depression, also known as 
treatment resistant depression, is a term used in clinical psychiatry to describe cases of 
major depressive disorder that do not respond adequately to appropriate courses of at 
least two antidepressants.  



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

2 | P a g e  

 

TMS treatment is still relatively new and there is still much to learn, and although it 
appears to be safe, the long-term side effects are unknown. There was conflicting 
evidence regarding the use and efficacy of TMS; however, the substantial clinical trials 
funded by the National Institute of Mental Health, found that 14% achieved remission with 
TMS treatment compared to 5% that received a sham (inactive-placebo) treatment. At the 
conclusion of the trial period, patients were permitted to enter a second phase of TMS 
treatment (including those who initially received the sham treatment). Remission rates 
during the second phase rose to nearly 30%.  

In the balance of this brief we address specific criteria that the MHSOAC looks for when 
evaluating Innovation Plans, including:  

 What is the unmet need that the county is trying to address?  
 Does the proposed project address the need?  
 Are there clear learning objectives that link to the need?  
 Will the proposed evaluation allow the county to make any conclusions regarding 

their learning objectives?  

In addition, the MHSOAC checks to see that the Innovation meets regulatory 
requirements, that the proposed project aligns with the core MHSA principles, promotes 
learning, funds exploration of a new and/or locally adapted mental health 
approach/practice, and targets one of the four (4) allowable primary purposes: increases 
access to mental health services to underserved groups; increases the quality of mental 
health services, including better outcomes; promotes interagency collaboration; and 
increases access to services, including, but not limited to, services provided through 
permanent supportive housing.  

Los Angeles reports that this project meets the primary purpose of increasing the quality 
of mental health services, including measured outcomes, and meets the innovation 
criteria by seeking to introduce a new approach or approach that is new to the overall 
mental health system, including, but not limited to, prevention and early intervention.  

The Need 

Los Angeles County states that approximately 4.2 million Americans are diagnosed with 
treatment refractory depression (as defined above). The County indicates they treated 
approximately 42,000 individuals for major depressive disorder within Fiscal Year 16/17; 
and an additional 23,000 individuals received treatment in which depression was part of 
their primary mental health diagnoses. The County estimates that approximately 35% 
(n=22,750) of the 65,000 individuals being treated for depression are in treatment 
refractory and do not respond to medication and/or therapy.  

The County states individuals with severe chronic mental illness need high levels of 
mental health care and as a result, some of these individuals are unable to care for 
themselves and may require the assistance of B&C facilities to receive proper care and 
supervision. The County believes that individuals living in B&C facilities who are 
interested in receiving TMS treatment would benefit and may allow clients to lead a life of 
more independence. Furthermore, for those living in B&C facilities who choose to 
participate in this treatment, the mobility aspect of this project allows for adherence to 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

3 | P a g e  

 

treatment since the County will be providing treatment at the B&C where the individual 
resides.  

The Response 

To address these issues, the County is proposing to offer and implement a 
Mobile Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) program initially for individuals who 
currently receive outpatient mental health services and then for interested individuals 
residing in a B&C facility in order to provide treatment for those who meet the criteria of 
being in treatment refractory. Los Angeles proposes to purchase a TMS device, 
accessories for the device, and a modified van that will transport the TMS equipment to 
those receiving TMS treatment. 

The initial phase of the TMS program will include adults who are in outpatient programs, 
including Full Service Partnership (FSP) programs, which have a large volume of clients. 
Clients will be engaged and educated on TMS treatment as well as family members and 
staff within the outpatient programs. This engagement process will be the responsibility of the 
Peer Support Specialist employed in this project.  

During the initial six (6) months of the project, the County will evaluate the services 
provided from the client’s perspective and will then return to the MHSOAC and report their 
preliminary findings for the first group that have received TMS treatment. The second 
phase of the project would include the expansion of the target population to include 
interested clients living in B&C facilities. 

The County states that this project is innovative because TMS treatment has traditionally 
been utilized in private practice and in academic settings, and will now bring TMS 
treatment into the public mental health setting. If this project is successful, the evaluation 
of this plan may ultimately allow the state to consider expansion of its Medi-Cal policy to 
offer and provide TMS to the public. 

A lead psychiatrist will provide oversight of initial TMS treatment sessions and track the 
client’s progress which can assist in determining the efficacy of this project. The County 
will hire and train staff consisting of a Psychiatric Technician and a Nurse who will operate 
the equipment. The County indicates treatment sessions will typically last anywhere from 
10-45 minutes and is administered once daily for five (5) consecutive days for a four (4) 
to eight (8) week period. Exact treatment protocols and durations will vary depending on 
the response to treatment.  

Prior to treatment being delivered, the County will ensure that each client is choosing this 
treatment on their own volition. The psychiatrist will discuss with each client, in thorough 
detail, the nature of the treatment, the benefits and potential risks that are involved. 
Additionally, the client will also be advised of the duration and frequency of each session 
as well as the treatment regimen and potential need for maintenance treatments in order 
to avoid possible relapse. After the client indicates their understanding of the treatment, 
the psychiatrist will then obtain informed consent for each client. As an established 
practice with FDA approval and with supporting research from National Institute of Mental 
Health, Mobile TMS does not appear to meet the level of protection that an Institutional 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

4 | P a g e  

 

Review Board (IRB) approval warrants. In our analysis and research, it appears is if the 
County’s plan for establishing informed consent is sufficient in meeting client protections.  

During treatment, sedation or general anesthesia is not required, so the patient is awake 
and alert and will be in a seated/reclined position. The electromagnetic coil rests directly 
on the temporal lobe, where the TMS device generates magnetic fields that ultimately 
adjust the electrical activity of neurons. Patients will be required to remove any magnetic-
sensitive objects and wear ear plugs as the patient will hear an audible clicking sound, 
similar to a Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) machine, and may feel a rhythmic 
tapping sensation underneath the coil. After treatment, the patient may resume their 
normal daily activities immediately as there is no recovery time.  

  

Research shows that the most serious risk of TMS treatment is seizures, although the 
risk is extremely low. The County states individuals with a history of seizure disorder or 
those with metal implants in the head or upper torso (such as a pacemaker), will be 
excluded from receiving TMS treatment due to the risks involved. Some reports indicate 
that although TMS may produce discomfort, it is safe and has proven to be effective. 
Typical side effects may include headache, scalp discomfort at the stimulation site, and 
tingling or twitching of facial muscles. Half of all clients receiving TMS treatment report 
experiencing a headache after treatment but usually improve during the course of 
treatment and may be alleviated by over-the-counter pain medication. 

During the initial Community Planning Process back in October 2017, clarification was 
asked of the County to distinguish the difference between TMS and Electroconvulsive 
Therapy. Research provides stark differences between these two (2) types of treatments:  

Electroconvulsive Therapy (sometimes referred to as shock therapy):  

 Cranial therapy used to treat mental illness or mood disorders 
 Utilizes an electric current 
 Usually administered in a hospital setting 
 Various side effects, some as serious as memory loss 
 Patients are given muscle relaxants to prevent damage to muscles and bones 
 Patient is under general anesthesia 

 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

5 | P a g e  

 

Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation: 

 Cranial therapy used to treat mental illness or mood disorders 
 Non-invasive 
 Usually administered in doctor’s office or outpatient setting 
 Typically has no side effects 
 No medication is needed to relax patients 
 Patient is alert and awake during therapy 

One of the benefits of the County offering Mobile TMS treatment is that it allows clients 
to receive treatment on a consistent basis without interruption because the treatment 
would be brought directly to where the client chooses to receive treatment. Once TMS is 
expanded to include B&C residents, treatment will be brought directly to their B&C facility.  

The Community Planning Process 

To facilitate culturally diverse stakeholder involvement, the County states they assembled 
a 58-member System Leadership Team (SLT) to provide input related to the various 
stages of planning surrounding innovation projects, meeting stakeholder composition in 
compliance with Welfare and Institutions Code 5848. The County indicated the planning 
of this project originally began in Spring 2017, and was presented to the SLT in October 
2018, receiving positive feedback.  

Los Angeles County has made several substantive changes as a result of the community 
stakeholder process. The County presented this Innovation Project before the 
Commission on February 22, 2018. There were numerous questions and concerns 
received from the Commissioners and the public regarding this project, including but not 
limited to: concerns received surrounded the validity of TMS treatment, the issue of 
informed consent for B&C residents receiving this treatment, the issue of conservatorship 
for B&C residents, and whether TMS was an FDA-approved treatment, as this treatment 
was not widely known as it has not been used in the public mental health setting. Rather 
than proceeding with the Commissioner’s vote of the plan, the County decided to 
withdraw the Innovation Plan and incorporate some of the feedback that was received 
and return at a later date to re-present in front of the Commission.  

Although the issue of conservatorship was a concern expressed during the MHSOAC 
Commission Meeting on February 22, 2018, the County stated during their presentation 
that only B&C residents with a conservator would be eligible to receive TMS treatment. 
This revised version of the Mobile TMS project also does not reference conservatorship. 
The County may wish to provide information on whether the B&C residents who 
will receive TMS treatment will require a conservator before providing consent for 
treatment.  

Due to substantial comments and recommendations received both during and following 
the MHSOAC Commission Meeting on February 22, 2018, the County has incorporated 
substantial changes which resulted in the plan being reposted for 30-day public comment 
from March 13, 2018-April 12, 2018.  



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

6 | P a g e  

 

As a result of feedback from client advocates, the County has chosen to break up the 
project into two (2) phases as previously mentioned: the first phase will provide treatment 
for adult clients who currently receive county mental health services, including FSP 
programs; and the second phase will expand the target population by providing treatment 
to interested clients residing in B&C facilities.  

Initially, the Mobile TMS project was specific to B&C residents who were treatment 
refractory. As a result of public feedback and client advocacy, the County has made the 
decision to focus the initial part of this project to provide TMS treatment on clients 
currently receiving treatment in adult outpatient programs, including FSP services, within 
the County. As part of the second phase of the project, the County will open up treatment 
to those interested clients residing in B&C facilities. Additionally, the County has included 
a Community Worker with lived experience to the Mobile TMS team to provide outreach 
and engage potential clients, family members and/or caregivers. The Community Worker 
will also serve as an advocate for clients receiving TMS treatment, provide linkages to 
community resources, and may accompany clients to TMS treatment to provide support, 
if needed.  

In addition to the change in target population and implementation of this project resulting 
in a two (2) phase process, focus groups comprised of Wellness outreach Workers and 
paid peer advocates also met to discuss TMS side effects, funding, continuing to receive 
medications while receiving TMS treatment, and length of treatment. Surveys and 
comments were administered and collected and results were overwhelmingly positive. 
Survey results concluded that 71% of peers would recommend TMS treatment to a friend 
or family member; 86% felt this treatment would be beneficial for many people; and 100% 
stated they would support the County in offering this treatment to those in need.  

The County states they will also solicit peer involvement by engaging individuals with lived 
experience who have undergone TMS treatment that may be able to provide real-life 
testimony on the efficacy of the treatment.  

The County states that substantive feedback was considered and incorporated into the  
Innovation Project, and will be incorporated during the implementation of the project.  

Learning Objectives and Evaluation 

Los Angeles County has proposed implementing a Mobile Transcranial Magnetic 
Stimulation (TMS) program to treat psychiatric disorders within the county. The project 
outlined has been identified as a three-year demonstration project with a goal of improving 
the quality of mental health services for clients with chronic and severe mental illness.  
 
The County will provide TMS treatment in a modified van. This will enable psychiatrists 
to meet and provide treatment to individuals receiving outpatient mental health services 
in an FSP program, or “interested clients” residing in B&C facilities with depression as a 
major part of their symptoms, as well as one or more of the following: 
 

 Resistance to treatment with psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by a lack 
of a clinically significant response to at least two psychopharmacologic agents in 
the current depressive episode; or 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

7 | P a g e  

 

 An inability to tolerate psychopharmacologic agents as evidenced by two trials of 
psychopharmacologic agents from two different agent classes; or 

 A history of response to TMS in a previous depressive episode; or 
 A history of response to Electroconvulsive Therapy (ECT) in a previous or current 

episode or an inability to tolerate ECT, or is a candidate for, but has declined ECT 
and TMS is considered a less invasive treatment option. 

 
The evaluation of the TMS program revolves around four main learning questions: 

1. Will these individuals be adherent with a mobile TMS treatment program? 
2. Is TMS an effective treatment for this population? 
3. Does TMS for depression lead to improvement in comorbid symptoms (i.e., 

substance use, psychotic symptoms, etc.)? 
4. If TMS is an effective treatment for this population, should the program be 

expanded to treat a larger part of the population? 
 
In order to measure outcomes relative to the proposed learning questions, the County will 
utilize weekly symptom and functional based measures to track treatment progress. 
Specifically, the Mental Health Counselor, RN will administer the Quick Inventory of 
Depressive Symptoms (QIDS-16, patient rated), the Hamilton Depression Rating Scale 
(HDRS, clinician rated), and other measures for adaptive daily living, quality of life, and 
satisfaction with TMS. Tracking these data will allow the County to arrive at improvements 
in depressive symptom and functional outcomes.  
 
The Budget  

The proposed budget for this Innovation Project is $2,499,102 over three (3) years. 
Although this Innovation Project will be broken up in two or more phases with the first 
phase focusing on treatment for adult clients currently receiving FSP services and the 
second phase for B&C residents, the funds for the entire project are being requested 
upfront. 

The majority of the budget is for direct administrative personnel costs which accounts for 
$2,316,474 (93%) of the total budget. Staff required for this project will include a 
Mental Health Psychiatrist, a Mental Health Counselor (RN), a Clinical Psychologist II, a 
Psychiatric Technician II, and an Intermediate Typist Clerk, and a Community Worker.  

The County will make one-time purchases totaling $164,628 (6.6%) to purchase a 
modified van in the amount of $89,195 in order to transport the treatment 
equipment; TMS device for $69,433; and a laptop for $2,000. The one-time 
purchase will also include an operating cost of $4,000 which will cover the cost of 
space, computer and equipment for the Clinical Psychologist II. The budget costs 
for the maintenance of the van is $18,000 (0.72%), or $6,000 per fiscal year.  
 
The County indicates the Clinical Psychologist II will be responsible for the collection, 
analysis, and dissemination of data that may contribute to statewide learning. 
Additionally, findings related to best practice guidelines and implementation efficacy will 
be shared with the mental health community with the desire to possibly expand the 
project within Los Angeles County, as well as other counties and states. A total of 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County – April 26, 2018 

8 | P a g e  

 

$401,589 (16%) will be set aside for the evaluation component, which will be completed 
by the Clinical Psychologist II.  
 
Regarding sustainability, the County states a final determination will be made at the end 
of the third year of the project and is contingent upon the overall success, effectiveness, 
analysis, and evaluation of the project. The County indicates they may elect to continue 
services and staff through the use of MHSA Community and Services Supports (CSS) 
funds. In reference to Assembly Bill 114 regarding reversion of funds, the County does 
not specify what fiscal year funds will be utilized to fund this project. The County may 
wish to identify what fiscal year funds are being used for this project.  

Additional Regulatory Requirements 

The proposed project appears to meet the minimum requirements listed under MHSA 
Innovation regulations; however, if Innovation Project is approved, the MHSOAC must 
receive and inform the MHSOAC of this certification of approval from the Los Angeles 
County Board of Supervisors before any Innovation Funds can be spent.  

References 

https://www.nimh.nih.gov/health/topics/brain-stimulation-therapies/brain-stimulation-
therapies.shtml 
 
https://www.medscape.com/viewarticle/581830 
 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Treatment-resistant_depression 
 
https://www.hopkinsmedicine.org/psychiatry/specialty_areas/brain_stimulation/tms/faq_t
ms.html 
 
http://www.tmsaugusta.com/depression-painful-tms-painful/ 
 
https://www.mayoclinic.org/tests-procedures/transcranial-magnetic-
stimulation/about/pac-20384625 
 
http://www.cochrane.org/CD006081/SCHIZ_transcranial-magnetic-stimulation-tms-
treatment-schizophrenia 
 
http://tmsmind.com/tms-therapy/tms/ect-vs-tms/ 



















  

STAFF ANALYSIS - LOS ANGELES COUNTY 
 

Innovation (INN) Project Name:    Peer Support Specialist Full Service Partnership 

Total INN Funding Requested:      $9,874,886 

Duration of Innovative Project:     Four (4) Years 
 

Review History: 

Approved by the County Board of Supervisors:   Pending MHSOAC Approval  
County submitted Innovation (INN Project):    March 19, 2018 
MHSOAC consideration of INN Project:     April 26, 2018 
 
 
Project Introduction: 

Los Angeles County proposes to implement a Full-Service Partnership (FSP) model 
comprised of peers with lived experiences as mental health consumers and/or justice-
involved individuals to assist in serving the justice-involved population who meet 
the criteria to receive FSP services within the County. To accomplish this, the County 
proposes to employ self-identified peers with lived experience to provide the full range of 
FSP services including case management, outreach, engagement and housing/employment 
support for clients with mental health and substance use. 

In the balance of this brief we address specific criteria that the MHSOAC looks for when 
evaluating Innovation Plans, including:  

 What is the unmet need that the county is trying to address?  
 Does the proposed project address the need?  
 Are there clear learning objectives that link to the need?  
 Will the proposed evaluation allow the county to make any conclusions regarding 

their learning objectives?  

In addition, the MHSOAC checks to see that the Innovation meets regulatory 
requirements,  that the proposed project aligns with the core MHSA principles, promotes 
learning, funds exploration of a new and/or locally adapted mental health 
approach/practice, and targets one of the four (4) allowable primary purposes: increases 
access to mental health services to underserved groups; increases the quality of mental 
health services, including better outcomes; promotes interagency collaboration; and 
increases access to services, including, but not limited to, services provided through 
permanent supportive housing.  Los Angeles claims this project meets the primary 
purpose of increasing the quality of mental health services, including measured 
outcomes, and meets the innovation criteria by making a change to an existing practice 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

2 | P a g e  

 

in the field of mental health, including but not limited to, application to a different 
population. 

The Need 

Los Angeles County states they continue to actively seek ways to incorporate peers and 
utilize them in meaningful roles in an effort to assist mental health clients in their recovery 
process.  The County has offered various programs where the role of peers attributed to 
the success of the program, and as a result, the County wishes to expand its use of peers 
to assess if peers can successfully implement an FSP model focused on serving mental 
health consumers. 

Although the use and inclusion of peers is worthwhile, it is unclear how this became a 
need within the County.  County may wish to provide additional information as to 
how the need for this project was established, other than the need to utilize peers 
in an FSP model.      

The County indicates there is a need to serve mentally ill individuals who rotate in and 
out of the criminal justice system. The County states the target population includes adults 
with a current Axis 1 diagnosis who are currently incarcerated, or are at risk of being 
arrested and/or incarcerated, by meeting one of the following criteria: 

 Engagement in unlawful and risky behavior 
 Unable to pay tickets or other justice-related fees 
 Presence of warrants 
 Two (2) or more law enforcement contacts within the past 90 days 
 Inability to follow probation requirements  

According to the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders IV (DSM-IV), 
clients having an Axis 1 diagnosis are for psychological diagnoses except for mental 
retardation and personality disorder. These psychological diagnoses include, but are not 
limited to: depression, anxiety disorders, bipolar disorder, ADHD, autism spectrum 
disorders, anorexia nervosa, bulimia nervosa, and schizophrenia.   

In Fiscal Year 2016/17, a total of 6,019 clients were enrolled in FSP programs and as a 
result, those enrolled clients experienced a 63% reduction of days spent in jail and a 17% 
reduction in incarceration rates compared to those not enrolled in an FSP program.   

As part of the County’s commitment to facilitate the transition of justice-involved 
individuals back into the community, Los Angeles states that the use of peers who offer 
the full range of FSP services may assist clients to successfully reintegrate back into the 
community.  Additionally, peers having lived experience may be able to provide 
meaningful insight and suitable linkages to assist in the client’s recovery process. 

The Response 

The County is continuing its efforts to expand the use of peers in the community by 
opening a peer resource center located within their administration building. This center 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

3 | P a g e  

 

will assist peers with employment opportunities, training and will eventually offer peer 
certification.     

A previous Innovation Project brought forward by the County, Peer Respite Homes, also 
incorporated the use of peers supporting clients in crisis.  These alternative peer-run crisis 
houses were used as alternatives to hospitalizations for persons who were not considered 
a danger to others.  Baseline data reflected a 25% reduction for clients who visited an 
emergency room during a crisis.   Additionally, clients experienced a reduction in the 
amount of days spent homeless after staying at a peer respite.   

To assist clients who are justice-involved assimilate back into the community, Los 
Angeles will create two (2) teams of ten (10) members that will provide services, support, 
and linkages to clients meeting criteria to receive adult FSP services.  Each member 
within these teams will be able to provide valuable resources regarding housing, 
employment services, legal services, case management, money management, and links 
to other services, as needed.  Staff required for this project include: two (2) Mental Health 
Psychiatrists, two (2) Mental Health Clinical Supervisors, two (2) Psychiatric Social 
Workers, two (2) Medical Case Workers, ten (10) Community Workers (peer specialists), 
and two (2) Clerk Typists.   

All Clinical Supervisors, Psychiatrists, and Psychiatric Social Workers employed in this 
project will be designated as Lanterman Petris Short Act (LPS) conservators. An LPS 
conservatorship is the legal term used in California which gives an adult conservator the 
responsibility to oversee the mental and medical treatment for an adult (conservatee) who 
has a serious mental challenge.  For this project, the mental health professionals who are 
LPS designated will be able to appropriately assist those clients who may need to be 
placed on an involuntary detention.   

Each Peer Specialist will carry a caseload of ten (10) clients and will respond to around-
the-clock crisis situations, accompanied by their Licensed Clinical Supervisor.  Licensed 
Clinical Supervisors will serve as team lead, handle challenging caseloads as needed, 
conduct initial assessments and create treatment plans in coordination with assigned 
Peer Support Staff.  Each Peer Specialist will receive weekly supervision in addition to 
daily team meetings.   

Peer Support Specialists will receive training in at least three (3) areas including, but not 
limited to, skills and techniques utilized in the role as a Peer Support Specialist, cultural 
competence, recovery services and supports, motivational interviewing, delivering 
services in the field, outreach and engagement strategies, and training regarding working 
with justice-involved individuals.  Peer Support Specialists will continue to receive weekly 
hour-long trainings and all team members will receive monthly continuing educational 
workshops.  MHSOAC staff expressed concern and recommended that all Peer Support 
Specialists receive clinical support, if needed, outside of their supervisory chain of 
command due to conflict of interest. 

The County asserts the incorporation of Peer Support Specialists within an FSP program 
that provides services for justice-involved individuals will likely improve the engagement 
process and may prevent clients from dropping from their treatment program. 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

4 | P a g e  

 

Part of this project also allows the FSP team to work with attorneys and paralegals, at no 
charge to the client, to assist clients in resolving any outstanding legal issues that may 
have prevented or delayed employment opportunities.  

In discussing the details of this Innovation Project, MHSOAC staff inquired if Peer Support 
Specialists would be connected with their clients prior to their release from the County 
Jail as this would be beneficial during the discharge process from the criminal justice 
system.  Although the County stated Peer Support Specialists would be connected prior 
to their client’s release, the final version of this project does not contain information 
regarding Peer Support involvement during the discharge process.  Additionally, 
MHSOAC staff recommended incorporating screening criteria for Peer Support 
Specialists to safeguard both the Peer and their client to avoid relapse from both parties; 
however, this information was also not captured in the final version of this project.  The 
County may wish to discuss if Peer Support Specialists will be paired with their 
clients prior to their release from the criminal justice system and if there will be 
screening criteria in place to avoid setbacks in the recovery process for both Peer 
and client.    

The Community Planning Process 

To facilitate culturally diverse stakeholder involvement, the County states they assembled 
a 58-member System Leadership Team (SLT) to provide input related to the various 
stages of planning surrounding innovation projects, meeting stakeholder composition in 
compliance with Welfare and Institutions Code 5848.   

The County indicates that planning for this project evolved as a result of concerns 
surrounding how to properly address the needs of those who are justice-involved.  Focus 
groups including peers and peer providers convened and it was expressed that 
marginalized populations, such as those who are justice-involved, needed to be engaged 
and targeted with outreach efforts.  The County asserts that the use of peers who have 
navigated through various social service programs may be instrumental in assisting 
justice-involved clients acclimate back into the community. 

The MHSOAC shared this Innovation Project with stakeholders beginning February 21, 
2018 and received two (2) comments from one (1) individual: 

 Concern expressed that finding a licensed clinical supervisor with lived experience 
may be difficult.  Additionally, it may be difficult to find a licensed clinical supervisor 
with lived experience who has completed a high level of training who would be able 
to adequately supervise peer specialists effectively  

 Other comment suggested the didactic model of training for peers may not be 
effective and recommended an adult learning model structured around role playing 
and student involvement in curricula-based activities such as life skills, 
presentations, and recovery story development  

Learning Objectives and Evaluation 

Los Angeles County has proposed implementing a project modeling a traditional Full 
Service Partnership (FSP) program to address the needs of justice-involved individuals.  



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

5 | P a g e  

 

The project will be comprised of a team of ten (10) members, including five (5) Peer 
Support Specialists who can utilize their lived experience as mental health consumers 
and/or justice-involved individuals to better serve the target population.  Specifically, the 
County will target adults 18 years of age or older with a current Axis 1 diagnosis of a 
major psychiatric disorder, who are currently incarcerated or at risk of being arrested and 
incarcerated.  Those in risk of being arrested or incarcerated are operationalized as 
meeting one of the following:  
 

 Engagement in unlawful and risky behavior 
 Unable to pay tickets or other justice-related fees 
 Presence of warrants 
 Two or more contacts with law enforcement in the past 90 days 
 Inability to follow requirements of probation. 

 
The County indicates a total of 50 clients will be served by each team at any given time 
but it is unclear as to the total number of clients that will be served. The County may 
wish to clarify the total number of clients they intend on serving annually.   
 
A number of goals have been identified by Los Angeles County.  Goals of the project (see 
pg. 3 of County plan) seek to gain a better understanding of the role of peers in FSP 
programs, understand engagement practices and access to care with justice-involved 
individuals using a Peer Support Specialist team, reducing stigma associated with mental 
illness, improve access and linkage to legal support services, among others. 
 
To meet these learning goals, the County has laid out a number of learning questions, 
including: 

1. Will justice involved individuals remain enrolled in FSP services with greater 
consistency throughout their treatment if support and care is provided by a Peer 
Support Specialist FSP team rather than a traditional FSP team? 

2. Are there differences in FSP data quality between Peer Support Specialist FSPs 
and traditional FSP programs? 

3. Are justice-involved FSP clients less likely to recidivate if services are provided by 
a peer FSP team? 

4. Does the work of Peer Support Specialists result in FSP clients who are more 
successful in integrating back into their communities? 

5. What unique supports need to be put in place for Peer Support Specialists to be 
maximally effective in their roles in order to achieve effective client outcomes? 

6. Will the addition of legal services to an FSP program help individuals reintegrate 
in a more timely and successful manner? 

7. Will combining the availability of legal services in conjunction with peer support 
help the justice-involved individual achieve desirable outcomes, such as 
expungement, housing, employment, and benefits establishment? 

8. Will Peer Support Specialist staff be able to provide the array of FSP services 
within their current scope of practice? 

9. When Peer Support Specialists expand their roles to include case management 
and other services more commonly provided by multi-disciplinary staff does that 
result in peers reporting losing unique roles associated with lived experience?  

 



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

6 | P a g e  

 

Los Angeles County has identified measures and baseline data for each learning 
question.  Examples include: tracking and comparing client enrollment in the Peer 
Support Specialist FSP program compared to traditional FSP clients; incarcerations prior 
to entering the Peer Support Specialist FSP in comparison to incarcerations after 
enrollment; missing baseline reports, event tracking/changes, completion rates compared 
to three month/quarterly outcomes; employment and volunteering patterns, living 
arrangement outcomes, etc. between traditional FSP program and Peer Support 
Specialist FSP; qualitative interviewing of Peer Support Specialists at intervals during the 
project, among others. (see pg. 4 of County plan).  All data will be collected by Peer 
Support Specialist FSP teams, which will be maintained in a web-based application that 
is currently being used for other FSP programs.  Data analysis and the final evaluation 
report will be completed by a county psychologist currently employed by Los Angeles 
County Department of Mental Health. 
 
The Budget 

The total cost of this project totals $12,659,846; however, the County anticipates Medi-
Cal reimbursement in the amount of $2,784,960.  The actual proposed MHSA Innovation 
Project budget is $9,874,886 over four (4) years.     

The majority of the budget is going towards personnel costs which accounts for 
$8,301,444 (84%) of the total budget.   There are a total of twenty (20) staff required for 
this project which includes: two (2) Mental Health Psychiatrists, two (2) Mental Health 
Clinical Supervisors, two (2) Psychiatric Social Workers, two (2) Medical Case Workers, 
ten (10) Community Workers, and two (2) Clerk Typists.   

The County will make one-time purchases in the amount of $80,000 (8%).  These costs 
will include the purchase of two (2) vehicles each in the amount of $25,000 and education 
and training provided at the onset of the project in the amount of $8,000.  Additionally, 
one-time costs include the training and certification of all peers in the amount of $22,000. 
Each team will have one (1) vehicle to provide field-based services or to transport clients 
to appointments, if needed.  

The County’s indirect and direct costs are  $4,278,400 which includes funds for legal 
services in the amount of $500,000 (50 clients @ $10,000 each), flex funds for  clients in 
the amount of $150,000 (50 clients @ $3,000 each), and the rest of the funds for 
purchases of cell phones, office supplies, computer equipment, vehicle maintenance, and 
education and training costs.   

The County indicates the Mental Health Psychiatrists will be responsible for the 
prescription of medication and overall medication management and the Mental Health 
Clinical Supervisors will provide clinical and administrative supervision for all staff, with 
the exception of the Psychiatrist.  The Peer Specialists, employed as community workers, 
will provide necessary services and supports for clients.  All initial assessments and 
development of treatment plans will be the responsibility of the Psychiatric Social Workers 
while Medical Case Workers will assist in the coordination of data collection.  Lastly, 
senior clerks will assist with office functions such as answering phones and the 
coordination of schedules.  



Staff Analysis - Los Angeles County - April 26, 2018 

7 | P a g e  

 

Peers play a pivotal role in this innovation project and will undergo continuous training, 
while monitoring and ensuring that their own recovery is not put at risk.  Los Angeles 
indicates that the data collection and evaluation of all FSP plans are currently conducted 
by an existing psychologist employed by their county.  The County claims that since this 
project will essentially be ran as an FSP program, the psychologist will also be responsible 
for the collection of data and overall evaluation of this project.  As a result, there is no 
budget allocation specific to the evaluation of this project as there is existing staff who will 
assume responsibility for the evaluation component. The County may wish to clarify if 
CSS funds will be utilized to pay the existing psychologist for their evaluative 
services.    

Regarding sustainability and dependent upon the overall success of the project, the 
County states they would like to utilize MHSA Community Services and Supports funding 
to sustain the teams employed by this project.  If legislation is passed regarding the 
certification of peers, the County indicates Medi-Cal billing would also leverage funding 
to sustain this project. 

In reference to Assembly Bill 114 regarding reversion of funds, the County indicates the 
funds for this project will be utilized from either Fiscal Year 2008/09 or Fiscal Year 
2009/10, although the specific amount is unknown.  The County may wish to clarify the 
total amount being utilized from Fiscal Year 2008/09 funds.   

 

Additional Regulatory Requirements 

The proposed project appears to meet the minimum requirements listed under MHSA 
Innovation regulations.  

References 

http://namilacc.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/02/LPS-Conservatorship-Phamplet-
2014.pdf 
 
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Diagnostic_and_Statistical_Manual_of_Mental_Disorders 



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3  
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Orange County and Modoc County Innovation Plans 

 

Summary: The Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability 
Commission (MHSOAC or Commission) will consider approval of Orange 
and Modoc Counties request to fund a new Innovative project: MHSA 
Innovative Collaboration Project- Increasing Access to Mental Health 
Services and Supports Utilizing a Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health 
Solutions. Orange County is requesting a total of $24,000,000 over 
four (4) years. Modoc County is requesting a total of $270,000 over 
three (3) years. Orange and Modoc Counties propose to increase access 
to mental health services to underserved groups by working with the Joint 
Powers Authority, CalMHSA, to join Los Angeles County, Kern County and 
Mono County in a multi-county demonstration project to implement a group 
of technology-based mental health solutions that utilize chat rooms and 
passive data collection to identify the early signal biomarkers for mental 
health symptoms and offer prompt intervention. 

The Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) requires that an INN project does 
one of the following: (a) introduces a new mental health practice or 
approach, including but not limited to prevention and early intervention; 
(b) makes a change to an existing mental health practice or approach, 
including, but not limited to, adaptation for a new setting or community; 
(c) introduces to the mental health system a promising community-driven 
practice/approach, that has been successful in non-mental health contexts 
or settings; or (d) participates in a housing program designed to stabilize a 
person’s living situation while also providing supportive services on site. The 
law also requires that an INN project address one of the following as its 
primary purpose: (1) increase access to underserved groups, (2) increase 
the quality of services including measurable outcomes, (3) promote 
interagency and community collaboration, or (4) increase access to 
services.  

Presenters:  
 Jeffrey A. Nagel, Ph.D., Orange County Director; 
 Sharon Ishikawa, Ph.D., Orange County MHSA Coordinator; 
 Flor Yousefian Tehrani, Psy.D., LMFT, Orange County Program Manager; 
 Karen Stockton, Ph.D., Modoc County Director; 
 Rhonda Bandy, Ph.D., Modoc County MHSA Program Manager; 
 Guillermo Diaz, M.B.A., Modoc County Peer Specialist; 
 Adelaida B. More, A.A., Executive Director, Sunray’s of Hope, Inc.; 
 Ronald Gilbert, Operations Manager, Sunray’s of Hope, Inc.; 
 Karin Kalk, MA, Director, California Institute for Behavioral Health Solutions. 



 

Enclosures (6): (1) Biographies for Orange County Innovation Presenters; 
(2) Biographies for Modoc County Innovation Presenters; (3) Staff 
Innovation Summary, Orange; (4) Staff Innovation Summary, Modoc; and 
(5) County Project Brief, Orange (6) County Project Brief, Modoc. 

Handout (1): PowerPoint Presentation  
 
Additional Materials (2): Links to the Counties complete Innovation Plan 
are available on the MHSOAC website at the following URL:  
 

Orange County plan 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/orange-county-inn-plan-
description-mental-health-technology-solutions 
 
Modoc County Plan 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/modoc-county-inn-plan-
description-increasing-access-mental-health-services 

 

Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC approves Orange County’s Innovation 
plan as follows: 
 

Name: Mental Health Technology Solutions 
Amount: $24,000,000 
Project Length: Four (4) Years 
 

Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC approves Modoc County’s Innovation 
plan as follows: 
 

Name: Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and Supports 
Utilizing a Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions 
Amount: $270,000 
Project Length: Three (3) Years 

 



 
Biographies for Orange County Presenters 

Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and Supports Utilizing a 
Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions 

 
Jeffrey A. Nagel, Ph.D. 
Jeff Nagel is the Director of Operations for Behavioral Health Services, having previously 
served as the MHSA Coordinator for Orange County. He is a licensed clinical 
psychologist, and earned a Doctorate in Clinical Child/ School Psychology from the 
University of North Texas in 1989. He has held several positions in his nearly 28 years 
with the county, including running Administrative Services and serving as the agency’s 
Chief Compliance Officer for over ten years 
 
Sharon Ishikawa, Ph.D.  
Sharon Ishikawa is the MHSA Coordinator for Orange County. She was previously a 
researcher for Orange County’s Community Services and Supports (CSS) programs, and 
earned a Doctorate in Clinical Psychology from the University of California, Los Angeles. 
Prior to coming to the County, she was a Project Scientist at UC Irvine and oversaw the 
daily operations of a clinical research project evaluating the effectiveness of Cognitive 
Behavior Therapy delivered over smartphones.  
 
Flor Yousefian Tehrani, Psy.D., LMFT  
Flor Yousefian Tehrani is the Innovation Program Manager and has been involved in the 
development, implementation and evaluation of Orange County Innovation projects since 
2011. She is a licensed marriage and family therapist, and earned a Doctorate in Couple 
and Family Therapy from Alliant International University, Irvine.  
 
Karin Kalk, M.A. 
Karin is Director for Health Care Reform with the California Institute for Behavioral Health 
Solutions. She is currently the Project Manager for the Tech Suite Collaborative. Since 
2001, Karin has been providing consulting services throughout California in both private 
and public managed care and service delivery organizations; these services have 
included project management, quality/process improvement, and service system design. 
Prior to this work in the mental health field, Karin was Vice President and General 
Manager for ForHealth, Inc., a venture-capital funded company offering a specialized 
medical program for long term care residents through full and partial risk arrangements 
with senior health plans. Before joining ForHealth, she served as Vice President of 
Operations for AHI Healthcare Systems, a publicly traded managed care company 
serving over 200,000 members throughout the country. Karin received her Master’s 
degree in Health Administration from Duke University, her Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Animal Physiology from University of California, San Diego and has additional formal 
training in project management, improvement science and IHI’s Breakthrough Series 
improvement methodology.  



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
Biographies for Modoc County Presenters 

Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and Supports Utilizing a 
Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions 

 
Karen Stockton, Ph.D., M.S.W., B.S.N. 
Karen Stockton has served as the Health Services (HS) Director for the County of Modoc 
since June 1, 2006.  As HS Director, she also serves as Director of Behavioral Health 
Services and is responsible for oversight of the MHSA service planning and service 
delivery.  As a part of the County Behavioral Health Association of California (CBHDA) 
she serves as the Chair of the Superior Region Committee.  She has also served on the 
CalMHSA SEE Team and the MHSOAC Evaluation Advisory Committee.  Prior to coming 
to Modoc County, she was Chair of the Department of Social Work at Andrews University, 
Berrien Springs, MI.  She received her Ph.D. in Leadership in 2003. She has worked for 
almost 50 years in the fields of nursing, health education, community services, social 
work, mental health, social justice advocacy and policy development. 
 
Rhonda Bandy, Ph.D., M.Mus., B.Mus. 
Rhonda Bandy has served as the MHSA Program Manager for the County of Modoc since 
February 28, 2017. She is also the Privacy Officer and has additional duties in Quality 
Improvement. She received her Ph.D. in Leadership in 2010 and has worked in the fields 
of education, community services, indigent health services, hospital leadership, health 
education, voluntary organizational disaster response, and non-profit community 
involvement. 
 
Guillermo (Billy) Diaz, M.B.A., A.B.J. (Bachelor’s Degree, Communications/Journalism) 
Guillermo (Billy) Diaz is a bi-lingual, self-disclosed person with lived experience. He has 
an open chart for treatment as a person suffering from manic-bipolar disorder. Since 2010 
he has been working as a Behavioral Health Peer Specialist for Modoc County Behavioral 
Health. He is a certified facilitator for WRAP (wellness and recovery action planning) and 
currently serves as the Chairman of the Board at Sunray’s of Hope, the local wellness 
and recovery center. He is a member of the Modoc County Behavioral Health Cultural 
Competency and Quality Assurance Committees and in 2016 became a certified mental 
health advocate as an ACCESS California Ambassador for the twelve counties in the 
Superior Region in Northern California. 
 
Ronald (Ronnie) Gilbert  
Ronald (Ronnie) Gilbert is scheduled to complete his A.A. in Bio-Psychological Science 
in 2019 at Chico State University. Ronald became Operations Manager of Sunray’s of 
Hope, Inc., in 2017 after originally starting there as Program Coordinator in 2015. He is a 
peer support specialist and a self-disclosed person with lived experience and family 
members with lived experience. He is trained in Crisis Intervention and is a member of 
the Modoc County Behavioral Health Advisory Board and the Modoc County Behavioral 
Health Cultural Competency committee. Ronnie is engaged in a three-year term as an 
ACCESS Ambassador for the 12-county Superior Region of Northern California beginning 
in December, 2017.  



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
Adelaida (Ida) B. More, A.A. (Human Resource Management) 
Adelaida (Ida) B. More is a bi-lingual, self-disclosed person with lived experience and 
family members with lived experience in mental health and substance use. She is a peer 
specialist and a peer specialist supervisor, as well as a certified WRAP (wellness and 
recovery action planning) facilitator. Since 2012, Ida has been the Executive Director of 
Sunray’s of Hope, a peer-to-peer run organization and in 2016 became certified as a 
mental health advocate and ambassador of ACCESS CA for the twelve counties in the 
Superior Region of Northern California. In addition to these activities, Ida serves on the 
Modoc County Behavioral Health Quality Improvement committee and works as a part-
time Office Specialist for Modoc County Behavioral Health.  
 
Karin Kalk, M.A. 
Karin is Director for Health Care Reform with the California Institute for Behavioral Health 
Solutions.  She is currently the Project Manager for the Tech Suite Collaborative.  Since 
2001, Karin has been providing consulting services throughout California in both private 
and public managed care and service delivery organizations; these services have 
included project management, quality/process improvement, and service system design.  
Prior to this work in the mental health field, Karin was Vice President and General 
Manager for ForHealth, Inc., a venture-capital funded company offering a specialized 
medical program for long term care residents through full and partial risk arrangements 
with senior health plans.  Before joining ForHealth, she served as Vice President of 
Operations for AHI Healthcare Systems, a publicly traded managed care company 
serving over 200,000 members throughout the country. Karin received her Master’s 
degree in Health Administration from Duke University, her Bachelor of Arts degree in 
Animal Physiology from University of California, San Diego and has additional formal 
training in project management, improvement science and IHI’s Breakthrough Series 
improvement methodology.   
 
 



  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS— ORANGE COUNTY  
 

Name of Innovative (INN) Project:  Mental Health Technology Solutions 

Total INN Funding Requested:     $24,000,000 

Duration of INN Project:     Four (4) Fiscal Years 

 

Review History: 

Approved by the County Board of Supervisors:  April 10, 2018  
County submitted INN Project:      March 27, 2018 
MHSOAC consideration of INN Project:    April 26, 2018 
 
Project Introduction: 

Orange County is proposing to join Los Angeles County, Kern County and Mono County 
in a multi-county collaboration project to implement a group of technology-based mental 
health solutions that utilize a web-based network of trained, on-call, peers to chat 24/7 
with individuals experiencing symptoms of mental illness; digital detection of emotional, 
thought and behavioral disturbances through passively collected data; and virtual, 
evidence-based on-line treatment protocols that use avatars to deliver clinical care. 

The multi-county collaborative will utilize the Joint Powers Authority, California Mental 
Health Services Authority, and (CalMHSA), to act as the fiscal agent for all participating 
counties. CalMHSA will contract out with one or more technology vendors to implement 
the suite. The collaborative envisions five core components available in the suite for 
participating counties to choose from based on the specific needs of their community. In 
addition, a project manager was hired to lead the collaborative and assist participating 
counties.  

Los Angeles County and Kern County initiated the project and both plans were approved 
by the MHSOAC on October 26, 2017. Mono County was approved to join the 
collaborative on February 23, 2018. Both Orange County and Modoc County are 
proposing to join the collaborative and it is anticipated that several other counties will also 
propose to join the project in the coming months.  

 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 2 

 

 

In the balance of this brief we address specific criteria that the MHSOAC looks for when 
evaluating Innovation Plans, including:  

 What is the unmet need that the county is trying to address?  
 Does the proposed project address the need?  
 Are there clear learning objectives that link to the need?  
 Will the proposed evaluation allow the county to make any conclusions regarding 

their learning objectives?  

In addition, the MHSOAC checks to see that the Innovation meets regulatory 
requirements, that the proposed project aligns with the core MHSA principles, promotes 
learning, funds exploration of a new and/or locally adapted mental health 
approach/practice, and targets one of the four (4) allowable primary purposes: increases 
access to mental health services to underserved groups; increases the quality of mental 
health services, including better outcomes; promotes interagency collaboration; and 
increases access to services, including, but not limited to, services provided through 
permanent supportive housing. 

The Need 

Orange County reports that stakeholder feedback, a comprehensive needs assessment, 
and a consumer survey helped them identify the following needs of individuals in their 
county: stigma reduction, comprehensive case management, family support services, 
system navigation, linguistic competence, challenges with system navigation, lack of 
understanding of available services, discomfort with discussing personal problems, 
concerns about others finding out that they had a mental health problem, and a desire to 
have providers who understand their culture and speak their language. In addition, the 
County received feedback that individuals had challenges accessing services after hours 
and have a need for more one-on-one support. 

Separately, Orange County examined results from a school readiness questionnaire 
designed to assess the developmental health of children between the ages of 3.5 to 6.5 
years. The County learned that 30 percent of Orange County children were not on track 
in the emotional maturity domain and that another 30 percent were at risk.  

After evaluating their community needs, Orange County determined that a large-scale 
approach to outreach, engagement, system navigation and service delivery is necessary 
to address the needs identified by the community. Orange County also determined that 
specifically targeting family members of children and adults at risk of developing or living 
with mental illness will help them evaluate the impact of this project. 

The multi-county collaborative, Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and 
Supports Utilizing a Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions, provides 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 3 

 

 

Orange County an opportunity to address the identified needs and contribute to statewide 
learning. 

The Response 

To address these issues identified above, Orange County proposes to join 
Los Angeles County, Kern County and Mono County in a multi-county collaboration 
project to address a shared need of increasing access to mental health services for 
unserved and underserved groups; to reduce stigma and increase early intervention. In 
order to address these shared needs, the collaboration proposes to partner with one or 
more technology-based mental health services with the goal to: (1) detect mental illness 
earlier; (2) intervene earlier to prevent mental illness and relapse and improve client 
outcomes; (3) provide alternate modes of engagement, support and intervention; and 
(4) test out the collection of passive data as a method to identify early signs of mental 
health symptoms. 

In order to meet these goals by digitally expanding access to mental health care, the 
Counties propose to contract with vendors who will provide applications that individuals 
can voluntarily download and access through smartphones, home computers and 
computer stations at various locations (schools, libraries, NAMI offices, client run 
organizations, senior centers, etc.) 

The collaborative envisions five core components available in the suite: Peer Support and 
Digital Therapeutics; Virtual Evidence-Based Therapy Using an Avatar; Digital 
Phenotyping; Community Engagement and Outreach and Outcome Evaluation.  

Orange County provides the following descriptions of the components they will choose to 
implement: 

The peer chat component will offer support delivered by a trained peer mentor, 
who will be assisted by AI (Artificial Intelligence) during the chat session. The chat 
option will also include group chat rooms facilitated by the peer mentors, 
specifically for family members and/or parents of children living with mental illness. 
The peer chat component will be accessible on the County website, as well as 
mobile phones or tablets. This component of the Technology Solutions suite of 
apps will offer large scale access to support at any time during the day or night, 
increasing the options available for an individual seeking help.  

The Therapy Avatar component (i.e., virtual evidence-based therapy using an 
avatar) will offer scripted mindfulness exercises and Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 
interventions delivered through an Avatar. Exercises will be customized through AI 
and based on a person’s responses, allowing for an interactive process between 
the person and the Avatar. The interaction with an Avatar can offer a sense of 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 4 

 

 

safety and security for individuals who experience stigma or shame associated 
with mental illness. This process will encourage engagement in mental health 
support and provide an access point for individuals who prefer anonymity.  

The Customized Wellness Coach (i.e., digital phenotyping) is a unique component 
to the Technology Solutions suite of applications in that it will not require any input 
or information from the individual. This component will rely on the information that 
is already gathered by a person’s mobile device, using it to automatically tailor 
wellness strategies to the person’s needs. Through this process, this component 
has the potential to detect early warning signs or prevent the development of 
mental illness.  

Orange County will work with the contracted vendors to implement the Peer Chat and 
Avatar components in order to customize these apps and provide information, referral 
and linkage to Orange County services and supports. The County is also planning to 
provide face-to-face peer support services as an additional source of support for 
individuals linked to County programs. 

As a whole, the collaborative hopes that the use of the digital platform, including digital 
phenotyping, will support the user to increase understanding of how they are feeling and 
lead to earlier detection of mental health needs/problems and treatment options. Dr. Insel 
cautions that better data does not result in better care without an effective bridge. He 
states that smartphones can provide the tools for assessments and interventions in order 
to create a “learning mental health system” but that a set of standards and a consumer’s 
guide for digital mental health in the public sector needs to be created.  

Additional researchers have encouraged the development of procedures that, “… offer 
individuals better control of their diverse digital footprints with opportunities to control the 
information they wish to share” (Bidargaddi et al). This approach may build trust with 
individuals and avoid ethical challenges. There is an opportunity for the Counties 
participating in this demonstration project to develop a set of standards and a consumer’s 
guide to digital mental health as a dynamic contribution to statewide learning. 

This opportunity to increase access to mental health services using technology is not 
without concern. Misuse of personal data has gained worldwide attention with Facebook 
acknowledging that data from 87 million Facebook users may have been shared by a 
third party without explicit consent. Commenting on the incident, Facebook Chief 
Operating Officer Sheryl Sandberg stated, “we know that we did not do enough to protect 
people's data” (Inskeep 2018). Sandberg states that Facebook is committed to changing 
their practices to protect the data of users and that they are working hard to provide 
information so that users understand how their information is shared. 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 5 

 

 

In addition, recent reports point out that app users do not necessarily own their data and 
that third parties often sell user data for profit. This raises the concern of personally 
identifiable data. Michal Kosinski, et al. reports that “algorithms can now cross-reference 
wearable-generated biometric data with other “digital traces” of users’ behavior” to reveal 
a person’s identity and even predict personality and risk-taking behaviors. 

MHSOAC staff recommend that the project lead for the collaborative and CalMHSA 
address how privacy and data will be securely protected by the contracted vendors 
and how the use of data will be monitored by the collaborative. Staff also 
recommend that the project lead and participating counties discuss how users will 
provide informed consent and be educated about the use of their data. 

The Community Planning Process (CPP) 

Orange County reports that they reviewed stakeholder input gathered in Fall 2017 for the 
MHSA Three-Year Plan and identified that stated needs could be met by joining the tech 
suite collaborative. Between November 2017 and March 2018, County Innovation staff 
conducted 14 stakeholder meetings and gathered input on joining the collaborative. 

During the CPP process, County Innovation staff received enough inquiries to create a 
list of frequently asked questions to share on their website. 

One concern expressed during the CPP process concerned individuals who may not 
benefit from the technology-based mental health services. Orange County acknowledges 
that use of the suite will be voluntary and open to all potential users but that they can 
provide outreach and education to review the purpose and potential of the suite. 
Orange County is considering having peer staff provide presentations to health care 
providers of how to refer clients who would most benefit from the technology. Orange 
County will collaborate with participating counties to identify additional strategies to 
address this concern. 

In addition, during the 30-day public comment period, the County was urged to include 
specific options in the suite of apps for children, adolescents and Transitional Age Youth (TAY). 
The County committed to presenting the feedback to the Tech Solutions Steering 
Committee.  

This Innovation Project was shared with MHSOAC stakeholders beginning on 
January 29, 2018. No letters of opposition or support were received.   

Learning Objectives and Evaluation 

Orange County has proposed collaborating with Los Angeles County in their 
implementation of their Innovation project titled, “Increasing Access to Mental Health 
Services and Supports Utilizing a Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions.” 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 6 

 

 

The technology suite will be implemented to educate users on the signs and symptoms 
of mental illness, improve early identification of emotional and/or behavioral 
destabilization, and to increase access to mental health services among consumers.  
 
Orange County proposes participating in all five components of the Tech Solutions 
project, including: peer chat and digital therapeutics, virtual evidence-based therapy, 
digital phenotyping for early detection and intervention, community engagement and 
outreach, as well as the outcome evaluation. Consistent with Los Angeles County’s 
original plan, Orange County will target a number of individuals, including individuals with 
sub-acute mental health symptom presentations, family members of children or adults 
suffering from mental illness, socially isolated individuals, etc. (for complete list, see pg. 
12 of County plan). In total, Orange County anticipates serving approximately 320,000 
individuals throughout the duration of the project. 
 
The overall learning goals/objectives identified by Orange County include: 

1. Detect and acknowledge mental health symptoms sooner 
2. Reduce stigma associated with mental illness 
3. Increase access to support and care 
4. Increase purpose, belonging and social connectedness 
5. Analyze and collect data from a variety of sources to improve mental health needs 

assessment and service delivery. 
 
To meet these learning goals/objectives, the County has laid out a number of learning 
questions. In addition to addressing all learning questions laid out in the original 
Los Angeles County plan (see pg. 7 of County plan), county-specific learning questions 
have been developed. These learning questions address individual/family impact, 
Behavioral Health Services (BHS) System Impact, as well as Community Impact, and 
include: 
  

- Individual/Family Impact 
o Who do the suite of apps work best for? 
o Does the proportion of crisis evaluations and/or crisis evaluations that result 

in hospitalization within a city decrease following intensive promotion of the 
Tech Solutions apps in that community? 

o Is the proportion of crisis evaluations and/or crisis evaluations that result in 
hospitalization lower in cities that received intensive promotion of the 
Tech Solutions apps relative to cities that did not? 
 

- BHS System Impact 
o How does use of the Tech Solutions apps impact enrollment into existing 

BHS programs? 
o Are some BHS programs affected more than others? 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 7 

 

 

 
- Community Impact 

o Is there an increase in the number of app users within Orange County 
compared to the number of users prior to the Tech Solutions project? 

o Is the marketing and promotional campaign effective? Are some campaign 
strategies more effective than others at increasing enrollment into Tech 
Solutions? 

o Are some apps utilized more than others? 
o Do the utilization rates of apps differ according to population characteristics 

(i.e., age, gender, preferred language)? 
o Are there differences among individuals who choose to enroll in a 

technology-based mental health project compared to individuals who do 
not? 

 
Consistent with all other counties collaborating in the Tech Solutions project, 
Orange County hopes to arrive at a number of outcomes, including: 
 

1. An increase in purpose, belonging, and social connectedness; 
2. A reduction in the duration of untreated or undertreated mental illness; 
3. An increase in timely access to mental health care for unserved and underserved 

populations; 
4. An increase in ability to identify cognitive, emotional, and behavioral changes and 

actively address them; 
5. An increase in quality of life, including activity level, employment, school 

involvement, etc. as identified by the user. 
 
Measures that will be utilized to arrive at each outcome and address each learning 
question have been identified by the County (see pg. 9 of County plan). Data used to 
measure each outcome that will include passive data, users reached, level of user 
engagement, access and timeliness of care, as well as clinical outcomes. The County will 
participate in the multi-county evaluation by gathering data internally and contributing data 
gathered during the project.  
 
The MHSOAC recognizes that the Innovation regulations do not directly address 
evaluations of multi-county collaborations. There may be an opportunity to revise 
regulations to address statewide evaluation methods, including but not limited to, 
sampling methods.  
 
The Budget 

The proposed budget for this Innovation Project is $24,000,000 over the course of four (4) 
fiscal years.  



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 8 

 

 

Innovation funds will solely by used for this project and include: fiscal year 2015-16 funds 
and a portion of the $13,429,412 in funds subject to reversion through fiscal year 2014-
15.  

Orange County organized their budget by grouping costs associated with each 
component of the tech suite together: 24/7 Peer Chat, Therapy Avatar, Customized 
Wellness coach, Marketing, Evaluation and Administrative (see Budget Grid on pg. 21 
and budget narrative on pgs. 16-20 of County plan for more detail). 

The 24/7 Peer Chat component is budgeted to cost $5,366,829 and funds 12 to 16 FTE 
Peer Specialists at the rate County Mental Health Worker rate of $21 per hour; 3 to4 FTE 
Marriage and Family Therapists or Social Workers; Software Engineers, Data Scientists; 
Information Security and training. 

The Therapy Avatar component is budgeted to cost $1,901,281 and funds a 
Clinical Consultant at 0.5 FTE in year one and 0.25 FTE in years 2-4; Software Engineers; 
Data Scientist; and Information Security. 
 
The customized wellness Coach component is budgeted to cost $1,901,281 and funds a 
Clinical Consultant at 0.5 FTE in year one and 0.25 FTE in years 2-4; Software Engineers; 
Data Scientist; and Information Security. 

Administrative costs total $5,521,909 (23 percent) and include the County contribution of 
$1,142,854 to CalMHSA (5 percent) to oversee the multi-county administrative and 
financial components; translation services, indirect and direct costs; and travel. 

Evaluation costs total $4,488,992 (19 percent) and fund a 0.2 FTE Principal Investigator, 
who will serve as the lead researcher and be responsible for oversight of the evaluation 
component, including the development of an evaluation design and methodology; a 0.2 
FTE Co-Principal Investigator to assist the Principal Investigator; three 0.10 FTE Co-
Investigators from specific fields to provide subject matter expertise; 1 FTE Research 
Staff, responsible for collection and tracking of data; 1 FTE Statistician; 0.75 FTE County 
Research Liaison; and costs associated with Process Evaluation and Administrative 
costs.  

If the project is deemed successful, Orange County states that they will continue the 
program using MHSA Prevention and Early Intervention funds.  

If this project is discontinued, the County states that the final year of the project will focus 
on Peer Specialists transitioning users to appropriate County and/or community 
behavioral health services and supports. 



Staff Analysis—Orange County, April 26, 2018 

 

 9 

 

 

Additional Regulatory Requirements 

The proposed project appears to meet the minimum requirements listed under MHSA 
Innovation regulations.  

References 

Allen, Jessica & Balfour, Reuben & Bell, Ruth & Marmot, Michael. (2014). Social 
Determinants of Mental Health. International Review of Psychiatry. 26. 
10.3109/09540261.2014.928270. 
 
Bidargaddi, N., Musiat, P., Makinen, V.-P., Ermes, M., Schrader, G., & Licinio, J. (2017). 
Digital footprints: facilitating large-scale environmental psychiatric research in 
naturalistic settings through data from everyday technologies. Molecular Psychiatry, 
22(2), 164–169. http://doi.org/10.1038/mp.2016.224 
 
Elliott, I. (June 2016) Poverty and Mental Health: A review to inform the Joseph 
Rowntree Foundation’s Anti-Poverty Strategy. London: Mental Health Foundation. 
 
Kosinski, Michal, Stillwell, David, Graepel, Thore (2013) Digital records of behavior 
expose personal traits. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences Apr 2013, 
110 (15) 5802-5805; DOI: 10.1073/pnas.1218772110 
 
Inskeep, Steve. “Facebook COO Sheryl Sandberg on Protecting User Data”. 
www.NPR.org. 5 April 2018. Web. 9 April 2018. 
https://www.npr.org/2018/04/05/599761391/full-transcript-facebook-coo-sheryl-
sandberg-on-protecting-user-data 
 
Insel TR. Digital PhenotypingTechnology for a New Science of Behavior. JAMA. 
2017;318(13):1215–1216. doi:10.1001/jama.2017.11295 
 
Full project proposal can be accessed here: 
 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/orange-county-inn-plan-description-mental-
health-technology-solutions 



1 | P a g e  

 

  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS— MODOC COUNTY  
 

Name of Innovative (INN) Project:  Increasing Access to Mental Health 
Services and Supports Utilizing a 
Suite of Technology-Based Mental 
Health Solutions 

Total INN Funding Requested:     $270,000 

Duration of INN Project:     Three (3) Fiscal Years 

 

Review History: 

Approved by the County Board of Supervisors:   March 13, 2018  
County submitted INN Project:      March 12, 2018 
MHSOAC consideration of INN Project:     April 26, 2018 
 
Project Introduction: 

Modoc County is proposing to join Los Angeles County, Kern County and Mono County 
in a multi-county collaboration project to implement a group of technology-based mental 
health solutions that utilize a web-based network of trained, on-call, peers to chat 24/7 
with individuals experiencing symptoms of mental illness; digital detection of emotional, 
thought and behavioral disturbances through passively collected data; and virtual, 
evidence-based on-line treatment protocols that use avatars to deliver clinical care. 

The multi-county collaborative will utilize the Joint Powers Authority, California Mental 
Health Services Authority, and (CalMHSA), to act as the fiscal agent for all participating 
counties. CalMHSA will contract out with one or more technology vendors to implement 
the suite. In addition, a project manager was hired to lead the collaborative and assist 
participating counties. Los Angeles County and Kern County initiated the project and both 
plans were approved by the MHSOAC on October 26, 2017. Mono County was approved 
to join the collaborative on February 23, 2018. Both Modoc County and Orange County 
are proposing to join the collaborative and it is anticipated that several other counties will 
also propose to join the project in the coming months.   

 



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

2 | P a g e  

 

In the balance of this brief we address specific criteria that the MHSOAC looks for when 
evaluating Innovation Plans, including:  

 What is the unmet need that the county is trying to address?  
 Does the proposed project address the need?  
 Are there clear learning objectives that link to the need?  
 Will the proposed evaluation allow the county to make any conclusions regarding 

their learning objectives?  

In addition, the MHSOAC checks to see that the Innovation meets regulatory 
requirements,  that the proposed project aligns with the core MHSA principles, promotes 
learning, funds exploration of a new and/or locally adapted mental health 
approach/practice, and targets one of the four (4) allowable primary purposes: increases 
access to mental health services to underserved groups; increases the quality of mental 
health services, including better outcomes; promotes interagency collaboration; and 
increases access to services, including, but not limited to, services provided through 
permanent supportive housing. 

The Need 

Modoc County is a remote, rural county with a population of 8,795 spreading over almost 
4,000 square miles (an average of 2.5 people per mile). The largest age group is persons 
over the age of 65, representing almost 24 percent of the population and double the 
statewide average.  

Modoc County has a statistically higher rate of poverty (18.4 percent) than national 
(12.7 percent) and statewide averages (14.3 percent). Research suggests that both 
generational poverty and situational poverty increases the risk of individuals experiencing 
disruption from mental health needs (Elliott 2016; Allen, et al 2014).  

The County reports that access to services continues to be a challenge in the most rural 
areas of their county. In addition, the County lists several needs identified by 
stakeholders: (1) stigma reduction, (2) anonymity and privacy when seeking mental health 
services, (3) discomfort with traditional clinical services, (4) a desire for a more accurate 
way to report personal wellness data, (5) earlier detection of symptoms combined with 
earlier access to services, and (6) concern that older adults are particularly vulnerable to 
issues preventing access to quality mental health care.    

Modoc County hopes that prioritizing the use of their Innovation funds to “step-up” to join 
the technology suite collaboration, will result in better outcomes locally and contribute to 
a stronger, data-driven, learning collective statewide.  

The Response 

To address these issues, the County envisions joining Los Angeles County, Kern County 
and Mono County in a multi-county collaboration project to address a shared need of 
increasing access to mental health services for unserved and underserved groups; to 
reduce stigma and increase early intervention. In order to address these shared needs, 
the collaboration proposes to partner with one or more technology-based mental health 



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

3 | P a g e  

 

services with the goal to: (1) detect mental illness earlier; (2) intervene earlier to prevent 
mental illness and relapse and improve client outcomes; (3) provide alternate modes of 
engagement, support and intervention; and (4) test out the collection of passive data as 
a method to identify early signs of mental health symptoms. 

In order to meet these goals by digitally expanding access to mental health care, the 
Counties propose to contract with vendors who will provide applications that individuals 
can voluntarily download and access through smartphones, home computers and 
computer stations at various locations (schools, libraries, NAMI offices, client run 
organizations, senior centers, etc.) 

Modoc County reports that their ability to address the complexity of needs identified by 
stakeholders on their own is limited and feels that joining this collaborative is an 
opportunity to significantly address the needs and make a larger impact than what they 
could achieve alone.  

Modoc County intends to participate in the selection of suite options as they become 
available in order to choose options that will best serve their community. Specifically, 
Modoc County will select suite options that increase access to care and maximize passive 
data collection while addressing their unique rural challenges preventing access to 
technology. Modoc County has budgeted to purchase devices and web access to ensure 
accessibility for the targeted populations. 

In addition, Modoc County remains committed to advancing their system-wide strategy to 
make data available and useful in day-to-day service delivery. They plan to utilize the 
selected suites and link their current Innovation I Project:  Electronic Behavioral Health 
Solutions (eBHS) and Innovations and Improvement Through Data (IITD) with this project.  

Modoc County staff will make it a priority to represent their need to keep eBHS in sync 
with the data elements collected and transferred to the collaborative so that they have full 
use of their county data in real-time for personal wellness and treatment planning as well 
as for local quality improvement and evaluation activities. 

Modoc County plans to contribute to the evaluation design planning to ensure that they 
are able to track data elements for evaluation, build out eBHS as necessary to merge 
new data elements into the system and transmit them to the overall evaluation data 
collection system. Through ongoing involvement, they want to assess the ongoing viability 
of eBHS as a management and data analytics tool that can possibly be utilized in other 
counties. 

The collaborative hopes that the use of the digital platform, including digital phenotyping, 
will support the user to increase understanding of how they are feeling and  lead to earlier 
detection of mental health needs/problems and treatment options. Dr. Insel cautions that 
better data does not result in better care without an effective bridge. He states that 
smartphones can provide the tools for assessments and interventions in order to create 
a “learning mental health system” but that a set of standards and a consumer’s guide for 
digital mental health in the public sector needs to be created.  



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

4 | P a g e  

 

Additional researchers have encouraged the development of procedures that, “… offer 
individuals better control of their diverse digital footprints with opportunities to control the 
information they wish to share” (Bidargaddi et al). This approach may build trust with 
individuals and avoid ethical challenges.  There is an opportunity for the Counties 
participating in this demonstration project to develop a set of standards and a consumer’s 
guide to digital mental health as a dynamic contribution to statewide learning. 

Misuse of personal data has gained worldwide attention with Facebook acknowledging 
that data from 87 million Facebook users may have been shared by a third party without 
explicit consent. Commenting on the incident, Facebook Chief Operating Officer 
Sheryl Sandberg stated, “we know that we did not do enough to protect people's data” 
(Inskeep 2018). Sandberg states that Facebook is committed to changing their practices 
to protect the data of users and that they are working hard to provide information so that 
users understand how their information is shared. 

In addition, recent reports point out that app users do not necessarily own their data and 
that third parties often sell user data for profit. This raises the concern of personally 
identifiable data. Michal Kosinski, et al. reports that “algorithms can now cross-reference 
wearable-generated biometric data with other “digital traces” of users’ behavior” to reveal 
a person’s identity and even predict personality and risk-taking behaviors. 

MHSOAC staff recommend that the project lead for the collaborative and CalMHSA 
address how privacy and data will be securely protected by the contracted vendors 
and how the use of data will be monitored by the collaborative. Staff also 
recommend that the project lead and participating counties discuss how users will 
provide informed consent and be educated about the use of their data. 

The Community Planning Process 

The County reports that they received feedback in 2016 and 2017 that additional services 
and access to care remained issues in outlying regions. The County also reports that they 
received ongoing support for the exploration of use of technology as potential way to 
increase access and linkage.  

Stakeholder meetings were held in January of 2018 and that a total of 117 stakeholders 
were present. The County states that concerns were raised regarding how individuals 
would be able to afford any necessary devices to participate.  As a result, the County has 
budgeted $30,100 to support individuals to gain access to devices and the web in order 
to participate in this project. 

In addition, the County reports that discussion with peers resulted in plans to boost peer 
support and modeling related to the collection and use of wellness data and changing use 
of the term “passive data” to personal wellness data collection.  The County plans to 
engage in ongoing conversations of where and when it will be best to use local peer 
support staff as the selection of tech suite components are finalized. The County has 
budgeted $13,000 for the peer support contract and plans to consult with a Peer Specialist 
in the design, selection and implementation of the tech suite as well as during the 
evaluation process. The County also reports that consumer and family member 
involvement in the implementation and evaluation process is a funded priority. 



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

5 | P a g e  

 

If this plan is approved, Modoc County will formally join the project and begin creating a 
technology suite steering committee comprised of stakeholders.  

This Innovation Project was shared with MHSOAC stakeholders beginning on 
February 1, 2018. No letters of opposition or support were received.     

Learning Objectives and Evaluation 

Modoc County has proposed collaborating with Los Angeles County in their 
implementation of their Innovation project titled, “Increasing Access to Mental Health 
Services and Supports Utilizing a Suite of Technology-Based Mental Health Solutions.”  
The technology suite will be implemented to educate users on the signs and symptoms 
of mental illness, improve early identification of emotional and/or behavioral 
destabilization, and to increase access to mental health services among consumers.  
Specifically, Modoc County seeks to access components of the technology suite that 
meets the need of their target population—namely, 1) individuals in remote, isolated areas 
of the county who have less access to social support and mental health services, 
2) transition-aged youth with first-break psychosis, and 3) transition-aged youth and 
adults, engaged in whole-health wellness plans, who desire to track passive data for 
personal wellness and treatment planning. The County estimates that 300 individuals will 
be served during the duration of the project. 
 
Modoc County intends on connecting this project with a previous Innovation project titled 
“Electronic Behavioral Health Solutions and Improvement through Data” in order to 
expand data use and improve clinical decision making of all clients represented in the 
county.  The County may wish to elaborate on progress and any outcomes of their 
current Innovation project and provide an example of how it will be utilized with the 
proposed project. 
 
The County has identified three main goals that will guide their innovation project: 

1. Expand and diversify capacity to overcome isolation, stigma, privacy, and other 
social barriers 

2. Detect mental illness earlier, including depression, psychosis, and bipolar disorder 
3. Intervene earlier to prevent mental illness and improve client outcomes. 

 
A multiplicity of other goals will be developed for this project as the selection of tech 
products is made.  Learning questions the County has identified match those laid out in 
Los Angeles County’s original innovation plan, and have been revised to meet the needs 
of the county (see pg. 6 of full plan).  Outcomes the County hopes to arrive at include:  
 

1. An increase in purpose, belonging, and social connectedness 
2. A reduction in the duration of untreated or undertreated mental illness 
3. An increase in timely access to mental health care for unserved and underserved 

populations 
4. An increase in ability to identify cognitive, emotional, and behavioral changes and 

actively address them 
5. An increase in quality of life, including activity level, employment, school 

involvement, etc. as identified by the user. 
 



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

6 | P a g e  

 

In order to measure outcomes that address each learning question, the County will use 
passive data, as well as current electronic data.  The County may wish to identify the 
baseline data that will be utilized to arrive at the outcomes identified.  The County 
will participate in the multi-county evaluation by gathering data internally and contributing 
data gathered during the project.   
 
Innovation regulations do not directly address evaluations of multi-county collaborations. 
There may be an opportunity to revise regulations to address statewide evaluation 
methods, including but not limited to, sampling methods.  
 
The Budget 

The proposed budget for this Innovation Project is $270,000 over the course of three 
fiscal years (approximately 36 months). 

Innovation funds will solely be  used for this project and include: $74,612 in funds subject 
to reversion through fiscal year 13-14 and the remaining $195,388 will come from 
projected funds from fiscal year 14-15 through fiscal year 19-20.                    

Personnel costs total $84,909 and fund the Behavioral Health Director at 0.1 FTE, 
MHSA Project Manager at 0.1 FTE, Information Systems Coordinator at 0.2 FTE and 
Modoc County Administrative Assistant/Analyst at 0.25 FTE to plan and implement the 
Innovation project. 

In addition, Modoc County proposes to allocate $13,000 to fund Behavioral Health Peer 
Specialist Services through a contract with the Sunrays of Hope, Inc. 

Operating costs total $7,991 and cover the cost of travel for planning and implementation 
meetings. 

Non-recurring costs total $30,100 and will be utilized for technology devices, equipment 
and web access. Due to limited access to devices, web access and bandwidth available, 
Modoc County has budgeted to purchase devices and web access to ensure accessibility 
for the targeted populations.   

Modoc County lists $80,000 as their contribution towards the technology suite. The 
County will purchase products from the technology suite that will best provide alternative 
modes to accessing social support and mental health services in order to address the 
previously identified barriers.  

Administrative costs total $27,000 (10 percent). The County will contribute $13,500 to 
CalMHSA (5 percent) to oversee the multi-county administrative and financial 
components and $13,500 for local administrative costs. 

The County states that $27,000 will be used for promotion of the project and evaluation 
(10 percent).  

It is anticipated that Modoc County will participate in the collaborative coordination, 
promotion, and evaluation and contribute a portion based on an established formula 
related to the total cost of the project. 



Staff Analysis—Modoc County, April 26, 2018 

7 | P a g e  

 

If the project is deemed successful, Modoc County states that they will continue the 
program using a combination of Prevention and Early Intervention, Community Services 
and Supports and other funds. If this project is discontinued due to poor outcomes or loss 
of stakeholder support, the county states that they will provide education to staff and 
clients to ensure a smooth transition into the current system of care. 

Additional Regulatory Requirements 

The proposed project appears to meet the minimum requirements listed under MHSA 
Innovation regulations.  

References 

Allen, Jessica & Balfour, Reuben & Bell, Ruth & Marmot, Michael. (2014). Social 
Determinants of Mental Health. International Review of Psychiatry. 26. 
10.3109/09540261.2014.928270. 
 
Bidargaddi, N., Musiat, P., Makinen, V.-P., Ermes, M., Schrader, G., & Licinio, J. (2017). 
Digital footprints: facilitating large-scale environmental psychiatric research in 
naturalistic settings through data from everyday technologies. Molecular Psychiatry, 
22(2), 164–169. http://doi.org/10.1038/mp.2016.224 
 
Elliott, I. (June 2016) Poverty and Mental Health: A review to inform the Joseph 
Rowntree Foundation’s Anti-Poverty Strategy. London: Mental Health Foundation. 
 
Kosinski, Michal, Stillwell, David, Graepel, Thore (2013) Digital records of behavior 
expose personal traits. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences Apr 2013, 
110 (15) 5802-5805; DOI: 10.1073/pnas.1218772110 
 
 
Inskeep, Steve. “Facebook COO Sheryl Sandberg on Protecting User Data”. 
www.NPR.org. 5 April 2018. Web. 9 April 2018. 
https://www.npr.org/2018/04/05/599761391/full-transcript-facebook-coo-sheryl-
sandberg-on-protecting-user-data 
 
Insel TR. Digital PhenotypingTechnology for a New Science of Behavior. JAMA. 
2017;318(13):1215–1216. doi:10.1001/jama.2017.11295 
 
Full project proposal can be accessed here: 
 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/document/2018-04/modoc-county-inn-plan-description-increasing-
access-mental-health-services 



 

  

“”The Tech suite has the potential to 
provide a new approach for 

community members to access 
resources and support.” 

~ Orange County Stakeholder 

Mental Health  
Technology Solutions 

Co mmuni ty  Program 
Plann ing  Process  

Between November 2017 
and March 2018, a series of 
stakeholder meetings were 
held to gather input on 
joining Tech Solutions.  
 
ATTENDEES 

• Consumers 

• Family members 

• Healthcare providers 

• MHSA Steering 
Committee members 

• Mental Health Board 
members 

 
MEETING STRUCTURE 
Meetings were held weekly, 
and each lasted an average 
of 2 hours. Innovation (INN) 
staff provided summaries of 
each meeting to enable new 
and continuing members to 
engage in the process. 
 
Each meeting began with an 
open discussion to address 
questions and concerns. INN 
staff compiled a list of 
frequently asked questions 
(FAQs) raised throughout 
the planning process. INN 
staff were also available to 
address questions prior to 
and after each meeting. 
 
 
 

Orange County Behavioral Health Needs and Gaps  
During a public forum in Fall 2017, 
Orange County stakeholders 
identified stigma reduction, 
comprehensive case management, 
family support, system navigation and 
linguistic competence as behavioral 
health needs and gaps in Orange 
County. Similarly, a Member Health 
Needs Assessment survey completed 
by 5,812 Orange County CalOptima 
members identified system 
navigation and fear of stigma 
associated with mental illness as key 
factors that impact access to and use 
of mental health services.  
 
Members expressed a lack of 
understanding about available 
services, discomfort with discussing 
personal problems and concerns 
about others finding out that they had 
a mental health problem. In addition, 
members reported that they prefer 
providers who speak their language 
and understand their culture. 
Members also reported challenges in 
accessing services outside of business 
hours, ineffective outreach and 
engagement strategies and the need 
for one-on-one support. 

Furthermore, results from the Early 
Developmental Index (EDI), a school 
readiness questionnaire designed to 
assess the developmental health of 
children between the ages of 3.5 to 
6.5 years identified that 30% of 
Orange County children were at risk 
and another 30% were not 
developmentally on track in the 
emotional maturity domain, which 
assesses areas such as hyperactivity, 
inattention, aggression, anxiety, fear 
and prosocial/helping behaviors. 
These results highlight the need for 
increased prevention services to 
families in the community. 
 
The community feedback, along with 
the comprehensive needs assessment 
and EDI results, indicate that a large-
scale approach to outreach, 
engagement, system navigation and 
service delivery is necessary to 
address the County’s priorities. The 
Mental Health Technology Solutions 
(i.e., Tech Solutions) project offers 
Orange County the opportunity to 
address the primary problems and 
priorities identified by the 
community. 
 



 

  

Project staff will include peer 
specialists, located within Orange 
County, who will assist with the 
implementation of the project.  
 
Orange County proposes a large 
scale outreach and marketing 
campaign to promote the Tech 
Solutions suite of mental health 
apps. The suite of apps will be 
accessible to all Orange County 
residents who own a smartphone, 
tablet, computer or have access to 
computer devices. Participation in 
this project is voluntary, with the 
option for individuals to download 
and/or delete the suite of 
applications at any time. 
 
As participants utilize the suite of 
apps, they may be linked to County 
Behavioral Health Services as 
appropriate through the Peer Chat 
or Therapy Avatar components. It is 
anticipated that Orange County will 
collaborate with the vendors to 
customize these apps and provide 
information, referral and linkage to 
Orange County services and 
supports. Face-to-face peer support 
services will also be offered as 
additional support for individuals 
linked to County programs. 

CULTURAL INCLUSIVITY 
INN staff has continued to 
gather community feedback 
to identify strategies to 
engage hard to reach, 
unserved and underserved 
populations.  
 
In April 2018, INN staff 
facilitated 1-hour discussion 
groups with specific 
populations, including:   

• Peer Specialists  

• LGBTQ 

• Asian/Pacific Islander 

• Iranian  

• College students 

• Korean 

• Veterans 
 
To ensure continued 
meaningful stakeholder 
involvment, Orange County 
plans to continue facilitating 
regular meetings to discuss  
the outreach and impact of 
this project. 
 
 
TARGET POPULATION 
One of the key values that 
the Tech Solutions project 
could provide is expanding 
the scope and reach of 
prevention efforts within 
Orange County. Targeted 
prevention programs are 
needed for families of 
children at risk of 
developing mental illness. 
 
Orange County proposes to 
specifically target family 
members of children and 
adults at risk of developing 
or living with mental illness.  
 

The County plans to adopt all of the 
overarching learning questions 
outlined in previous proposals and 
collaborate with the approved 
counties throughout its participation 
in this project. In the event that the 
collaborative county partners exit this 
project during Orange County’s four-
year timeframe, Orange County plans 
to continue its evaluation of the 
overarching learning questions and 
finish the evaluation accordingly.  
 
In addition to the overarching 
questions that will be evaluated 
across all participating counties, and 
as a result of the local planning, 
Orange County proposes county-
specific questions to examine the 
impact of this project on the 
individual/family, County behavioral 
health programs, and community. 
 
Upon MHSOAC approval, Orange 
County will finalize a Participant 
Agreement with CalMHSA; work with 
CalMHSA to draft contracts with 
qualified vendors; and collaborate 
with CalMHSA and the selected 
technology companies to customize 
the suite of apps to Orange County’s 
target population and learning 
objectives. 

Orange County’s Participation 



 

  
Budget 

REVERTED FUNDS 

At present, the State 

Department of Health Care 

Services has identified that 

Orange County has 

$13,429,412 in reverted 

Innovation funds through 

FY 2014-15 (subject to 

change pending conclusion 

of the appeal process). 

Upon MHSOAC approval to 

join the Tech Solutions 

project, Orange County 

plans to use FY 2015-16 

Innovation funds, as well 

as a portion of reverted 

Innovation dollars. 

 

SUSTAINABILITY 
The analytics associated 
with the suite of 
technology services, 
coupled with 
comprehensive evaluation, 
will inform sustainability at 
the conclusion of this 
project.  
 
Factors that will be taken 
into consideration include 
user satisfaction, 
outcomes, and overall 
effectiveness of the suite 
of apps.  
 
If deemed successful, 
Orange County proposes to 
continue the Tech 
Solutions project or its 
components through the 
MHSA Prevention and Early 
Intervention component. 

Orange County anticipates that its 
estimated portion of project 
expenditures for four fiscal years shall 
not exceed $24 million, with final 
budget determination prior to 
solicitation of the project. The 
proposed budget was developed in 
partnership with stakeholders during 
the planning process, as well as 
through consultations with subject  
 

matter experts in technology-based 
applications and discussions with 
qualified vendors identified by 
CalMHSA. Detailed expenditures are 
outlined in the full proposal.  
 
Budget elements are an 
approximation and funds allocated to 
each element may change as 
finalization of contracts for services 
are determined. 

Budget by Proportion: A different view with  similar outcomes 

Although Orange County developed a detailed budget for its participation based on 

current rates and research, it is equally imperative to consider proposing a  budget 

based on county size/proportion.   Orange County has taken this into consideration 

and would like to offer the following, proportional perspective. Ultimately, this 

perspective also arrives at the $24 million estimate proposed and requested by 

Orange County:  
 

• Los Angeles (LA) County has 10.1 million residents  
o Orange County has 3.2 million residents, 1/3 the population of LA 

• As such, LA County proposed $33 million for 3 years 

o Orange County’s equivalent proportion for 3 years would be $11 million 

o Orange County proposes 4 years, so an additional year must be factored in 

▪ $11 million + $3.7 million = $14.7 (~$15 million) 

• The MHSOAC and community emphasized the need for hiring local, paid peers  

o Orange County budgeted for 10-16 full-time peer specialists, using the 

County’s Mental Health Worker II rate 

▪ ~$15 million + $4.8 million = $19.8 million (~$20 million) 

• Consultations with the qualified evaluators revealed that a process evaluation is 

missing in this project and is necessary for successful evaluation  

o Orange County added this element to the proposal and budgeted $1 million 

▪ ~$20 million + $1 million = ~$21 million 

• Administrative costs  

o 18% of operating costs must be allocated to OC Indirect costs 

o 5% of the total budget must be allocated to CalMHSA 

▪ $21 million + ~$2 million = ~$23 million  



 

April – June 2018 
• Selection and award of contracts 

with qualified vendors 
• Customize app components to 

Orange County 
• Begin staffing project: Peer 

Specialists, Outreach Coordinator 
and staff 

• Engage in ongoing cross-county 
Tech Solutions Steering 
Committee meetings 

• Develop marketing content 
• Begin promotional activities 
• Launch of virtual services through 

identified strategic access points, 
including schools, libraries, NAMI, 
client run organizations, social 
media, senior centers, etc.  

April – August 2018 
• Development, testing and 

implementation of digital 
phenotyping (i.e., deliverable #2) 

• Introduction of technology-based 
mental health solutions to users 
via schools, social media, and 
other key community organziations 

June – July 2019 
• Development, testing and 

implementation of deliverable #2, 
including identifying key access 
points 

Proposed Timeline 

Due to the Innovative 
nature of this project, 
actual implementation 
steps may deviate in 
sequence and/or 
timeframes. 

 

November 2017– March 2018 
• Orange County Community 

Planning Process 
• Development of Tech Solutions 

Steering Committee 
• Participation in cross-county Tech 

Solutions Steering Committee 
meetings 

December 2017 – February 2018 
• Selection and award of contracts  

January 2018 
• Received MHSA Steering 

Committee vote to join Tech 
Solutions 

• Posted for 30-day public comment  

February 2018 
• Launch of virtual services on the 

Department’s website 
• Mental Health Board Public 

Hearing – received vote to join 
Tech Solutions 

March – April 2018 
• Identify analytics to be collected 

and reported on, including 
developing reporting framework 

• Obtained Board of Supervisors 
approval to join project 

• Seek MHSOAC approval to join 
the Tech Solutions  

• Finalize Participation Agreement  
 

“I do not think that there has been another 

project that has had as much input from 

consumers, community-based 

organizations, and the MHSA Steering 

Committee members.Meetings were held 

frequently, at different times and locations, 

and "phone in" options were provided to 

allow for a variety of participation.” “I commend staff for their 
thoughtful engagement of the 
community around Tech Solutions 
and their many efforts to outreach 
to our broader community.” 
 

“It was an intense process, but as a team I think we 
worked very well and came out with some great ideas. A 
model of how we can move forward on other projects!” 

“The process was very detailed and inclusive. Staff did a great job 
to present background information, process and need at various 
stakeholder engagement meetings.” 

 

“Lots of open 
meeting 
opportunities for 
the community 
to understand 
and give input to 
the plan.” 

COMMUNITY PROGRAM PLANNING – STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK 

https://www.layoutready.com/?utm_source=microsoft&utm_medium=file&utm_campaign=office_online


1 
 

MHSA Innovative Collaboration Project ‐ Increasing Access to Mental Health Services and 
Supports Utilizing a Suite of Technology‐Based Mental Health Solutions 

Modoc County Summary 
 
Project Introduction 
 
Modoc County Behavioral Health and its collaborative county partners intends to utilize a suite of 
technology‐based mental health services and solutions which collect passive data that identifies early signs 
and signals of mental health symptoms and will then provide access and linkage to intervention. Technology‐
based services would be accessible to clients and public users through devices like computers, tablets, 
smartphones and other mobile devices. The project will identify those in need of mental health care services 
through active online engagement, automated screening, and assessment. Services are focused on 
prevention, early intervention, and family and social support intended to decrease the need for psychiatric 
hospital and emergency care service.  
 
As a part of their MHSA Innovations pursuits, Los Angeles and Kern Counties joined forces to develop a 
collaborative approach to purchasing, deploying and advancing technology‐based mental health supports 
and services. In light of the opportunity for greater purchasing power, shared learning and evaluation, and 
input into the evaluation of this technology, Modoc County Behavioral Health (MCBH) engaged with our 
stakeholders to determine if the collaborative could be leveraged to serve our local needs. 
 
Based on feedback from stakeholders and in the spirit of collaboration for a state‐wide perspective, Modoc 
County hopes to achieve the following goals by joining the MHSA Innovative Collaboration Project of utilizing 
a suite of technology‐based mental health solutions: 

Collaborative Goals: 

1. Offer technology‐based social support/engagement as an adjunct to traditional services and as 
an alternative to them. 

2. Provide alternate modes of engagement, support and intervention. 
Modoc County Specific Goals: 

1. Detect mental illness, particularly first break psychosis and depression.  

2. Expand and diversify capacity to overcome isolation (social, geographical, climatic, self‐stigma, 
privacy).  

3. Intervene earlier, especially with young adults to prevent mental illness and improve client 
outcomes. 

 
The Need 
 
Modoc County is a geographically large county of 4,200 square miles with a small population of 8,795 people. 
This sparse population qualifies the county to be designated as a “Frontier County” by the State of California. 
With a density of only 2.5 people per square mile, mental health service delivery is difficult due to the lack of 
enough population to support an adequate delivery system. 
 
Our aim is to partner with, and financially contribute to, a collaborative of counties with varying capacities 
sharing resources aimed to support service delivery systems in all types of population densities. We share the 
aims of the collaboration while having our own unique aim which speaks to the stakeholder reoccurring 
prioritization of the need to build access capacity to reduce isolation and lack of social support in a way that 
is sensitive to the unique phenomena of individuals living in small well‐acquainted communities who suffer 
from a lack of anonymity and privacy.  Additionally, stakeholders continue to highlight the need to detect 
mental illness earlier and intervene more effectively, especially with youth. 



2 
 

Community Planning Process 
 
The project was presented to over 117 stakeholders (a little more than 1% of the county population) in 
communities throughout Modoc County during thirteen presentations in January of 2018. Stakeholders were 
15% Hispanic, 81% White and 4% Native American (as compared to the overall county demographics of 15% 
Hispanic, 80% White and 5% Native American, with other races represented being too few to show up 
statistically).  The program proposal was posted on February 1, 2018 to allow for the 30‐day public review 
period before the scheduled public hearing presentation held by the Behavioral Health Advisory Board on 
March 5, 2018. No additional substantive stakeholder feedback was received during the Public Review and 
Comment period or the Public Hearing. 
 
This project was supported and deemed beneficial to Modoc County by the vast majority of stakeholders. 
During the Community Planning Process, stakeholders remarked on the possible benefits of the project: 
Older adults in Alturas indicated this type of program could help them with support because they are 
homebound and have little access to transportation. Resource providers and agencies working with local 
families indicated the project would work well in reaching youth who are technology savvy, but may not be 
ready to seek help with mental health issues. 
 
Peers enthusiastically engaged in discussions regarding how they could support the project through modeling 
and case management. Their ongoing feedback regarding where and when it is best to use local peer support 
staff, depending on the product(s) selected, will be incorporated into the implementation process. We have 
included a budget line to increase peer support/case management services for this project. This feedback will 
continue to be a consideration during the implementation phase of this project. Budget consideration was 
given to a concern related to how individuals would be able to afford any necessary devices and/or internet 
access to participate. 
 
The Response 
 
In discussing the stakeholder feedback with the Modoc County Behavioral Health Advisory Board (MCBHAB), 
Director Karen Stockton proposed joining the other California counties in a technology‐based Innovation 
project. The MCBHAB unanimously expressed their support to pursue the project to help reduce isolation, 
increase access to services, and identify onset of mental illness sooner. Peer members expressed their 
ongoing interest in supporting the project locally. Further, they eagerly offered to actively partner with MCBH 
staff to present the project to the Commissioners of the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability 
Commission (MHSOAC).  
  
Because of positive stakeholder and peer feedback, Modoc County is seeking to partner with the innovative 
collaborative effort to bring the technology suite of products to our residents. We will work together with the 
other counties to contract with vendors for product development, provide peer and expert support, and 
contribute to evaluation strategies. This project will be funded through joining the collaborative financial pool 
for services contracted through CalMHSA, our local innovation budget, and other in‐kind mental health 
funding streams as necessary. 
 
On the Modoc County level, services will be targeted to three subsets of our population, as identified by our 
stakeholders: 

1) Young adults (TAY): as members most amenable to technology and less likely to participate in 
traditional mental health services, “products” will be selected and offered to collect passive wellness 
data to identify illness earlier, especially for individuals with first break psychosis, in addition to 
products developed to connect them to peers and as alternatives to traditional services. 



3 
 

2) Isolated individuals: for those who live in remote areas geographically and climatically, the “suite of 
products” will be selected to connect them to peers and others in a “chat” situation, online 
treatment products and/or passive data collection devices as indicated. 

3) Older adults: expected to be most challenged by technology, some have self‐identified themselves as 
using technology to stay socially connected with family and friends, in addition to proudly sporting 
their personal “fitbits” to give them feedback on exercise, sleep habits, etc. As a group most likely to 
be challenged by lack of transportation and isolation, the products will be selected, as above, for 
isolated individuals and priority given to alternatives to traditional services for identification and 
treatment of depression. 

 
Security and privacy will be provided subject to the online statement provided by CalMHSA 
(http://calmhsa.org/privacy‐statement/) and local Modoc County security and privacy regulations. 
 
Modoc County welcomes program ambiguity, especially in the initial stages of this innovation as significantly 
positive. Ambiguity allows for flexibility, maneuverability and the ability to connect generic pieces of the 
“suite of products” to the unique, localized perspective of Modoc County. 

 
Learning Objectives and Evaluation 
 
It is anticipated that as many as 75‐100 individuals could utilize the technology‐based suite in Modoc County. 
This estimation is based on the numbers of individuals we currently serve and county‐wide penetration 
reports.  
 
We hope to accomplish the following objectives through this innovation project: 
 

Collaborative outcome learning objectives, learning questions and evaluation: 
1. Expand and diversify capacity to overcome isolation, stigma, privacy and other social barriers to 

expand capacity to provide alternate modes of engagement, support and intervention. 
2. Detect mental illness earlier, including depression, psychosis, and bipolar disorder.  
3. Intervene earlier to prevent mental illness and improve client outcomes. 
4. Utilization of technology‐based behavioral health solutions which engage, educate and provide 

intervention to individuals experiencing symptoms of mental illness.  
5. Use passive sensory data to engage, educate and suggest behavioral health activation strategies 

to users.  
6. Create a strategic approach to access points to expose individuals to technology‐based mental 

health solutions. 
7. Develop method and conduct outcome evaluation of all elements of the project. 

 
Modoc County specific learning objectives, learning questions and evaluation: 

1) Detect mental illness earlier and utilize tools to intervene more effectively, particularly with first 
break psychosis and in depression (with a focus on older adults). 

2) Intervene earlier in mental illness to prevent mental illness in young adults with first break 
psychosis and improve client outcomes. 

3) Identify demographic information of those who use peer support through this technological 
platform. 

4) Determine whether virtual chatting and peer‐based interventions will result in greater social 
connectedness, reduction of symptoms related to mental illness and increase wellbeing. 

5) Identify which virtual‐based strategies are most helpful in compelling individuals to feel willing 
and capable of seeking necessary behavioral health care or services. 



4 
 

6) Determine whether passive data collected from smart phones or other mobile devices can 
accurately detect changes in mental health status and prompt behavioral change effectively. 

7) Identify which, if any, digital data informs the need for mental health interventions and 
coordination of care. 

8) Determine effective strategies to reduce the duration of untreated mental illness. 
9) Additional goals will be addressed in Modoc’s project as relevant to MCBH’s selection of 

products based on our local needs. 
 

Modoc County will be involved at every stage of the evaluation process by contributing funds toward a 
shared evaluation, participation in development of the evaluation plan, advocacy for inclusion of Modoc 
priority measures, data collection, data analysis and dissemination of outcomes. 
 
Measures may include, but not be limited to, user demographic data, passive data, measures specific to first 
break psychosis and depression, participation and completion rates, satisfaction ratings, wellbeing measures, 
qualitative peer support data and feedback on implementation process, challenges, and barriers. 
 
Budget 
 
Modoc Behavioral Health anticipates their portion of the estimated cost of project expenditures for three 
fiscal years shall not exceed $270,000, with final budget detail determination prior to solicitation of the 
project. All funds utilized directly for this project will be MHSA Innovations Component funding.  

Funds subject to reversion through FY 13‐14         $  74,612 
  Funds remaining unobligated & projected   FY14/15 ‐ FY19/20                     $195,388 
  Total                               $270,000 
 
Budget elements are an approximation, and proportion of funds allocated to each element may change as 
finalization of contracts for services and evaluation are determined. It is anticipated the CalMHSA will be 
utilized as the fiscal agent for a portion of the program and the percentage funds they manage will be 
assessed. 
 
As described in the total proposed budget table below, the funds will be divided between personnel costs, 
contract travel, contract costs for peer support, technology and equipment, evaluation, and administrative 
costs. 
 

Total Proposed Budget Table: 
Expenditures  FY17/18

Partial Year 
FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 

Partial Year 
Total

Personnel Costs: Salaries  8,000 28,303 28,303 20,303  84,909

BH Peer Support Contract  2,000 5,000 5,000 1,000  13,000

Operating Costs: Travel  2,000 2,000 2,000 1,991  7,991

Non‐reoccurring Costs:  Technology‐  
          County Devices/Equipment &   

Web access  15,100 15,000

 

30,100

 “Suite” or “Cafeteria” Products  10,000 35,000 35,000   80,000

Administrative costs:    

Local  5,000 5,000 3,500  13,500

CalMHSA  5,000 5,000 3,500  13,500

Promotion & Evaluation  10,000 10,000 7,000  27,000

Total:  22,000 105,403 105,303 37,294  270,000

 



AGENDA ITEM 4 
Information 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Executive Director Report Out 

 

 
 

Summary:  Executive Director Toby Ewing will report on projects 
underway, the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability 
Commission calendar, and other matters relating to the ongoing work of 
the Commission. 
 
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Executive Director 
 
Enclosures (6): (1) The Motions Summary from the March 22, 2018 
Commission Meeting; (2) Evaluation Dashboard; (3) Calendar of 
Commission activities; (4) Innovation Review Outline; (5) Innovation 
Dashboard; and (6) Department of Health Care Services Revenue and 
Expenditure Reports status update 
 
Handout: None 
 
Recommended Action: Information item only 



 

 1

 Motions Summary 
 

Commission Meeting 
March 22, 2018 

 
Motion #: 1 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time: 2:18pm 
 
Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC approves Trinity County’s Innovation plan as 
follows: 
 

Name: Cedar Home Peer Respite 
Amount: $267,000 
Project Length: Twenty Seven (27) Months 

 
Commissioner making motion: Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen 
Commissioner seconding motion:  Commissioner Gordon 
  
Motion carried 7 yes, 1 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  

 
  



 

 2

Motion #: 2 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time: 2:57pm 
 
Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC approves San Francisco County’s Innovation 
plan as written with direction to staff to provide technical assistance to the county 
to fortify the evaluation methodology and report back to the Commission. 

Name: Intensive Case Management/Full-Service Partnership to Outpatient 
Transition Support 
Amount: $3,750,000 
Project Length: Five (5) Years 

 
Commissioner making motion: Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen 
Commissioner seconding motion: Commissioner Bunch 
  
Motion carried 8 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  

 
  



 

 3

Motion #: 3 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time: 3:00pm 
 
Proposed Motion:  
 
The Commission approves the February 8, 2018 and February 22, 2018 Meeting 
Minutes. 
 
Commissioner making motion: Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen 
Commissioner seconding motion: Chair Boyd 
  
Motion carried 5 yes, 0 no, and 3 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  

 
  



 

 4

Motion #: 4 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time:   3:11pm 
 
Proposed Motion:  
 
■ The MHSOAC awards the Adults/TAY Triage Personnel Grants to the 
following counties for the specified amounts listed and directs the Executive 
Director to issue a Notice of Intent to  make the following awards: 

Alameda County $5,326,702  Sacramento County $4,019,929 

Berkeley City $871,139  San Francisco $2,352,746 

Butte County $729,323  Sonoma County $1,691,878 

Calaveras County     $300,476  Stanislaus County $1,265,717 

Humboldt County $978,964  Tuolumne County $653,701  

Los Angeles County  $24,877,879  Ventura County $2,486,224 

Merced County $1,017,359  Yolo County $294,579  
Placer County $1,133,384   

 
■ The MHSOAC establishes April 5, 2018 as the deadline for unsuccessful 
applicants to submit an Appeal consistent with the ten working days standard set 
forth in the Request for Applicants. 

■ The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to notify the Commission Chair 
and Vice Chair of any appeals within two working days of the submission and to 
adjudicate the appeals consistent with the procedure provided in the Request for 
Applications. 

■ The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to execute the contracts upon 
expiration of the appeal period or consideration of the appeals, whichever comes 
first. 

■ The MHSOAC directs any additional funds that may become available for the 
Adults/TAY triage grants to be allocated first to Alameda County and Berkeley 
City, the two applicants who are partially funded due to lack of funding and then 
to the next highest scoring counties that were not funded until all funds are 
allocated.  

■ The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate with Alameda 
County and Berkeley City including, but not limited to, terms such as delayed 
implementation while awaiting possible additional funds. 

 

 

 



 

 5

Commissioner making motion: Commissioner Danovitch 
Commissioner seconding motion: Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss 
  
Commissioners Aslami-Tamplen and Bunch recused themselves.  
Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  



 

 6

Motion #: 5 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time: 4:05pm 
 
Proposed Motion:  
 
The MHSOAC authorizes the Chair to work with the Executive Director to continue 
efforts in working with the author of Senate Bill 1004 to support the principles in the 
bill, (e.g. establish a strategic vision for PEI and have the Commission approve PEI 
plans) and refine the language. 
 
Commissioner making motion: Commissioner Danovitch 
Commissioner seconding motion: Commissioner Mitchell 
  
Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  

 
  



 

 7

 
Motion #: 6 
 
Date: March 22, 2018 
 
Time: 4:06pm 
 
Proposed Motion:  
 
The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to work with the Legislature to seek 
$5 million to support a children’s innovation incubator. 
 
Commissioner making motion: Commissioner Mitchell 
Commissioner seconding motion: Commissioner Alvarez 
  
Motion carried 6 yes, 0 no, and 0 abstain, per roll call vote as follows: 

Name Yes No Abstain 

1. Commissioner Alvarez  
2. Commissioner Anthony  
3. Commissioner Ashbeck  
4. Commissioner Beall  
5. Commissioner Brown  
6. Commissioner Bunch  
7. Commissioner Carrillo  
8. Commissioner Danovitch  
9. Commissioner Gordon  
10. Commissioner Madrigal-Weiss  
11. Commissioner Mitchell  
12. Commissioner Poaster  
13. Commissioner Wooton  
14. Vice-Chair Aslami-Tamplen  
15. Chair Boyd  

 



 
MHSOAC Evaluation Dashboard 

 
 
Summary: The Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Evaluation Dashboard 
assists in monitoring the major evaluation efforts currently underway. The Evaluation Dashboard 
provides information, objectives, and the status of all current deliverables for internal and external 
evaluation contracts and projects. Below is a list of all changes/updates to all evaluation projects, 
which are highlighted in red within the Dashboard. 
 
Changes/Updates: 

 
External Evaluation Contracts 
 

 DOJ Criminal Data Linkage & Analysis Mental Health Data Alliance 
Update: Deliverables 4 first monthly assignment and payment complete other 
two (2) are still in progress. Contract’s Total Spent increased.  
 

 Visualization Configuration & Publication Support Services The iFish Group 
Update: Deliverable 4 status changed to complete. Contract’s Total Spent 
increased. Deliverable 2 and Deliverable 3 have updated due dates.  

 
 
Enclosures: MHSOAC Evaluation Dashboard 
 
Recommended Action: None 
 
Presenter: None 
 
Motion: None 



MHSOAC Evaluation Dashboard April 2018 
(updated 4/10/18) 
 

1 
Legend:          Deliverable Not Started                               Deliverable In Progress                         Deliverable Under Review                              Deliverable Complete                     

*Material highlighted in red indicates updates to the information  *                  Indicates that a deliverable has undergone a status change 

 

 Current MHSOAC Evaluation Contracts & Deliverables 

Mental Health Data Alliance 

DOJ Criminal Data Linkage & Analysis (16MHSOAC027) 
MHSOAC Staff: Pu Peng & Ashley Mills 

Active Dates: 01/01/17 - 06/30/18  

Total Contract Amount: $98,450 

Total Spent: $37,976 

Objective: The purpose of the project is to (1) identify the level of criminal justice involvement among those served in public mental health 
programs; (2) evaluate the quality of self-report of arrests for individuals who participate in the Full Service Partnership programs; and (3) evaluate 
longitudinal changes in criminal justice involvement for populations served by public mental health programs. 

Deliverables & Due Dates 

Deliverables October 2017 – June 2018    

1 
Statewide Criminal Justice Data Linkage Report 

 
11/14/17 

    

 

2.1 
County Participation Confirmation Report 

 
  11/30/17    

 

3.1 
Evaluation Report of Longitudinal Criminal 
Justice Involvement among FSP Clients 

   06/01/18   
 

3.2 FSP Client Self-report Arrest Data Validation 
Report 

    06/01/18  
 

3.3 CSI Duplicative Client Record Study Report      06/01/18  

4 Monthly Review and Approval of Agile 
Deliverables 

      03/18-05/18 

 



MHSOAC Evaluation Dashboard April 2018 
(updated 4/10/18) 
 

2 
Legend:          Deliverable Not Started                               Deliverable In Progress                         Deliverable Under Review                              Deliverable Complete                     

*Material highlighted in red indicates updates to the information  *                  Indicates that a deliverable has undergone a status change 

 

 

The iFish Group 

Visualization Configuration & Publication Support Services (16MHSOAC021) 
MHSOAC Staff: Brandon McMillen  

Active Dates: 10/31/16 – 7/28/18 

Total Contract Amount: $1,000,000 

Total Spent: $500,000 

Objective: To make data from reports on programs funded under the Mental Health Services Act, available to the public via a Visualization 
Portal.  The portal will provide transparency through the publication of information and statistics to various stakeholders.  Resources will be 
provided to allow MHSOAC staff to evaluate, merge, clean, and link all relevant datasets; develop processes and standards for data 
management; identify and configure analytics and visualizations for publication on the MHSOAC public website; and manage the publication of 
data to the open data platform.   

Deliverables & Due Dates 

Deliverables October 2016 – July 2018 

1 
Fiscal Transparency Tool 1.0- (Design specs, 
Configuration & Related Datasets, Test Results, 
Visualization & Dataset Deployed) 

10/31/16 
  

 

2 
Full Service Partnerships Tool 1.0- (Design specs, 
Configuration & Related Datasets, Test Results, 
Visualization & Dataset Deployed) 

 

1/27/18 
 

 

3 
Providers, Programs, and Services Tool 1.0- 
(Design specs, Configuration & Related Datasets, 
Test Results, Visualization & Dataset Deployed) 

   
04/28/18  

4 
Fiscal Transparency Tool 2.0- (Design specs, 
Configuration & Related Datasets, Test Results, 
Visualization & Dataset Deployed) 

    
07/28/18 

 

 



MHSOAC Evaluation Dashboard April 2018 
(updated 4/10/18) 
 

3 
Legend:          Deliverable Not Started                               Deliverable In Progress                         Deliverable Under Review                              Deliverable Complete                     

*Material highlighted in red indicates updates to the information  *                  Indicates that a deliverable has undergone a status change 

 

 

 

The iFish Group 

Hosting and Managed Services (17MHSOAC024) 
MHSOAC Staff: Pu Peng 

Active Dates: 12/28/17 - 12/31/18  

Total Contract Amount: $423,923 

Total Spent: $273,943 

Objective: To provide hosting and managed services (HMS) such as Secure Data Management Platform (SDMP) and a Visualization Portal 
where software support will be provided for SAS Office Analytics, Microsoft SQL, Drupal CMS 7.0 Visualization Portal, and other software 
products. Support services and knowledge transfer will also be provided to assist MHSOAC staff in collection, exploration, and curation of data 
from external sources.   

Deliverables & Due Dates 

Deliverables December 2017 

1 Secure Data Management Platform 12/28/17 

2 Visualization Portal 12/28/17 

3 Data Management Support Services 12/31/18 
 

 

  



a 

 

 

1325 J ST STE 1700 
SACRAMENTO CA  95814 

(916) 445‐8696 
www.mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

2018 Commission Meeting Dates 
 

 

 

January 25th 
Sacramento Office of Education, Mather, CA 

February 22nd 
MHSOAC, Sacramento, CA 

March 22nd 
MHSOAC, Sacramento, CA 

April 26th 
Anaheim, CA 

May 24th 
MHSOAC, Sacramento, CA 

July 26th 
Location TBD 

August 23rd 
Sacramento, CA (tentative) 

September 27th 
Los Angeles, CA (tentative) 

October 25th 
Mono County (tentative) 

November 15th 
Sacramento, CA (tentative) 



INNOVATION DASHBOARD 

April 2018 

 

INN Proposals CALENDARED: 

TOYAL # of CALENDARED INN PROPOSALS  COUNTY  TOTAL INN AMOUNT 

2 (MAY)  Butte, Sacramento  $19,426,874 

 

INN Proposals to be CALENDARED: 

TOTAL # of DRAFT INN PROPOSALS RECEIVED  # of COUNTIES THAT SUBMITTED  TOTAL INN AMOUNT REQUESTED 

15  11  $42,308,013 

 

INN Concepts being DEVELOPED: 

TOTAL # of INNOVATIVE CONCEPTS RECEIVED  # of COUNTIES THAT SUBMITTED  TOTAL INN AMOUNT REQUESTED 

7  6  $13,562,916 
 

APPROVED INNOVATION PLANS‐FIVE (5) FISCAL YEARS 

 

 
 

Fifty‐two (52) Counties have presented an INN Plan to the Commission since 2013= 88% 

*Seven (7) Counties have NOT presented an INN Plan to the Commission since 2013= 12%                                                              

2017‐2018

 Total INN Dollars : $97,922,071 

 Total INN Extensions: $5,172,606 

 Total # of Projects: 23 

 # of Counties Submitted: 12 

2016‐2017 

 Total INN Dollars : $66,347,688 

 Total INN Extensions: $2,008,608 

 Total # of Projects: 27 

 # of Counties Submitted: 18 

2015‐2016 

 Total INN Dollars : $46,920,919 

 Total INN Extensions: $5,587,378 

 Total # of Projects: 17 

 # of Counties Submitted: 15

2014‐2015

 Total INN Dollars : $127,742,348 

 Total INN Extensions: $1,111,054 

 Total # of Projects: 26 

 # of Counties Submitted: 16 

2013‐2014 

 Total INN Dollars : $7,867,712 

 Total INN Extensions: $0.00 

 Total # of Projects: 14 

 # of Counties Submitted: 8 



Agenda Item 4, Enclosure 6: DHCS Status Chart of County RERs Received 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 
 

 
Attached below is a Status Report from the Department of Health Care 
Services regarding County MHSA Annual Revenue and Expenditure Reports 
received and processed by Department staff, dated April 12th, 2018. 
 
This Status Report covers the FY 2012-13 through FY 2016-17 County RERs. 
 
For each reporting period, the Status Report provides a date received by the 
Department of the County’s RER and a date on which Department staff 
completed their “Final Review.” 
 
The Department provides MHSOAC staff with weekly status updates of 
County RERs received, processed, and forwarded to the MHSOAC. MHSOAC 
staff process data from County RERs for inclusion in the Fiscal Reporting Tool 
only after the Department determines that it has completed its Final Review. 
 
The Department also publishes on its website a web page providing access to 
County RERs. This page includes links to individual County RERs for reporting 
years FY 2006-07 through FY 2015-16. This page can be accessed at 
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/Annual-Revenue-and-
Expenditure-Reports-by-County.aspx 
 
Counties also are required to submit RERs directly to the MHSOAC. The 
Commission provides access to these reports through its Fiscal Reporting 
Tool at http://mhsoac.ca.gov/fiscal-reporting and a data reporting page at 
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/documents?field_county_value=All&date_filter%5Bvalu
e%5D%5Byear%5D=&field_component_tid=46. 

http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/Annual-Revenue-and-Expenditure-Reports-by-County.aspx
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/services/MH/Pages/Annual-Revenue-and-Expenditure-Reports-by-County.aspx
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/fiscal-reporting
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/documents?field_county_value=All&date_filter%5Bvalue%5D%5Byear%5D=&field_component_tid=46.
http://mhsoac.ca.gov/documents?field_county_value=All&date_filter%5Bvalue%5D%5Byear%5D=&field_component_tid=46.


County

Electronic 

Copy 

Submission 

Date

Final Review 

Completion 

Date

Electronic 

Copy 

Submission 

Date

Final Review 

Completion 

Date

Electronic 

Copy 

Submission 

Date

Final Review 

Completion 

Date

Electronic 

Copy 

Submission 

Date

Final Review 

Completion 

Date

Electronic 

Copy 

Submission 

Date

Final Review 

Completion 

Date

Alameda 1/4/2015 1/6/2015 1/10/2017 1/5/2017 9/14/2017 9/29/2017 9/29/2017 9/29/2017 1/2/2018 1/3/2018

Alpine 9/12/2016 9/13/2016 9/12/2016 9/13/2016 6/26/2017 6/26/2017 11/22/2017 11/27/2017

Amador 10/30/2015 9/9/2016 9/8/2016 3/27/2017 3/27/2017 3/27/2017 4/7/2017 4/10/2017

Berkeley City 7/6/2015 7/17/2015 4/18/2016 5/2/2016 5/2/2016 7/26/2016 4/13/2017 4/13/2017 1/25/2018 2/1/2018

Butte 4/10/2015 4/13/2015 3/7/2016 3/7/2016 4/4/2016 6/23/2016 4/17/2017 4/18/2017

Calaveras 12/1/2015 12/1/2015 12/18/2015 1/19/2016 1/4/2016 1/13/2016 4/18/2017 4/19/2017

Colusa 3/27/2015 8/4/2015 11/16/2015 11/16/2015 1/8/2016 2/10/2016 5/17/2017 5/17/2017

Contra Costa 4/13/2015 4/14/2015 3/8/2016 3/14/2016 3/8/2016 3/14/2016 4/17/2017 4/18/2017 12/29/2017 1/24/2018

Del Norte 4/1/2015 4/15/2015 11/2/2015 1/4/2016 5/13/2016 5/16/2016 4/17/2017 5/19/2017 2/23/2018 2/26/2018

El Dorado 4/1/2015 4/7/2015 12/15/2015 8/29/2016 2/9/2016 2/11/2016 4/17/2017 4/19/2017 12/29/2017 1/24/2018

Fresno 3/25/2015 4/21/2015 10/30/2015 11/12/2015 12/14/2015 12/18/2015 4/17/2017 4/18/2017 12/29/2017

Glenn 4/30/2015 5/1/2015 10/30/2015 11/4/2015 3/17/2016 3/24/2016 7/20/2017 7/20/2017 2/22/2018 2/22/2018

Humboldt 2/10/2015 4/8/2015 6/3/2016 6/6/2016 9/30/2016 10/3/2016 4/13/2017 4/18/2017 12/21/2017

Imperial 4/1/2015 4/8/2015 10/28/2015 11/3/2015 12/31/2015 1/4/2016 4/27/2017 4/27/2017 12/28/2017 1/9/2018

Inyo 5/29/2015 6/29/2015 11/19/2015 12/5/2015 2/24/2016 2/24/2016 5/9/2017 5/9/2017

Kern 3/27/2015 4/2/2015 11/12/2015 11/12/2015 10/31/2016 10/31/2016 5/30/2017 2/7/2018 1/30/2018 2/7/2018

Kings 4/17/2015 6/5/2015 4/7/2016 7/26/2016 4/7/2016 5/2/2017 5/2/2017 5/24/2017 1/29/2018 1/29/2018

Lake 1/31/2018 1/31/2018 2/12/2018 2/12/2018

Lassen 3/30/2015 7/27/2015 11/1/2015 12/16/2015 9/21/2016 9/29/2016 5/18/2017 5/25/2017

Los Angeles 5/6/2015 7/29/2015 10/17/2016 10/19/2016 4/20/2017 4/21/2017 1/31/2018 2/1/2018

Madera 4/1/2015 11/8/2016 11/13/2016 12/7/2016 12/6/2016 12/7/2016 5/12/2017 3/27/2018

Marin 3/11/2015 3/12/2015 9/6/2016 9/6/2016 10/21/2016 10/21/2016 5/10/2017 5/11/2017 1/31/2018 2/1/2018

Mariposa 6/26/2015 6/29/2015 9/23/2016 9/23/2016 9/23/2016 9/28/2016 5/18/2017 5/19/2017 3/14/2018 3/14/2018

Mendocino 5/1/2015 5/1/2015 10/28/2015 10/28/2015 5/31/2017 5/31/2017 8/31/2017 8/31/2017

Merced 5/9/2015 10/15/2015 10/20/2015 10/21/2015 3/28/2017 3/29/2017 7/21/2017 7/21/2017 2/1/2018 2/1/2018

Modoc 3/11/2015 3/12/2015 10/27/2015 11/10/2015 3/24/2016 3/25/2016 4/17/2017 4/19/2017

Mono 5/1/2015 6/2/2015 3/30/2016 4/4/2016 3/30/2016 4/6/2016 4/25/2017 6/20/2017 4/12/2018

Monterey 4/27/2015 5/6/2015 10/20/2017 10/23/2017 3/29/2018

Napa 6/17/2015 8/25/2017 8/18/2017 8/25/2017 8/18/2017 8/25/2017 11/9/2017 11/13/2017

Nevada 4/1/2015 4/2/2015 11/3/2015 11/23/2015

Orange 4/1/2015 4/7/2015 10/29/2015 10/5/2016 12/30/2015 12/30/2015 12/27/2016 4/13/2017 12/29/2017 1/25/2018

Placer 4/1/2015 12/16/2017 10/4/2016 10/5/2016 11/15/2016 11/17/2016 4/14/2017 4/18/2017 12/22/2017 1/23/2018

Plumas 11/3/2015 11/3/2015 4/10/2017 4/10/2017 6/8/2017 6/23/2017 3/27/2018 3/28/2018

Riverside 4/1/2015 4/6/2015 10/30/2015 11/2/2015 5/12/2017 5/15/2017 6/9/2017 6/12/2017 12/29/2017 1/25/2018

Sacramento 12/11/2015 12/11/2015 9/21/2016 9/21/2016 5/8/2017 5/8/2017 6/19/2017 6/20/2017 12/29/2017 1/25/2018

San Benito 4/8/2015 4/14/2015 4/18/2016 4/19/2016 10/24/2016 3/8/2016 9/8/2017 9/12/2017

San Bernardino 4/1/2015 4/14/2015 11/17/2015 11/17/2015 5/19/2016 5/19/2016 5/1/2017 5/1/2017

San Diego 4/8/2015 4/8/2015 12/2/2015 9/28/2016 12/18/2015 5/26/2017 5/26/2017 5/26/2017

San Francisco 4/17/2015 4/21/2014 10/30/2015 11/2/2015 3/4/2016 3/4/2016 7/5/2017 9/18/2017 3/21/2018 3/27/2018

San Joaquin 4/2/2015 4/7/2015 11/10/2016 11/10/2016 6/8/2017 6/13/2017 10/3/2017 10/4/2017 12/29/2017 1/25/2018

San Luis Obispo 4/3/2015 4/6/2015 11/6/2015 9/29/2016 1/15/2016 1/15/2016 5/12/2017 5/16/2017 2/15/2018 2/16/2018

San Mateo 3/15/2016 3/17/2016 9/28/2016 10/3/2016 5/9/2017 5/9/2017 10/10/2017 10/18/2017

Santa Barbara 4/2/2015 5/8/2015 5/24/2017 5/24/2017 5/24/2017 6/20/2017 5/24/2017 6/20/2017 12/22/2017 1/25/2018

Santa Clara 4/18/2017 4/20/2017 4/18/2017 4/20/2017 5/5/2017 5/11/2017 12/18/2017 1/4/2018

Santa Cruz 4/2/2015 4/17/2014 3/18/2016 3/23/2016

Shasta 10/29/2015 11/2/2015 10/29/2015 9/30/2014 10/7/2016 10/7/2016 4/14/2017 4/17/2017 3/29/2018 3/30/2018

Sierra 10/9/2015 11/2/2015 10/17/2016 10/18/2016 10/17/2016 10/17/2016 8/16/2017

Siskiyou 10/30/2015 3/24/2017 6/30/2017 7/10/2017 6/30/2017 7/10/2017 6/30/2017 7/10/2017

Solano 4/1/2015 4/6/2015 10/29/2015 11/3/2015 12/29/2015 12/30/2015 3/23/2017 4/4/2017 12/28/2017 1/25/2018

Sonoma 12/18/2015 11/20/2016 12/6/2016 12/6/2016 4/10/2017 4/10/2017 6/26/2017 6/27/2017

Stanislaus 3/19/2015 4/3/2015 10/27/2015 10/28/2015 12/22/2015 12/22/2015 4/5/2017 4/5/2017

Sutter‐Yuba 11/19/2015 12/22/2015 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018 4/3/2018

Tehama 5/29/2015 6/19/2015 3/31/2016 4/4/2016 4/29/2016 5/11/2017 5/8/2017 5/16/2017

Tri‐City 4/3/2015 4/16/2015 10/30/2015 2/3/2016 12/30/2015 2/3/2016 4/6/2017 4/6/2017 12/29/2017 2/15/2018

Trinity 10/9/2015 10/14/2015 3/23/2016 3/23/2016 9/19/2016 9/23/2016 7/14/2017 7/14/2017

Tulare 3/26/2015 6/9/2015 12/3/2015 12/3/2015 3/17/2016 3/22/2016 4/12/2017 4/12/2017 12/26/2017 1/25/2018

Tuolumne 4/1/2015 4/7/2015 10/26/2015 11/2/2015 12/23/2015 12/28/2015 4/10/2017 5/18/2017 2/16/2018 3/1/2018

Ventura 6/19/2015 6/30/2015 10/29/2015 11/3/2015 12/31/2015 1/4/2016 4/14/2017 4/27/2017

Yolo 4/2/2015 4/7/2015 6/16/2017 6/21/2017 6/21/2017 6/21/2017 3/9/2018 3/12/2018 3/23/2018 3/26/2018

Total 59 59 59 59 56 55 55 53 31 27

DHCS Validated RER Status Table
FY 12‐13 FY 13‐14 FY 14‐15 FY 15‐16 FY 16‐17

oacbrandonmcmillen
Typewritten Text
Current From: 4/12/18

oacbrandonmcmillen
Typewritten Text

oacbrandonmcmillen
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 4, Enclosure 6



1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 Information 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
California State Auditor’s February 2018 Report  

on the Mental Health Services Act 
 

 
Summary: The Commission will be presented with an overview regarding 
the State Auditor’s February 2018 report on oversight of the Mental Health 
Services Act.  
 
The overview provides background on the impetus for the State Auditor’s 
report, a summary of key findings, and recommendations.  
 
The Auditor’s report including the responses to the audit report from DHCS, 
the Commission, and Alameda County Behavioral Health Care Services is 
on the State Auditor’s website: 

 https://www.bsa.ca.gov/reports/2017-117/index.html 
  

Background 
 
In June 2017 the Joint Legislative Audit Committee directed the State 
Auditor to conduct an audit on the oversight of the Mental Health Services 
Act (MHSA). This audit request was initiated by Senator Beall, a member of 
the Joint Legislative Audit Committee and of the Mental Health Services 
Oversight and Accountability Commission.  
 
The audit request was, in part, a result of the Commission work on the 
MHSA fiscal reversion policy. A full copy of the April 2017 Reversion Report 
is on the Commission’s website: 

 http://www.mhsoac.ca.gov/fiscal-reversion-0 
 
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 

Enclosures: (1) Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 
Report: Mental Health Services Act, The State Could Better Ensure the 
Effective Use Of Mental Health Services Act Funding; (2) Audit: Mental 
Health Services Act, The State Could Better Ensure the Effective Use of 
Mental Health Services Act Funding 

 
 



 

 

Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report:  

Mental Health Services Act, The State Could Better Ensure the Effective Use  

Of Mental Health Services Act Funding 

 

INTRODUCTION 

On February 27, 2018 the California State Auditor released a report on the Mental Health Services Act, 

“The State Could Better Ensure the Effective Use of Mental Health Services Act funding”.  The report 

focuses on the responsibilities of the Department of Health Care Services and the Mental Health 

Services Oversight and Accountability Commission. 

This overview provides a brief background on the impetus for the State Auditor’s report, a summary of 

key findings and recommendations related to the California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 

and the Commission, and discusses next steps for the Commission’s consideration.  

A full copy of the Auditor’s report, including the responses to the audit report from the DHCS, the 

Commission, and Alameda County Behavioral Health Care Services, is on the State Auditor’s website 

(https://www.bsa.ca.gov/reports/2017‐117/index.html).  

 

BACKGROUND 

In June 2017 the Joint Legislative Audit Committee directed the State Auditor to audit the oversight of 

the Mental Health Services Act.  This effort was led by Senator Beall, a member of the Joint Legislative 

Audit Committee and of the Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission.  

The audit request was, in part, a result of the Commission work on the MHSA fiscal reversion policy. A 

full copy of the April 2017 Reversion Report is on the Commission’s website  

http://www.mhsoac.ca.gov/fiscal‐reversion‐0).  

In its April 2017 fiscal reversion report, the Commission found that counties held in excess of $100 million 

that, by law should have been returned to the State Mental Health Services Fund by the end of fiscal year 

2015‐16 The Commission’s policy report noted that, according to DHCS, no funds had reverted since 2008.   

The Commission has to date not been able to fully document the amount of unspent MHSA funds held 

by the counties because the State has not received all of the required, annual Revenue and Expenditure 

Reports. The Commission’s report found that despite these annual reporting requirements, many 

counties had not submitted their reports by the annual deadline, and in some cases had not submitted 

required reports within a year or more of the deadline.  



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 2 
 

 

In response to the Commission’s work on fiscal reversion, in July 2017 the Legislature enacted Assembly 

Bill 114 (Chapter 38, Statutes of 2017), which allowed counties to retain funds that should have reverted 

in prior years. AB 114 also required DHCS to report on the funds that otherwise would have been 

subject to reversion and the counties are required to develop a spending plan by July 1, 2018 and spend 

those funds prior to July 1, 2020.  

 

SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS 

The Auditor lists the following three key findings: 

 DHCS’ ineffective oversight of local mental health agencies and the MHS Fund allowed hundreds 

of millions of dollars to remain unspent. 

 DHCS has provided only minimal oversight of the MHSA funds that local mental health agencies 

received. 

 The Oversight Commission is implementing processes to evaluate the effectiveness of MHSA‐

Funded programs. 

Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 

 Due to DHCS’ ineffective oversight of local mental health agencies, as of the end of fiscal year 2015‐16 

there was between $469 million to $586 million in unspent MHSA being held by the local mental 

health agencies.  The Auditor bases this finding on the following: 

 

 $231 million of unspent funds at the county level as of the end of fiscal year 2015‐16 that should 

have been reverted to the State for reallocation to the other counties.  These unspent funds 

held by the counties were the result of DHCS’ failure to develop a process to implement the 

return of unspent MHSA funds.  

 The Audit report points out that the Legislature provided a one‐time fix through 

Assembly Bill (AB) 114 that allowed counties to keep the funds subject to reversion as of 

July 1, 2017. AB 114 also directs DHCS to resolve the issue of funds subject to reversion 

after July 1, 2017. 

 

 $81 million in unspent MHSA interest through fiscal year 2015‐16 is held at the county level. The 

report finds that due to lack of guidance from DHCS, counties have been inconsistent on how 

they treat interest earned on MHSA funds held locally. This lack of guidance has allowed 

counties to accumulate millions in unspent MHSA interest without reference to a reversion 

period in which the funds must be spent or returned to the State fund.  

 The report cites that the three counties visited, Alameda, Riverside, and San Diego have 

not established policies governing how to spend interest on MHSA funds. Alameda 

reported $3.9 million in unspent MHSA interest as of FY 2015‐16 and treated it as fiscal 

reserve because it believed the interest was not subject to reversion. Riverside indicated it 

had $6.6 million in interest and it too believed it was not subject to reversion. San Diego 

had $11 million in interest.   

 

 Between $157 million and $274 million in excessive local prudent reserves as of end of fiscal 

year 2015‐16. These funds are in addition to cash reserves—MHSA revenues that have not yet 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 3 
 

 

been expended or transferred to a local prudent reserve. Counties are required by law to 

maintain a local prudent reserve in their local MHS funds, not subject to fiscal reversion, to 

insure that essential mental health services can be maintained when new MHSA revenues fall 

below recent averages, adjusted for population growth and inflation. According to the audit 

report, the excessive reserves are a consequence of DHCS not establishing a process for 

overseeing the sufficiency of local mental health MHSA fund reserves. The audit report states 

that these reserves totaled approximately $535 million at the end of fiscal year 2015‐16.   

Current law permits counties to transfer a portion of annual Community Services and Supports (CSS) 

revenue into its local MHS prudent reserve or to two other MHSA component accounts (Workforce 

Education and Training programs or for Capital Facilities and Technological Needs projects).  

 The report states that because prudent reserve accounts are not subject to reversion, 

the lack of DHCS guidance has permitted counties to shelter unspent CSS funds from 

reversion. 

 The report recommended DHCS use historical declines in the MHSA funding for CSS to 

establish a reasonable level of reserves. The audit reports, that the average revenue 

decrease in years in which revenues declined from the prior year was 23 percent of the 

prior year’s revenue, with a maximum decline of 33 percent from the prior year.  The 

audit states that had DHCS required counties to maintain a maximum prudent reserve 

level of 23 percent, an additional $274 million would have been available for mental 

health services in fiscal year 2015‐16. 

 According to the audit, DHCS intends to include a standard reserve level in the 

regulations that it anticipates submitting in January 2019.  

 

 DHCS has spent from $7.9 million to $8.6 million annually over the past four fiscal years to 

administer the fund and has not developed the regulations necessary to implement fiscal reversion, 

regulate prudent reserve levels, or manage interest earned on unspent local MHS funds.  According 

to the audit report, DHCS initially anticipated submitting the regulations for regulatory review in 

June 2018 but in its response to the audit report the department has pushed the date back to 

January 2019. However, AB 114 specifically authorizes DHCS to implement, interpret or make 

specific the MHSA‐related fiscal provisions of the bill via all‐county letters or similar instructions 

until such regulations are in place.  

 

 DHCS has not exercised appropriate oversight of the MHS Fund balance under its authority. Per the 

State Controller’s accounting records, there was a MHS Fund balance in DHCS’ appropriations of 

$225 million that has existed since 2012.  According to the audit report, as of February 2018 the 

State Controller made an adjustment and removed the $225 million fund balance. The audit report 

notes that DHCS will work with the State Controller to ascertain the reason for the adjustment.  

 

 DHCS provided only minimal oversight of the MHSA Funds that local mental health agencies 

received. 

 

 DHCS has developed reporting instructions but it has made little effort to ensure counties 

submit their annual revenue and expenditure reports on time. This has hampered DHCS’ ability 

to calculate MHSA reversion and properly oversee MHSA spending. State regulations requires 

counties to submit their annual report by December 31 following the end of the fiscal year. Most 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 4 
 

 

counties failed to submit their reports on time. Only 1 of the 59 counties had submitted its fiscal 

year 2015‐16 report by the regulatory deadline. 

 

 DHCS has had the legal authority and the funding to establish regulations that would allow it to 

implement sanctions against counties that do not comply with the annual reporting 

requirements since 2012. DHCS anticipates developing regulations in January 2019. 

 

 Although DHCS has taken some steps towards implementing fiscal audits, it had not completed an 

audit for any county as of December 2017.  Specifically, in 2014 DHCS developed a process for MHSA 

fiscal audits and hired three permanent audit staff, and had done the fieldwork at three counties but 

none of these audits have been finalized.  

 

 The report noted that DHCS indicated that audit results will not be released until it establishes a 

regulatory appeals process that enable a county to challenge any of the audit findings of 

unallowed costs.  DHCS anticipates submitting the audit appeals regulations in the spring of 2019.  

 

 According to the audit report DHCS’ has decided to conduct MHSA fiscal audits in conjunction 

with its Medi‐Cal cost reports, which has resulted in DHCS focusing on data and processes that 

are outdated because of the backlog of overdue Medi‐Cal cost reports. Given the age of the 

information, the audit’s findings and recommendations would have limited value. According to 

the report, DHCS acknowledged that performing fiscal audits on more recent fiscal years may be 

needed to ensure more relevant reviews and findings of controls over MHSA funds. 

 

 DHCS has not developed regulations nor has it implemented program review process to ensure 

MHSA projects operated by local mental health agencies comply with program requirements 

contained in state laws and regulations. 

The Oversight Commission  

 The Commission is implementing processes to provide technical assistance to and improve dialogue 

with the counties regarding Innovation projects. 

 

 Counties have struggled to spend Innovation funds within the required time frame. Even though 

Innovation funds are only 5 percent of the total MHSA that counties receive, they account for 

approximately 63 percent of the $231 million in MHSA funds the audit report identified as 

subject to reversion as of the end of fiscal year 2015‐16.  

 

 The audit report references the Commission’s Innovation subcommittee’s list of the challenges 

that counties face when developing viable Innovation projects as factors that might have 

contributed to counties’ inability to spend Innovation funds in a timely manner:   

 Pressure from local stakeholders to focus on direct services that are less risky and result in 

easily attainable outcomes. 

 Lack of clarity as to the types of projects the commissioners consider “innovative.” 

 Not enough dissemination of lessons learned from project ideas that did not succeed and 

limited sharing of new project ideas among local mental health agencies. 

 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 5 
 

 

 The report states that the actions the Commission has taken, such as establishing the 

subcommittee on Innovation, updating the template for use by counties in submitting their 

proposed Innovation projects, and the one‐day Innovation event, are reasonable steps to 

encourage more engagement and dialogue between the counties and the Commission. The 

audit report notes that it is too soon to know the impact of these actions on improving the 

counties’ understanding of Innovation and reducing the level of unspent Innovation funds. 

 

 The report notes that the length of the Commission’s approval process does not appear to have 

been a factor affecting the ability of counties to spend Innovation funds. 

 

 The Commission is adopting a process for analyzing the local mental health agencies’ status reports 

for Prevention and Innovation projects. 

 

 The report states that the Commission is taking steps to implement its responsibility to evaluate 

the effectiveness of the Prevention and Innovation projects. It notes the regulations issued by 

the Commission in 2015 in response to a 2013 change in state law require local mental health 

agencies to submit detailed demographic date on the populations that are being served by the 

counties. The first status report was due December 2017 and the audit report suggests that the 

Commission has not developed internal processes to review and analyze the reports. 

 

 The report mentions that in August 2017, the Commission launched an online MHSA fiscal 

transparency tool that uses an interactive map to display the counties’ annual MHSA revenues, 

expenditure, and year‐end balances of unspent funds.  

 

 The Commission is developing statewide metrics to evaluate the effectiveness of MHSA‐funded 

triage grants. 

 

 The first round of triage grants that the Commission awarded required the counties that receive 

the grants to submit progress reports on the number of triage personnel they have hired, the 

individuals they have served, and the encounters with individuals that have led to referrals to 

mental health services. The report notes that the Commission reviews these reports and 

conducts site visits to ensure that the grantees have attained the goals they identified in their 

grant applications. 

 

 The audit report notes that the initial round of grants did not have a unified evaluation approach 

and the evaluations the Commission received from the grantees represented different 

approaches and proved too diverse for the Commission to aggregate and translate into a 

statewide picture.  The report acknowledges that the Commission is funding a statewide 

evaluation for the second round of triage grants. 

 

 The report states that the steps the Commission had taken were reasonable but questions why 

the Commission had not established a statewide process for evaluating triage effectiveness 

sooner. 

 

 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 6 
 

 

Alameda, Riverside, and San Diego Counties 

The audit report briefly mentions the results of its review of three local mental health agencies: 

Alameda, Riverside, and San Diego. The report notes that these three counties allocated MHSA funds 

appropriately, and generally monitored their MHSA‐funded projects effectively.  

 

AUDITOR’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND AGENCIES’ RESPONSES 

The audit report contains specific recommendations to address the findings. There are eight 

recommendations directed to DHCS, three directed to the Commission, and one directed to Alameda 

County.   

As part of the audit process, each agency was provided a confidential draft of the findings and 

recommendations related to the specific agency and an opportunity to respond. As provided by the 

Bagley‐Keene Open Meeting Act, the Commission held a closed session on February 8, 2018 to review 

the confidential draft and write a response.  

The audit report contains a copy of the responses submitted by DHCS, the Commission and Alameda 

County. It also contains the Auditor’s comments to DHCS’ response.   

Each of the recommendations and a summary of the responses are listed below. A reference to the page 

number where the full responses may be found is provided.  

Recommendations Directed to DHCS and DHCS’ Response 

 To effectively monitor MHSA spending and provide guidance to the local mental health agencies, 

DHCS should publish its proposed regulations in the California Regulatory Notice Register by June 

2018 and subsequently take the following actions: 

 

 Develop an MHSA reversion process to ensure the State can reallocate any MHSA funds that 

local mental health agencies do not spend within the statutory reversion time frames. 

 DHCS agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 51 of the audit 

report. 

 

 

 Clarify that the interest the local mental health agencies earn on unspent MHSA funds is subject 

to the same reversion requirements as the MHSA funds they received. 

 DHCS agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 52 of the audit 

report. 

 

 Establish and enforce an MHSA reserve level that will allow local mental health agencies to 

maintain sufficient funds to continue providing crucial mental health services in times of 

economic hardship, but that will not result in them holding reserves that are excessive. DHCS 

should also establish controls over local mental health agencies’ deposits to and withdrawals 

from their reserves. 

 DHCS agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 53 of the audit 

report. 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 7 
 

 

 

 DHCS should complete its analysis of the $225 million fund balance in the MHS Fund by May 1, 2018 

to determine why this balance existed, whether there is any impact on funding to the local mental 

health agencies and, if so, distribute those funds accordingly. It should also establish a process to 

regularly scrutinize the MHS Fund to identify any excess fund balances and the reasons for such 

balances. 

 DHCS partially agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 54 of 

the audit report. 

 

 To ensure that it provides effective oversight of local mental health agencies’ reporting of MHSA 

funds, DHCS should publish its proposed [fiscal] regulations in the California Regulatory Notice 

Register by June 2018. DHCS should then subsequently implement a process that will enable it to 

withhold MHSA funds from local mental health agencies that fail to submit their annual reports on 

time. 

 DHCS partially agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 54 of 

the audit report. 

 

 To ensure that local mental health agencies appropriately spend MHSA funds, DHCS should publish 

its proposed [audit appeal] regulations in the California Regulatory Notice Register by September 

2018. It should then develop and implement an MHSA fiscal audit process, independent of the 

Medi‐Cal reviews, to review revenues and expenditures for the most recent fiscal year. 

 DHCS disagrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 55 of the 

audit report. 

 

 To ensure that local mental health agencies comply with their performance contracts and MHSA 

requirements, DHCS should establish a process for conducting comprehensive program reviews and 

begin conducting those reviews by July 2018. 

 DHCS agrees with the recommendation. The DHCS’ full response is on page 56 of the audit 

report. 

 

Recommendations Directed to the Commission and the Commission’s Response 

 To ensure that local mental health agencies are able to spend Innovation program funds in a timely 

manner, the Commission should continue its efforts to help local mental health agencies understand 

the types of Innovation projects that the commissioners believe are appropriate. These efforts 

should include engagement and dialogue with local mental health agencies through Innovation 

events and forums about the types of innovative approaches that would meet the requirements of 

the MHSA. The Commission should use meetings of the Innovation subcommittee or a similar 

mechanism to evaluate the progress of its efforts to reduce unspent Innovation funds and the need 

for continued engagement and dialogue with local mental health agencies. 

 

 To ensure proper oversight and evaluation of outcomes for the Prevention and Innovation projects, 

the Commission should finalize its internal processes for reviewing and analyzing the program 

statues reports no later than July 2018. Further, in order to fulfill its statutory responsibility to 

provide oversight and accountability of MHSA programs, the Commission should ensure that it 



Overview of the California State Auditor February 2018 Report 

Page 8 
 

 

launches all three data tools to track local mental health agencies’ funding, services and outcomes 

as it intends. 

 

 To ensure the MHSA‐funded triage grants are effective, the Commission should require that local 

mental health agencies uniformly report data on their uses of triage grants. It should also establish 

statewide metrics to evaluate the impact of triage grants by July 2018. 

Recommendations Directed to Alameda County and the County’s Response 

 To strengthen its monitoring of MHSA projects and ensure that it spends MHSA funds appropriately, 

Alameda should develop and implement MHSA program monitoring guidelines to ensure that staff 

appropriately perform and document their monitoring activities. 

 Alameda County agrees with the recommendation. The County’s full response is on page 72 of 

the audit report. 

 

NEXT STEPS 

 Follow up on the $225 million noted in the audit report that was removed from the DHCS’ fund 

balance by the State Controller in February 2018.  

 In response to Commission staff’s request, Department Finance (DOF) stated that there was no 

$225 million fund balance in the MHSF and that the amount identified in the audit report was an 

old holdover appropriation of county funds which DOF believes is attributed to the transition 

from Department of Mental Health to DHCS. DOF informed staff that the appropriation did not 

have an impact to county MHS Fund allocation when DOF completed its monthly fund 

reconciliation.  

 Commission staff has reached out to the State Controller Office to get further clarification on 

the adjustment and will work with DHCS on this issue.  

 As to the recommendations directed to the Commission: 

 Staff is continuing its efforts to support local mental health agencies in their Innovation projects. 

As directed by the Commission at the February 2018, staff is proceeding with developing the 

Innovation Incubator business plan.  

 Staff is analyzing the Prevention and Early Intervention (PEI) and the Innovation annual reports 

that were submitted by the counties. To date, there are twenty‐ two counties that have not yet 

submit the PEI report and thirteen counties that have not submitted their Innovation report. 

Staff is working with these counties to better understand the delay and provide assistance to 

ensure the reports are submitted. 

 Staff is proceeding with implementing the Commission’s authorization to enter into a $10 

million contract for evaluating the second round of Triage grants.  

    



1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Award Senate Bill 82 Children’s Triage Program Grants 

 
 
Summary:  The Mental health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission 
has issued three separate Requests for Applications (RFA) for Senate Bill 82 
Triage Program Grants. On March 22, 2018, the Commission awarded the first set 
of grants for a total of $48 million to 15 counties to operate mental health 
crisis triage intervention programs for adults and transitional age youth.  At the 
April 26, 2018 meeting the Commission will consider awarding the second set of 
grants which is for children’s Triage Program.  

On February 12, 2018, the Commission released the second of the three RFAs. 
Up to $29.6 million dollars was made available to fund programs that provide 
services for those who are in need of a mental health crisis intervention in the  
0-21 age range. The third RFA has been released and is intended to fund programs 
aimed at crisis services for children and/or their parents/caregivers. This final triage 
RFA is still in open procurement. 

Applications for the 0-21 RFA were due on April 6, 2018. Applications were scored 
by Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission staff. An 
overview of the winning Applications will be provided to the Commission with a 
staff recommendation to approve those Applications. 

Background  

Senate Bill (SB) 82, (Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review, Chapter 34, statutes 
of 2013), enacted the Investment in Mental Health Wellness Act (Act). Through a 
competitive grant process, the Act afforded California the opportunity to use Mental 
Health Services Act (MHSA) funds to expand crisis services for individuals who were 
experiencing a mental health crisis by increasing the number of crisis triage 
personnel throughout the state. Often through collaborative relationships with 
community partners and entities such as hospitals and law enforcement, crisis triage 
personnel provide linkages for services and direct services.  

The main objectives of the Act are to decrease unnecessary expenditures of law 
enforcement personnel, decrease the overutilization of hospital emergency 
departments by individuals in a mental health crisis, and to divert individuals in 
crisis to more appropriate levels of care.  

Round One 

In February 2014, the Commission funded and administered contracts to 
implement triage grant services for 24 counties. These counties received a total of 
$32 million per year over the course of the grants, which were to run from fiscal 
years (FY) 2013-14 through 2016-17. Due to implementation delays, the 
Commission extended the time available to expend awarded triage grant dollars 
by one fiscal year. This extension will end on June 30, 2018.  

The first round of grants resulted in more than 70,000 instances of individuals 
utilizing the services provided through the triage grants. Outcomes associated with 



2 | P a g e  
 

these grants include an increase in access and linkages to services and resources 
and in the utilization of peers in crisis intervention, a reduction in psychiatric 
hospitalizations and in stigma associated with mental illness, and improved 
consumer well-being and coordination of services.  

Despite these successes, children’s advocates expressed concern that the 
perception among providers and counties was that Triage funds were specifically 
authorized to serve adults, even though the authorizing legislation is silent on that 
issue. As a result of those concerns and the underrepresentation of children and 
youth in the first round of Triage grant programs, the Legislature modified the 
authorizing statute to clarify that Triage funds can be used to provide services that 
are specific to serving children and youth in schools and other settings. SB 833 
(Committee on Budget and Fiscal Review, Chapter 414, statutes of 2016) 
amended the Investment in Mental Health Wellness Act to specifically authorize 
the triage grants to provide a complete continuum of crisis intervention services 
and supports for children aged 21 and under and their families and caregivers. 

Round Two 

In mid-2016, Commission staff began the process of writing an RFA in preparation 
for a second round of grant funding, slated to begin in FY 2018-19. Interested 
parties, stakeholders, the California Hospital Association, California Sheriffs, law 
enforcement personnel, other collaborative partners, and Subject Matter Experts 
were engaged in forums, meetings, and/or presentations to garner information 
about the successes and challenges of the Triage Grant programs. These efforts 
included quarterly meetings with county Triage Grant Coordinators, on-site visits 
to active triage grant programs, an informational meeting with law enforcement, a 
forum on Triage, an informational meeting in Berkeley, and meetings with the 
Commission’s Client and Family Leadership Committee and the Cultural and 
Linguistic Competence Committee. 

During this time, Commission staff utilized the lessons learned from the information 
gathered and made a series of recommendations to the Commission related to the 
next round of grants that resulted in the following actions: 

Proposed Motion:  

 The MHSOAC awards the 0-21 Triage Personnel Grants to the 
recommended counties for the specified amounts listed and directs 
the Executive Director to issue a Notice of Intent to make the 
recommended awards.  
 

July  
2017 
 

The Commission adopted the staff-recommended principals derived 
from the June 29, 2017, SB 82 Triage Grant Information Gathering 
Meeting. These principles included the following: 
o Statewide evaluation strategy 
o Set aside for children’s triage funding 
o Population based apportionment 

August 
2017 
 

The Commission voted to make 50 percent of Triage funds available 
for children and youth ages birth to 21 years. The remaining 50 percent 
would be made available to transition aged youth and adults. 

November 
2017 
 

The Commission authorized the Executive Director to release the 
SB 82 funds in a competitive manner and within that amount, no less 
than $30 million be made available for county-school mental health 
partnerships.   



3 | P a g e  
 

 The MHSOAC establishes May 10, 2018 as the deadline for 
unsuccessful applicants to submit an Appeal consistent with the ten 
working days standard set forth in the Request for Applicants. 

 
 The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to notify the 

Commission Chair and Vice Chair of any appeals within two working 
days of the submission and to adjudicate the appeals consistent with 
the procedure provided in the Request for Applications.  

 
 The MHSOAC directs the Executive Director to execute the contracts 

upon expiration of the appeal period or consideration of the appeals, 
whichever comes first. 

 
 The MHSOAC directs any additional funds that may become 

available for the 0-21 triage grants to be allocated first to applicants 
who are partially funded due to lack of funding and then to the next 
highest scoring counties that were not funded until all funds are 
allocated.  

 
 The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to negotiate with 

partially funded counties including, but not limited to, terms such as 
delayed implementation while awaiting possible additional funds. 

 
Presenters: Norma Pate, Deputy Director; Tom Orrock, Chief of Commission 
Operations and Grants; Kristal Antonicelli, Project Lead 

Enclosure: None 

Handout: A PowerPoint will be provided at the meeting 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Evaluation Contracts Authorization 

 

 
Summary: In 2015, the Commission began an effort to document and make 
publicly available information on mental health revenues and expenditures, 
services, and outcomes. The first phase of that work focused on fiscal 
transparency and included the Commission’s report on Fiscal Reversion 
and the release of the fiscal transparency tool, covering revenues received, 
expenditures, and funding available for allocation.  

Phase two, covering mental health programs and services, is currently in 
development. This tool will provide information on mental health programs 
and services, including information on people served. This information is 
drawn from the reporting counties provide to the Commission through their 
Three-Year Program and Expenditure Plans, and other reports.  

Phase three would identify, track and display key information on mental 
health outcomes. The Commission’s initial efforts to track outcomes focus 
on the seven core outcomes identified in the Prevention and Early 
Intervention component of the MHSA, namely, reductions in criminal justice 
involvement, school failure, removal of children from their homes, 
homelessness, suicide, unemployment, and prolonged suffering.  

As part of this work, the Commission recently linked data on arrests and 
convictions with mental health client data. That work is intended to improve 
understanding of whether and how mental health services, such as Full-
Service Partnership wrap-around services, are reducing criminal justice 
involvement. Similar work is underway to link mental health data with other 
data sets, including employment, education, and child welfare.  

The Commission also has been exploring options to track disparities, and 
other goals established in the Act.  

Commissioners have discussed the need to create a broader discussion of 
mental health outcomes beyond these goals, such as timely access to care.  

In support of this need, the Commission will consider authorizing the 
Executive Director to enter into one or more contracts, not to exceed 
$1,400,000, to support the development and implementation of a strategy 
to identify and track existing and additional mental health outcomes. 

Presenter: Brian Sala, Ph.D., Deputy Director, Evaluation and Program Operations 

Enclosures: None.  

Handouts: A PowerPoint will be presented at the meeting.  



2 | P a g e  
 

Proposed Motion: The Commission authorizes the Executive Director to 
enter into one or more contracts, not to exceed $1,400,000, to support the 
development and implementation of a statewide strategy for MHSA 
evaluation, including establishing statewide outcomes goals, outcomes 
tracking, component evaluation, and ongoing evaluation. 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8 
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Approval of Innovation Funds for Community Planning  

of Innovation Projects 
 

 
Summary: San Diego County has requested authorization to use $100,000 
of Innovation funds for a community planning process to guide an 
Innovation project. The County is proposing using a Human-Centered 
Design strategy in this process.  

Appropriate Use of Innovation Funds? In considering this request, the 
Commission should explore whether use of Innovation funding is 
appropriate for this purpose. The Mental Health Services Act requires the 
counties to dedicate up to five percent of their MHSA funds for community 
planning purposes, including Innovation planning. County officials 
suggest they primarily use funding from their Community Services and 
Supports (CSS), or other county funds, to pay for the Innovation planning.  
 
Precedence. During its November 2017 meeting, the Commission 
authorized Santa Clara County to use approximately $572,000 in Innovation 
funding to support a planning phase for its Head Space Innovation Project. 
Following the planning process, the County indicated it would return to the 
Commission to seek support for implementation funding. Supporting this 
request is consistent with the Commission's vote to authorize Santa Clara 
County's use of Innovation funding for planning project development purposes. 
 
Reasonable Limits on Planning Funds. The Commission has the option of 
considering this request for San Diego County or for all counties. The 
Commission should consider directing staff to work with counties to develop 
a reasonable and appropriate limit on the use of Innovation funds for 
Innovation planning and a strategy to monitor the use of those funds.  
 
Presenter: Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director 

Enclosures: March 28, 2018 letter from San Diego County.  

Proposed Motion: The Commission approves San Diego County’s request 
to spend $100,000 of Innovation funds to support a Human-Centered 
Design strategy to develop its next Innovation Project. Commission directs 
staff to develop and present to the Commission a strategy for approving use 
of Innovation funds to support counties’ planning for Innovation projects. 





1 | P a g e  
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9 
Information 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Draft Business Plan for Innovation Incubator 

 
 
Summary: The Governor has included in his January 2018 budget proposal 
$5 million in funding for the Commission to establish an Innovation 
Incubator as a strategy to support county mental health innovations. The 
Governor's proposal would require these funds to focus on strategies to 
reduce the number of mental health consumers who become involved with 
the criminal justice system.  
 
Consistent with a vote of the Commission at its March 22, 2018 meeting, 
staff has asked the Assembly and Senate Budget Committees to consider 
augmenting that investment by an additional $5 million to support 
innovations around the needs of children.  
 
In support of this funding proposal, the Commission retained California 
Forward and X-SECTOR LAB to support the development of a business 
plan for the Innovation Incubator for the Commission’s consideration.  
 
Executive Director Ewing will provide a brief overview of the project 
including information from the February 2018 Innovation Summit convened 
by the Commission. David Smith, with X-SECTOR LAB, will provide an 
overview of the proposed process for the development of the business plan.  
 
Presenters:  

 Toby Ewing, Ph.D., Executive Director; and  
 David Smith,    X-SECTOR LAB 

Enclosures: Project Brief  

Proposed Motion: Information only item 

 



Summary
The innovation provisions of the Mental Health 

Services Act (MHSA) provide California the 

opportunity to develop, test and scale new 

approaches to service delivery with the potential 

to significantly improve mental health services 

and outcomes. The primary purpose of MHSA’s 

innovation projects is to achieve the following:

 � Increase access to mental health services to 

underserved groups, including but not limited 

to, services provided through permanent 

supportive housing

 � Promote interagency and community 

collaboration related to mental health services

 � Increase the quality of mental health services 

and measurable outcomes, including the 

reduction of:

 w homelessness

 w incarceration

 w suicide

 w unemployment

 w other mental health related challenges

From April to July 2018, the Mental Health 

Services Oversight and Accountability Commission 

(MHSOAC), in partnership with California Forward 

and X Sector Labs, will undergo a series of 

public meetings and design labs to explore the 

administrative functions, build a business plan, 

and develop criteria for the management of an 

organization that can incubate mental health 

innovation in California. This process will inform 

the MHSOAC on best practices and analogous 

models, and it will provide an opportunity for 

stakeholder engagement. A proposal will be 

completed for presentation and discussion at the 

MHSOAC Commission meeting in July 2018.

This innovation incubator would help counties:

 � Work collectively to develop partnerships 

within their communities and among counties

 � Secure technical assistance and connect 

the incubation process with the formal 

community planning process

 � Design and implement better community 

engagement strategies, including innovation 

with consumers and community partners at 

the center

 � Evaluate projects and emerging practices 

to encourage replication and continuous 

improvement

 � Disseminate information on challenges and 

progress through a community of practice

Key Questions to Investigate
1. What are the desired functions of the 

innovation incubator (challenges, solutions, 

services delivered, outputs and outcomes)?

2. What is the business model (or set of models) 

for a sustainable innovation incubator?

• Which agencies and organizations should 

be involved and how can they be involved 

from the beginning to support, own and 

make it successful and viable?

3. What is the best model for management, 

governance and operation?

4. Who will run the incubator over time (operator 

selection process)?

BUILDING AN INCUBATOR 
FOR MENTAL HEALTH 
INNOVATION IN CALIFORNIA



Challenge and Opportunity
Counties develop plans for spending innovation 

funds and the Commission reviews and approves 

those plans. The Commission has found that 

the innovation component of the MHSA could 

be enhanced through the support and technical 

assistance of external innovators and subject 

matter experts, as well as strategies to encourage 

cross-county collaboration.

The Commission recently explored the 

circumstances, procedures and services 

associated with individuals with mental health 

needs who become involved in the criminal justice 

system.  State policymakers are concerned about 

the significant increase in court referrals to State 

Hospitals for those deemed incompetent to 

stand trial.  The growing costs and unsatisfactory 

outcomes associated with this intersection of 

the mental health and criminal justice systems 

are unacceptable, and these circumstances 

present the need and opportunity for innovation 

in services and practices that could reduce the 

number of and better manage these cases. 

The Commission believes there are opportunities 

throughout the mental health system to transform 

practices and services in ways that improve care 

and results. The Commission aspires to work with 

counties to develop the right support structure to 

produce these innovations.  The incubator will be 

a consulting service that brings together experts 

from health care, technology, communications, 

translation science and management sectors to 

improve California’s use of innovation funds. The 

Commission will establish a selection process to 

identify a partner to design, create and launch this 

incubation service.

The incubator will be a physical venue for 

innovation where groups of counties can come for 

human-centered design experiences, collaboration 

opportunities, and prototyping interventions that 

can be funded for implementation. The initial 

focus of the incubator will be on reducing the 

number of mental health consumers who become 

involved in the criminal justice system as a 

strategy to reduce the number of people declared 

incompetent to stand trial in California, while also 

exploring other high priority mental health needs.

Timeline and Key Dates

APRIL 26 
MHSOAC COMMISSIONER MEETING 
LOS ANGELES

TBD 
STAKEHOLDER MEETING 
SACRAMENTO

MAY-JUNE: DESIGN LABS 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA & L.A. COUNTY

• Focus: Desired functions/services/outcomes/
business model/partners 

• Participants: County/State Agencies, Community 
Partners, Mental Health Services Providers, and 
Innovation/Design Experts

MAY 24: COMMISSION MEETING PRESENTATION 
OF EARLY LEARNINGS 
SACRAMENTO

JULY 26: COMMISSION MEETING PRESENTATION 
OF BUSINESS PLAN 
LOS ANGELES

Background
In November 2004, California voters passed 

Proposition 63, the Mental Health Services 

Act (MHSA) to expand mental health service 

throughout the state.  The Act specifies allocations 

for county expenditures but permits each county 

to develop plans to address their specific needs. 

Of the total funding provided to each county, five 

percent (5%) is required to support innovation 

projects. The Act created the Mental Health 

Services Oversight and Accountability Commission 

(MHSOAC) to provide broad oversight and 

leadership in the community mental health system 

statewide. MHSOAC is charged with numerous 

roles, including the exploration of innovative 

strategies to transform community mental health 

services and oversight and approval of over $100 

million per year in county innovation projects.

MHSOAC: BUILDING AN INCUBATOR FOR MENTAL HEALTH INNOVATION IN CALIFORNIA



 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10 
 Action 

 
April 26, 2018 Commission Meeting 

 
Legislation 

 
 
Summary: The Commission will consider whether to support legislations 
related to mental health services under the Mental Health Services Act.  
 
Enclosed for the Commission’s review is a list of bills staff is aware of that 
relates to mental health under the Mental Health Services Act that the 
Commission may wish to support:  

 
Presenters:  
 Toby Ewing Ph.D., Executive Director 
 Norma Pate, Deputy Director  
 
Enclosures: (1) Legislative Tracking Chart; (2) Copy of bills and committee 
analyses  
 
Handout: None 
 
Proposed Motion: The MHSOAC authorizes the Executive Director to 
pursue discussions with the Legislature consistent with the direction given by 
the Commission. 



State of California 

Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission  
1325 J Street, Suite 1700  Sacramento, CA 95814  916.445.8696  mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

Page 1 of 5 

 

2018 Legislative Report to the Commission 

April 13, 2018 

 

 

Sponsored Legislation 

 

Senate Bill 1019 (Beall) 

Title: Youth mental health and substance use disorder services. 

Summary: Current law provides that funds appropriated by the Legislature to the California Health Facilities 

Financing  Authority  and  the  Mental  Health  Services  Oversight  and  Accountability  Commission  for  the 

purposes of the Investment in Mental Health Wellness Act of 2013 be made available to selected counties 

or  counties  acting  jointly,  except  as  otherwise  provided,  and  used  to  provide,  among  other  things,  a 

complete continuum of crisis services for children and youth 21 years of age and under regardless of where 

they  live  in the state. The act requires the commission to allocate funds to triage personnel, as specified. 

This bill would require the commission, when making these funds available, to allocate at least one‐half of 

those funds for services or programs targeted at children and youth 18 years of age and under. 

Status/Location:  Scheduled to be heard by the Senate Education Committee on April 18, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Senate Bill 1113 (Monning) 

Title: Mental health in the workplace: voluntary standards. 

Summary:  Would  authorize  the  Mental  Health  Services  Oversight  and  Accountability  Commission  to 

establish a  framework and  voluntary  standard  for mental health  in  the workplace  that  serves  to  reduce 

mental  health  stigma,  increase  public,  employee,  and  employer  awareness of  the  recovery  goals  of  the 

Mental  Health  Services  Act,  and  provide  guidance  to  California’s  employer  community  to  put  in  place 

strategies  and  programs, determined  by  the  commission,  to  support  the mental  health  and wellness  of 

employees. 

Status/Location: Senate Appropriations 

 

 

 

 

 

 



State of California 

Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission  
1325 J Street, Suite 1700  Sacramento, CA 95814  916.445.8696  mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

Supported Legislation 

Assembly Bill 2325 (Irwin) 

Title: County mental health services: veterans.  

Summary: Would prevent a county  from denying an eligible veteran county mental or behavioral health 

services while  the  veteran  is waiting  for  a  determination  of  eligibility  for,  and  availability  of, mental  or 

behavioral health  services provided by  the United States Department of Veterans Affairs. The bill would 

make specific  findings and declarations about  the county’s duty  to provide mental and behavioral health 

services to veterans. 

Status/Location: Scheduled to be heard by the Assembly Health Committee on April 24, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Senate Bill 215 (Beall)  

Title: Diversion: mental disorders. 

Summary: Would authorize a  court, with  the  consent of  the defendant and a waiver of  the defendant’s 

speedy trial right, to postpone prosecution of a misdemeanor or a  felony punishable  in a county  jail, and 

place the defendant in a pretrial diversion program for up to 2 years if the court is satisfied the defendant 

suffers  from  a  mental  disorder,  that  the  defendant’s  mental  disorder  played  a  significant  role  in  the 

commission of the charged offense, and that the defendant would benefit from mental health treatment. 

For specified offenses, the bill would condition granting diversion on the consent of the prosecution. 

Status/Location: Assembly Desk  

 

Senate Bill 688 (Moorlach)  

Title: Mental Health Services Act: revenue and expenditure reports. 

Summary:  Current  law  requires  the  State Department  of Health  Care  Services,  in  consultation with  the 

commission and the County Behavioral Health Directors Association of California, to develop and administer 

instructions  for  the Annual Mental Health  Services Act Revenue  and  Expenditure  Report, which  gathers 

specified  information on mental health  spending as a  result of  the MHSA,  including  the expenditures of 

funds distributed to each county. Current  law requires counties to electronically submit the report to the 

department and the commission. This bill would require counties to prepare the reports in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles, as specified. 

Status/Location: Assembly Desk  

 

 

 

 



State of California 

Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission  
1325 J Street, Suite 1700  Sacramento, CA 95814  916.445.8696  mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

Senate Bill 906 (Beall)  

Title:  Medi‐Cal:  mental  health  services:  peer,  parent,  transition‐age,  and  family  support  specialist 

certification.  

Summary:  Would  require  the  State  Department  of  Health  Care  Services  to  establish,  no  later  than              

July 1, 2019, a statewide peer, parent, transition‐age, and family support specialist certification program, as 

a  part  of  the  state’s  comprehensive mental  health  and  substance  use  disorder  delivery  system  and  the 

Medi‐Cal  program.  The  bill  would  include  4  certification  categories:  adult  peer  support  specialists, 

transition‐age  youth  peer  support  specialists,  family  peer  support  specialists,  and  parent  peer  support 

specialists. 

Status/Location: Senate Appropriations 

 

Senate Bill 1004 (Wiener) 

Title: Mental Health Services Act: prevention and early intervention. 

Summary: Would  require  the Mental  Health  Services  Oversight  and  Accountability  Commission,  on  or 

before January 1, 2020, to establish priorities for the use of prevention and early intervention funds and to 

develop a statewide strategy for monitoring implementation of prevention and early intervention services, 

including  enhancing  public  understanding  of  prevention  and  early  intervention  and  creating metrics  for 

assessing the effectiveness of how prevention and early intervention funds are used and the outcomes that 

are achieved. The bill would also prohibit  funding  for county prevention and early  intervention programs 

from being distributed until after the approval of the county’s prevention and early intervention plan by the 

commission.  

Status/Location: Senate Appropriations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



State of California 

Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission  
1325 J Street, Suite 1700  Sacramento, CA 95814  916.445.8696  mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Under Review 

 

Assembly Bill 2287 (Kiley) 

Title: Mental Health Services Act. 

Summary: Would establish  the Office of Mental Health Services within  the California Health and Human 

Services Agency, as specified. The bill would transfer various functions of the State Department of Health 

Care Services under the act to the office. Under this bill, the office would succeed to, and be vested with, all 

the duties, powers, responsibilities, and  jurisdiction, vested  in the department, regarding oversight of the 

Mental Health Services Fund, as specified. The bill would also require the office to assume certain duties, 

including, among others,  initiating  investigations, advising counties, conducting research, and reporting to 

the Legislature, by December 31, 2020, of any additional authority it deems necessary to complete its duties 

and to ensure county compliance with the act, as specified. 

Status/Location: Scheduled to be heard by the Assembly Health Committee on April 24, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Assembly Bill 2619 (Allen) 

Title: Mental health services funding: homeless persons. 

Summary: Would appropriate $10,000,000 from the General Fund to the State Department of Health Care 

Services  to be distributed  to counties  for  the purpose of  funding  innovative programs  to provide mental 

health services to California’s homeless population.  

Status/Location: Scheduled to be heard by the Assembly Health Committee on April 17, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Assembly Bill 2843 (Gloria) 

Title: Mental Health Services Fund. 

Summary: Would state  the  intent of the Legislature to enact  legislation that would require a county that 

receives  reallocated  funds  from  the Mental Health Services Fund  to  spend  those  funds within 2 years of 

adopting an expenditure plan for those funds. It would further state the  intent of the Legislature that any 

funds not expended by a county within those 2 years would revert to the Mental Health Services Fund to be 

redistributed to cities, special districts, school districts, or other public entities for the provision of mental 

health services consistent with the intent of the MHSA. 

Status/Location: Scheduled to be heard by the Assembly Health Committee on April 17, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

 

 



State of California 

Mental Health Services Oversight and Accountability Commission  
1325 J Street, Suite 1700  Sacramento, CA 95814  916.445.8696  mhsoac.ca.gov 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Senate Bill 1101 (Pan) 

Title: Mental health. 

Summary:  In addition  to  the Commission’s existing duties,  this bill would  require  the  commission, on or 

before  January 1, 2020,  to establish 5  statewide objectives  for  the  treatment  and prevention of mental 

illness and metrics by which progress toward each of those objectives may be measured.  

Status/Location: Scheduled to be heard by the Senate Health Committee on April 25, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Senate Bill 1134 (Newman) 

Title: Mental health services fund. 

Summary: This bill would make technical, non‐substantive changes. 

Status/Location: Senate Rules. 

 

Senate Bill 1206 (de León) 

Title: Mental health services fund. 

Summary: Would enact the No Place Like Home Act of 2018 and provide for submission of that act to the 

voters  at  the  November  6,  2018,  statewide  general  election.  The  bill  would  specify  that  the  service 

contracts between the California Health Facilities Financing Authority and the Department of Housing and 

Community  Development may  be  single‐year  or multiyear  contracts  and  provide  for  payments  to  the 

department  from  amounts  on  deposit  in  the  Supportive  Housing  Program  Subaccount.  The  bill  would 

declare  that  the voters  ratify as being  consistent with and  in  furtherance of  the MHSA, and approve  for 

purposes of specified provisions of the California Constitution relating to debt, specified statutes related to 

the No Place Like Home Program and related financial provisions.  

Status/Location: Senate Health. 

 

Senate Bill 1458 (Hueso) 

Title: County mental health plans. 

Summary: Would state the intent of the Legislature to enact legislation that would require compliance from 

county mental health programs regarding reporting requirements established pursuant to the MHSA. 

Status/Location: Senate Rules. 

 




































































































































































































































































































































































